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When you think of
renewable energy

Renewable energy will shape the energy
future. But to use it efficiently and effectively,
we need intelligent networks that can meet
the added technical challenges. EVN has
addressed these challenges for many years
with massive investments in renewable energy
generation plants and the expansion of its
smart grids.



Key figures

Change
2013/14 2012/13" nominal in %
Sales volumes
Electricity generation volumes GWh 4,395 3,701 694 18.7
thereof from renewable energy GWh 1,868 1,954 -86 -4.4
Electricity sales volumes to end customers GWh 19,317 20,209 -891 -4.4
Natural gas sales volumes to end customers GWh 5,383 6,333 -950 -15.0
Heat sales volumes to end customers GWh 1,991 2,062 =71 -3.4
Consolidated statement of operations
Revenue EURM 1,974.8 2,105.9 -131.0 -6.2
EBITDA EURM 184.1 540.0 -356.0 -65.9
EBITDA margin? % 9.3 25.6 -16.3 -
Results from operating activities (EBIT) EURM -341.4 242.2 -583.6 -
EBIT margin? % -17.3 11.5 -28.8 -
Result before income tax EURm -373.3 170.7 -544.0 -
Group net result EURmM -299.0 109.3 -408.3 -
Consolidated statement of financial position
Balance sheet total EURM 6,841.8 7.283.7 -441.9 -6.1
Equity EURM 2,632.7 3,079.2 -446.5 -14.5
Equity ratio? % 385 423 -3.8 -
Net debt EURM 1,622.4 1,809.6 -187.2 -10.3
Gearing? % 61.6 58.8 2.9 -
Return on equity (ROE)? % -9.5 5.0 -14.5 -
Consolidated cash flow and investments
Net cash flow from operating activities EURmM 546.0 570.0 -24.0 4.2
Investments® EURmM 396.3 372.9 235 6.3
Net debt coverage (FFO)? % 41.3 38.3 3.0 -
Interest cover (FFO) x 8.1 8.8 -0.7 -
Value added
Net operating profit after tax (NOPAT) EURm 144.5 307.3 -162.8 -53.0
Capital employed® EURm 4,900.5 5,046.6 -146.1 -2.9
Return on capital employed (ROCE)? % -3.8 3.9 -7.7 -
Operating ROCE? % 2.9 6.1 =3.1 -
Weighted average cost of capital (WACC)? % 6.5 6.5 0.0 -
Economic value added (EVA®)® EURM -174.1 -20.7 -153.3 -
Share
Earnings EUR -1.68 0.61 -2.3 -
Dividend EUR 0.429 0.42 0.0 -
Payout ratio? % - 68.6 - -
Dividend yield? % 4.1 3.7 0.4 -
Share performance
Share price at 30 September EUR 10.13 11.29 -1.2 -10.3
Highest price EUR 12.50 12.66 -0.2 -1.3
Lowest price EUR 9.76 9.42 0.3 3.6
Market capitalisation at 30 September EURM 1,821.0 2,031.0 -210.0 -10.3
Credit rating
Moody's A3, negative A3, stable - -
Standard & Poor’s BBB+, stable BBB+, stable - -

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting in accordance with IFRS, page 148).
2) Changes reported in percentage points

3) Inintangible assets and property, plant and equipment

4) Average adjusted capital employed

5) As defined by Stern Stewart & Co

6) Proposal to the Annual General Meeting



2013/14 2012/13
Employees
Number of employees 7,314 7,455
thereof Austria 2,407 2,407
thereof abroad 4,907 5,038
Employee fluctuation % 2.8 3.2
Proportion of women % 21.4 21.9
Training hours per employee hrs. 34.9 313
Number of occupational accidents 98 121
Environment
Quantity of CO, emissions (Scope 1) t 2,215,563 1,677,385
NO, emissions t 823 1,065
Hazardous waste" t 10,703 9,266
Water consumption (drinking and process water) m3 2,295,021 2,040,939
1) Without building residues and power station by-products
Equity, net debt in EurRm ~_ Cash flow and investments in Eurm
Gearing in %
570.0 546.0
3,079.2
2,632.7 372.9 396.3
1,622.4
61.6
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= Equity 0 Cash flow from operating activities
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,. yOu should also
make intelligent decisions
about Its distribution




When you want to have long-term
SUCCESS as an enerqgy provider
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you should rely on
your customers

Sustainable success in the energy industry also means solid and
long-lasting customer relationships. Mutual trust and good service are
another important part of this success. That's why EVN's stable, broad

and diversified customer base is no coincidence.
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About this report

EVN has published an integrated annual and sustainability report,
the so-called “full report”®, for each financial year since 2009/10.
The equal treatment of sustainability content, including the CSR pro-
gramme, with the annual report and corporate governance report
reflects EVN's self-image as a responsible energy and environmen-
tal services provider. A central element of EVN's integrated business
model is the well-balanced treatment of its various stakeholder
groups. Their diversity and different information requirements are
given equal treatment in the full report. This year’s report is designed
in such a way as to provide easier access to relevant information
through a structure that is focused more closely on the individual
stakeholder groups. This report meets the high “Advanced Level”
standards defined by the UN Global Compact and also qualifies as a
presentation of EVN's progress.

References

Additional information on certain topics is provided on EVN's home-
page and cross-referenced in this report. The full report also includes
references to the GRI standards and to other information within the
report. Different reference signs are used to facilitate the reader’s
orientation inside and outside the report. The signs used in the
2013/14 full report are listed below:

/A Reference to the GRI Standards
L1 Reference to additional information within the full report
O Reference to the World Wide Web

Printing

The full report was printed according to the “Cradle-to-Cradle” prin-
ciple This means that only pollutant-free and recyclable materials
were used in the printing process. Thus, our high commitment to
sustainability is underscored also in the production of our report.

Scope of the report

EVN's financial year begins on 1 October and ends on 30 September.
This report is based on EVN's scope of consolidation as of 30 Sep-
tember 2014 according to consolidation regulations. IFRS 10, 11
and 12 were applied for the first time in the 2013/14 financial year
and led to adjustments in the scope of consolidation. Information on
the scope of consolidation is provided in the notes. Unless indicated
otherwise, the comparative prior period data were also adjusted to
reflect the application of these revised standards.

This report meets the requirements of the Global Reporting Initia-
tive (GRI) Version 4 “comprehensive” and includes the additional
GRI indicators for the utility industry (Electric Utility Sector Supple-
ments). EVN's objective is to provide detailed information on the
subjects that are of key importance to its stakeholders. The report-
ing content is based on legal requirements, the information needs
of stakeholders and the most important areas of activity in EVN's

materiality matrix (page 37). In developing this matrix, EVN's internal
and external stakeholders identified the areas that have the great-
est impact, opportunities and risks on the company and its stake-
holders. The CSR materiality matrix is evaluated on a regular basis
to incorporate new trends and subjects that are relevant to the
various stakeholder groups. The 2013/14 survey led to an update
of the materiality matrix presented in the 2012/13 full report.
A detailed list of the areas of activity and the related GRI aspects
used to define the reporting content can be found online under
www.evn.at/EVN-Group/responsibility/CSR-reporting.aspx.
In comparison to the prior year report there were neither material
changes in the scope of the report nor in the presentation of infor-
mation. In agreement with the GRI reporting standards, this report
does not include information of low importance thereby maximising
relevance and transparency by focusing on the most significant
issues. The indicators that are not applicable to EVN are designated
as such in the GRI Content Index at the end of this report.

The Environmental Protection and Controlling Department and the
Accounting Department were responsible for the data collection
and calculations. The data are based on the GRI indicator protocol,
which was applied as completely as possible. Compliance with this
reporting standard and the related criteria was reviewed and con-
firmed by TUV SUD (see page 244).

EVN also believes in equal gender treatment in its internal and exter-
nal publications, including this full report. Any statements made in
the male form to improve readability refer equally to both genders.

The editorial deadline for this report was 26 November 2014.

L1 For further information on the definition of this report’s
content, see page 50ff.

O For information on the Global Reporting Initiative go to:
www.globalreporting.org

O The GRI Content Index can be found on page 246.




~ditorial

Dear Shareholders,
Ladies and Gentlemen,

EVN faced numerous challenges during the 2013/14 finan-
cial year. The distortions on the wholesale markets continued
throughout the reporting year and created constant pressure on
electricity production from thermal power plants (see page 131f).
The profitable use of gas-fired power plants in Europe is virtually
impossible at the present time. For this reason, a growing number
of companies are decommissioning their conventional power
plants. These events also had an effect on EVN: in the 4™ quarter
of 2013/14 a reduction in the estimated long-term development of
electricity prices required an impairment of the Dlrnrohr coal-fired
power plant. These expectations also required an impairment on
the participation interest in Verbund Innkraftwerke GmbH (see page
1311).

Additional pressure was created by the recent temperature
trends: the heating degree days, an important indicator for utility
companies, declined further during the reporting year in Austria,
Bulgaria and Macedonia after the mild winter in 2012/13. That had
a negative effect on sales volumes and also reduced revenues (see
page 114).

Developments in Bulgaria and Macedonia necessitated the
recognition of impairment losses to goodwill and customer bases
during 2013/14. In earlier years we were generally able to offset
tariff reductions in both markets with improvements in the operating
area: corporate processes were continuously optimised and made
even more economical, and key indicators like network losses and
the collection rate showed steady progress over the years. By the
tariff decisions of 30 June 2014, the respective regulatory authorities
have changed the conditions in such a way that from today’s point
of view the historic expectations are not likely to be achieved any
more (see page 136ff).

Peter Layr
Spokesman of the Executive Board

In the international environmental services business, the
4% quarter of 2013/14 brought reasonable doubts concerning the
realisation of the thermal waste utilisation plant no. 1 in Moscow
and led to the write-down of a receivable. An impairment loss
was also recognised on the sewage sludge drying plant and on
components of the co-generation plant in Lyuberzy, Moscow.
On the other hand, a solution for the sodium hypochlorite plant
was found by selling it to the city of Moscow in October 2014 (see
page 138ff).

The energy industry is currently undergoing a transforma-
tion process that will not only bring significant challenges, but also
opportunities for all market participants. EVN has become one of
the largest windpark operators in Austria and — with its extensive
portfolio of windpower, hydropower and photovoltaic power plants
— now generates 42.5% of its electricity from renewable energy
sources. EVN is also the largest natural heat supplier in Austria with
more than 60 plants.

The rapidly expanding use of renewable energy does, how-
ever, also represent a major challenge for supply security and, in
turn, for the network infrastructure. We are therefore continuing
to invest in our transmission and distribution networks, especially
in our home market of Lower Austria, because an energy system
in transition demands responsible and, above all, coordinated
actions and sound judgment. The 2013/14 full report also shows
how experts see this change and how EVN is preparing for this and
even greater issues of the future (see page 16ff). As the reason-
able balance between the increasing use of renewable energy and
uncompromising supply security is so important, we have made it
the focal point of this full report.

Stefan Szyszkowitz
Member of the Executive Board

L1 Detailed information on the members of the Executive Board and their responsibilities can be found in the corporate

governance report starting on page 97.
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LSupply security doesn't
nappen automatically”

The two members of the Executive Board
of EVN AG, Peter Layr and

Stefan Szyszkowitz, in a discussion on
the current situation on the energy
markets and the development of EVN
during the 2013/14 financial year.

Mr. Layr, the energy industry is currently faced with
significant challenges. What are the central issues from
your point of view?

Layr: One of the current core problems is the low level of whole-
sale prices, above all on the Central European electricity exchanges.
The recent price developments have led to a massive loss in the
value of conventional electricity generation plants — because their
cost-effective operation has become virtually impossible. As a reac-
tion to this situation, many domestic and foreign utility companies
have started to mothball not only older crude oil- and coal-fired
power plants, but also state-of-the-art facilities. Decisions over the
construction of new plants are also being postponed. Conversely,

Peter Layr

the question is how to balance the natural fluctuations in the pro-
duction of renewable energy in order to ensure stable and reliable
energy supplies in the future. The expansion of renewable energy
should be supported —but it must be integrated in an overall energy
sector concept.

Mr. Szyszkowitz, how would you describe an over-
all concept that pays special attention to electricity
generation from renewable energy sources?

Szyszkowitz: By its very nature, the generation of energy from
the sun and wind can only be planned up to a certain point. That
means relatively high volatility, which must be cushioned with



Stefan Szyszkowitz

the help of predictable forms of generation. However, the previ-
ously mentioned mothballing of power plants reduces this reserve
capacity and therefore conflicts with stable and reliable energy
production that includes renewable energy. In addition, the fluc-
tuations in energy production from renewable sources create sub-
stantial challenges for the networks and their stability. That's why
we need to keep the network in good shape, so we can continue
to provide energy in the same reliable way. Then again, we also
need to think about the effects of subsidies and their influence on
the market. In Germany, as an example, the preferential treatment
given to renewable energy has forced other generation forms out
of the market — even though they are the guarantee for supply
security.

Intro — Interview with the Executive Board

“We need to keep the network
in good shape, so we can
continue to provide energy in
the same reliable way.” scon sysioni

In other words, that also means harmonising the different
interests currently prevailing on the energy market?

Layr: At times you have the impression that supply security is either
generally taken for granted or not sufficiently discussed. Neither of
these alternatives is good because supply security doesn’t happen
automatically. We only have such a high standard of supply security
in Austria because the utility companies made steady, wide-ranging
investments in production capacity and in the network in earlier
years — of course, in good faith that they would be compensated
for these investments over time. EVN has even defined supply
security as its number one priority. This view is also shared by our
stakeholders, as you can see on our materiality matrix which was
updated again this year in an extensive process.

EVN Full Report 2013/14 7



“"Any attempt at a solution
must combine supply security,
energy efficiency and
renewable generation.” scinsysionic

Szyszkowitz: Of course, consumers and politics are interested in
the cheapest possible energy prices. As an integrated utility com-
pany, we are also working continuously to make our operations
as efficient as possible at all levels of the value chain and, through
these efforts, to offer our customers attractive prices. In spite of
this, we must realise that energy has a value and therefore also a
price. Recognising this value guarantees that sufficient energy will
be generated in the future to maintain our high quality of life and
to keep our industrial location competitive.

The security of energy supplies as a common goal is
undisputed. In your opinion, how can we harmonise
the different interests of consumers, politics and utility
companies?

Layr: One important step will be to create uniform energy sector
framework conditions throughout Europe. What we currently see,
unfortunately, is a variety of local solutions with hardly any coordi-
nation. An important point here, as was mentioned above, is that a
value must be placed on the provision of energy that balances out
the volatile generation from renewable sources. Our cooperation
with the Federal Network Agency in Germany has shown that this
concept can work: we provided power plant capacity for energy
deliveries to Germany during the past three winter half-years and
will also make 785 megawatts of generation capacity available for
the next two winter half-years. If and when requested, we can
deliver electricity within a short period of time. We are paid for
providing this reserve capacity and, in this way, can keep our power
plants in operational condition.

Szyszkowitz: From my point of view, any attempt at a solution
must combine supply security, energy efficiency and renewable
generation. It's also important to avoid any loss of comfort for the
consumer. At EVN, our work is based on these premises —and, con-

sequently, the focus is always on the customer and his or her needs.
EVN has always relied on an integrated business model that covers
the entire value chain in the energy business. How would you describe
this model against the backdrop of the current environment?

Layr: The comparatively stable network business forms the core of
our activities. In generation, we focus on a flexible energy mix that
includes both thermal and renewable components. That allows us
to protect availability of capacity and output. In energy distribu-
tion, we can build on a strong brand. Our business activities are
complemented and further diversified by the environmental services
business. Additionally, our portfolio of strategic investments helps
to strengthen the Group's vertical integration. The energy sector
is currently undergoing a major transformation and, for that rea-
son, we are proceeding with particular caution and relying on our
sound judgment. Our goal is to consolidate the existing business
in our core markets and realise opportunities to further improve
our efficiency. In the areas of renewable energy, water supplies and
the heating business, we also see substantial opportunities for the
future in Lower Austria.

Moving from the current challenges to visible successes:
what were the highlights of the 2013/14 financial year?

Layr: EVN performed well in spite of the major challenges faced by
the energy industry. One particular achievement | am particularly
pleased about: We were again successful in providing above-aver-
age high supply security for our customers. Stable energy supplies
are, last but not least, a fundamental requirement for the positive
development of Lower Austria as an industrial and commercial loca-
tion. But they also mean high living standards for our household
customers who can always depend the required energy forms and
on drinking water in sufficient quantities and the necessary quality.

And how would you evaluate EVN's business performance?

Szyszkowitz: Based on the numbers, you can't be satisfied with
the results for 2013/14. However, any analysis must go one step
further. The warm winter in 2013/14 obviously left its mark on our

“One important step will be to
create uniform energy sector
framework conditions through-
out Europe.” Loy



business. We were also faced with the effects of the past year's
tariff decisions in Bulgaria and Macedonia and a lower number of
orders processed in the international project business. These factors
prevented us from duplicating the prior year's operating results.
However, the substantial decline in earnings resulted primarily from
the necessary recognition of impairment losses in South Eastern
Europe, in the environmental services business and in electricity
generation. Since most of these impairment losses represent non-
cash items, they have no influence on EVN's financial stability and
also not on the expected dividend payment.

In other words, we shouldn’t worry about EVN?

Szyszkowitz: No, there is really no need to worry! The strong cash
flow from our operating business will still support our continued
investments in projects for renewable energy and supply security.

Do these latest experiences have any effect on EVN's
foreign strategy?

Layr: Yes, of course they have an effect — in the end, our consoli-
dation course was strengthened. EVN was cautious in taking its
first steps outside Austria, but the world is not the same as it was
a number of years ago when the investment decisions were made.
Unfortunately, you can never completely eliminate uncertainty. And
here | also mean the consequences of the 2008 financial and eco-
nomic crisis on the whole of South Eastern Europe. Our goal is
to ensure the positive development of operating earnings over the
medium and long term. Of special note here is the fact that we have
created more than 100 new jobs in Lower Austria with our foreign
activities and are also protecting existing jobs. Dozens of Austrian
companies also benefit from orders related to our foreign business.

You have made a number of good points. What specific
projects would you say were particularly outstanding in the
past year?

Layr: One particularly important project for natural gas sup-
ply security was the completion of the Westschiene natural gas

“The strong cash flow from
our operating business will
still support our continued
investments in projects for
renewable energy and supply
security.” s sysonic

Intro — Interview with the Executive Board

“The energy sector is

currently undergoing a major
transformation and, for that
reason, we are proceeding with
particular caution and relying
on our sound judgment.” s L

transport pipeline. Its commissioning gives us a direct connection
of our network to the RAG natural gas storage facilities in Upper
Austria. The special feature of this pipeline is that the direction of
the natural gas flow can be reversed as needed. These storage facil-
ities can be used to supply the population centres both in Lower
Austria and in and around Vienna. In the electricity area, we fur-
ther expanded the network to transport the increased feed-in vol-
umes from windpower plants. This work focused, above all, on the
110-kV network. The medium- and low-voltage networks were
also upgraded to deal with the feed-in from decentralised photo-
voltaic equipment. We strengthen our own activities in renewa-
ble energy with the construction of a windpark in Prottes-Ollers-
dorf, where twelve 3-megawatt generation wind turbines will be
installed. Other projects involved decentralised heat supplies from
biomass. We expanded several existing district heating networks
and also built new plants, for example in Fischamend. With over
60 plants, we are the largest producer of natural heat in Austria.

Szyszkowitz: In the area of water supply, a number of additional
communities have entrusted us with the operation of their pipe-
line networks or arranged for connections to EVN's cross-regional
supply network. And with the construction of natural filter plants,
we are creating the basis to improve the quality of the water by
natural methods. It's not common knowledge, but we currently
supply more than 500,000 residents in Lower Austria, directly and
indirectly, with drinking water. Our international environmental
services business is now working on nine projects — for example,
the wastewater purification plants in Warsaw and Kotor-Tivat in
Montenegro. The Mia Milia/Haspolat wastewater purification plant
in the Cypriote capital of Nicosia was commissioned in April. How-
ever, I would also like to mention a different, but no less important
project: our campaign “EVN for Lower Austria”. In 43 individual
projects, EVN's employees supported social or charitable organis-
ations throughout Lower Austria during the past financial year. EVN
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“We can build on
a solid foundation
for the future-" Stefan Szyszkowitz

gave these employees additional time-off for their activities and
provided financial support for purchasing the necessary materials.
A very special point for me is that, with this campaign, the company
and employees were able to demonstrate their social responsibility
in Lower Austria together.

What can EVN'’s customers expect in the coming financial
year?

Layr: EVN's sales company reduced energy prices in electricity by
10% on average as of 1 October 2014 within the framework of
the EnergieAllianz. With this step, we passed on the lower whole-
sale prices to our customers before the start of the winter season.
It also proves one more thing: our customers can depend on us.
We offer the full range of services provided by a modern utility
company from a single hand and are also available to help our cus-
tomers with advice and support when they plan and realise pro-
jects or energy efficiency measures. Our bonus point programme
is also new: customers can collect points and then exchange them
for energy services or energy-saving products. Together with the
social experts in various institutions like Caritas or the Chamber of
Labour in Lower Austria, we will also ensure that social accuracy is
respected in the implementation of the bonus programme and the
Austrian Energy Efficiency Act.

And what do you have in store for your shareholders?

Szyszkowitz: On the one hand, we will propose a dividend of
EUR 0.42 per share to the Annual General Meeting, thus matching
the previous year's distribution. Our strong cash flow gives us suffi-
cient funds for this purpose, and there is no need to increase debt.
On the other hand, we can build on a solid foundation for the
future, which is also illustrated by our balance sheet, and we expect
further strong cash flows in the future.

10

The future is a good keyword: What projects will EVN be
implementing in the coming months?

Layr: In total, we want to invest one billion euros in supply secu-
rity and the use of renewable energy in Lower Austria over the
next four years. Here are a number of examples: We are currently
constructing the already mentioned windpark in Prottes-Ollersdorf
which will have a total capacity of 37 megawatts. That will lead to
a substantial increase in the capacity of our windpower plants from
the current level of 213 megawatts. In the area of water supplies,
we are building two natural filter plants in Obersiebenbrunn and
Drosing, which should be commissioned in 2015, and construction
on a similar plant in Zwentendorf is scheduled to start in the near
future. Natural filter plants reduce the hardness of the water by
natural means. When these three plants are completed, we will
be able to supply roughly 100,000 additional households with soft
water in spring water quality.

Let's take a look at the more distant future: What are
EVN's long-term goals, and how are they related to your
stakeholders?

Layr: Our primary goal is to protect the high level of supply security
expected by our customers. That can be achieved, on the one hand,
through investments like the ones | just mentioned and, on the
other hand, by the highly qualified employees who ensure trouble-
free operations and, if difficulties arise, react quickly and efficiently
to solve the technical problems. The expansion of energy produc-
tion from renewable sources is another important focus — it requires
high investments in strong and intelligent network infrastructure.
In particular, the expansion in this area must be based on sensi-
tive planning and include the involved communities. People play
an important role in the system transformation towards renewable
energy.

Szyszkowitz: We want to increase our focus on services that meet
the needs and requirements of our customers and, based on these
services, generate stable earnings that support the necessary invest-
ments and convince our investors of EVN’s long-term orientation.

“We want to invest one billion
euros in Lower Austria over the
next four years.” v oy



For EVN as a listed company, long-term stability is also the declared
goal. Our shareholders should see this stability in the predictable
development of dividends and in a stable investment grade rating.

Last but not least: Do you have any wishes for the 2014/15
financial year?

Layr: | have a number of wishes for EVN and our customers — but
wishes alone are not enough. That's why all of us at EVN are work-
ing together consistently to carefully analyse current and future
issues and to develop what we believe are the best answers. How-
ever, what | would really like to see is a transparent discussion of
the value of energy and network supply security with the relevant
decision-makers and public authorities. Supply security can only
be protected on a lasting basis when it is given the value it really
deserves.

Szyszkowitz: This wish is one | can only underscore — we need
a logical, EU-wide energy policy that is focused on sustainability,
but doesn’t lose sight of supply security. And we need innovations
that will keep us in shape for the future. An important step in this
direction is the founding of the EVN future lab to develop and test
new business models and products.

Intro — Interview with the Executive Board

“I would really like to see a
transparent discussion of the
value of energy and network
supply security.” rc oy

EVN Full Report 2013/14

11



Report of the
supervisory Boaro
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Dear Ladies and Gentlemen,

The situation on the energy markets remained tense throughout the 2013/14 financial year. The volatile
generation from renewable energy sources led to temporary supply overhangs, which had a significant
influence on the wholesale prices for electricity. The resulting price developments were reflected in deci-
sions by a number of energy producers to shut down power plant capacity. However, steps like these
endanger the high energy supply standard. The maintenance of sufficient capacity reserves on a pan-
European basis is therefore required to protect supply security. For EVN, supply security is a top priority.
Power plants are held in stand-by condition to give customers the greatest possible security. The result-
ing strong loyalty was also reflected in customer satisfaction with EVN's set course during the past year.

The Supervisory Board actively monitored and supported EVN's strategic steps as part of its designated
responsibilities. Five plenary meetings were held during the reporting year, in which the Supervisory
Board fulfilled the tasks and duties required by legal regulations and the company’s by-laws. The Execu-
tive Board provided the Supervisory Board with regular, timely and comprehensive reports on all relevant
aspects of EVN's business development, including the risk position and risk management, as well as
the development of key Group companies. This reporting allowed the Supervisory Board to continually
supervise and support the Executive Board’'s management activities. The control functions exercised by
the Supervisory Board within the framework of open discussions with the Executive Board did not lead
to any objections. Recommendations by the Supervisory Board were taken up by the Executive Board.

Changes on the Supervisory Board

Following the resignation of Michaela Steinacker from the Supervisory Board, the 85" Annual General
Meeting on 16 January 2014 elected Angela Stransky to serve out the remaining term of this member in
accordance with the by-laws of EVN AG. Ms. Stransky's function as a member of the Supervisory Board
therefore began with the end of the 85" Annual General Meeting and will end with the Annual General
Meeting that votes on the release from liability for the 2014/15 financial year. The Supervisory Board
would like to thank Ms. Steinacker for her many years of successful work on the Supervisory Board.

Major resolutions passed by the Supervisory Board

The most important decisions taken by the Supervisory Board in 2013/14 included the approval of the
annual financial statements and the 2014/15 budget for the EVN Group as well as the approval of
the EVN StrategieUpdate 2013. The approval of the budget also covered investments in heating and
windpower plants, in long-distance and district heating plants, in electricity, natural gas and heating
networks and in IT infrastructure. These investments are designed, above all, to protect supply security
and transport renewable energy production. Investments approved for the environmental services busi-
ness are directed to improving water quality. In addition, the Supervisory Board discussed international
projects for water purification. The Supervisory Board also approved the renewal and extension of the
syndicated credit line at a reduced volume of EUR 400m with a term of up to seven years and local
financing for individual companies.

The Executive Board informed the Supervisory Board of current developments in Bulgaria, Macedonia
and Moscow.

Austrian Corporate Governance Code, Supervisory Board committees

EVN, as a listed company, is committed to compliance with the Austrian Corporate Governance Code.
The Supervisory Board approved the implementation of the January 2012 version of the code by EVN
beginning in 2012/13. The amendment of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code to reflect the July
2012 changes in Austria’s Second Stability Act is binding for EVN under this law. The Supervisory Board



Intro — Report of the Supervisory Board

strives to consistently comply with the provisions of the code that relate to its activities. EVN complies
with all rules governing the cooperation between the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board as
well as the internal workings of the Supervisory Board with the exception of two deviations that are
explained in the corporate governance report. The Supervisory Board examined all possible conflicts of
interest and did not identify any inconsistencies.

Inits meeting on 11 December 2013, the Supervisory Board approved the report prepared in accordance
with Rule 18a of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code on measures to prevent corruption in the
company.

In line with the requirements of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code and the rules of proce-
dure for the Supervisory Board, the Supervisory Board established the following committees: the Audit
Committee, the Personnel Committee which simultaneously serves as a Remuneration and Nominating
Committee, and the Working Committee.

The Personnel Committee met three times during the 2013/14 financial year and dealt with issues
pertaining to relations between the company and the members of the Executive Board. The Personnel
Committee approved the acceptance of a seat on the supervisory board of CEESEG Aktiengesellschaft
and on the supervisory board of Wiener Bérse AG by Stefan Szyszkowitz. The Working Committee did
not meet during the reporting year. The Audit Committee met three times in 2013/14 and dealt primarily
with six-month results, including the outlook for the full financial year, the preparation of the resolution
for the approval of the annual financial statements and the appointment and work of the auditor. The
Audit Committee also discussed current developments in the operating segments, in particular the
initial application of the new consolidation standards IFRS 10 —12 as well as current developments after
the third budget update (status of projects in the environmental services business and the impairment
testing of generation plants in connection with latest estimates for the short-, medium- and long-term
development of electricity prices) and dealt extensively with the internal control, internal audit, risk and
compliance management systems.

The corporate governance report provides additional information on the composition and working pro-
cesses of the Supervisory Board and its committees as well as the remuneration of Supervisory Board
members and guidelines defined by the Supervisory Board to ensure its independence.

Annual financial statements and consolidated financial statements

KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Vienna, was appointed
to audit the financial statements for the 2013/14 financial year from 1 October 2013 to 30 Septem-
ber 2014. This firm examined the annual financial statements of EVN AG as of 30 September 2014,
which were prepared in accordance with Austrian accounting regulations, and the management report
submitted by the Executive Board. KPMG presented a written audit report on the audit and issued an
unqualified opinion.

Following detailed analysis and discussions by the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board, the
Supervisory Board approved the following documents that were submitted by the Executive Board: the
annual financial statements as of 30 September 2014 together with the notes, management report and
corporate governance report; and the recommendation for the use of profits.

The annual financial statements as of 30 September 2014 were thereby approved in accordance with
§ 96 (4) of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act. The consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and also audited by KPMG Austria
GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs-und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Vienna, which issued an unqualified
opinion.

EVN Full Report 2013/14
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The Supervisory Board approved the consolidated financial statements together with the respective
notes and management report.

In conclusion, the Supervisory Board would like to thank the Executive Board and all employees of the
EVN Group for their performance and commitment during the 2013/14 financial year. Special thanks
are also directed to EVN's shareholders, customers and partners for their confidence in the company.

Maria Enzersdorf, 10 December 2014

On behalf of the Supervisory Board:

Burkhard Hofer
President



Operating
nighlights 2013/14

Energy business

- Mild winter leads to weaker demand and decline in generation
- Heating degree total in all supply areas below previous year: by 20.6 percentage points in Lower Austria, by 7.6 percentage
points in Bulgaria and by 5.7 percentage points in Macedonia
- Water flow and wind conditions negatively influenced by the weather; generation from renewable energy 4.4% lower
than previous year

- Adjustment of network tariffs and electricity prices
- New network tariffs in Lower Austria: 9.0% reduction in electricity tariffs, 7.7% increase in natural gas tariffs (1 January 2014)
- Energy price in electricity: average reduction of 10% for EnergieAllianz Austria household customers in Lower Austria
(October 2014)

- Focus on power plants
- Commissioning of the Duisburg/Walsum coal-fired power plant (December 2013)
- Marketing of power plants Theifs and Korneuburg: in total, 785 MW of reserve capacity for southern Germany
(winter half-year 2013/14)

- Increase in supply security
- Expansion of 110 kV network in Lower Austria (July 2014)
- Completion of 143 km Westschiene natural gas transport pipeline (May 2014)

- Continuous expansion of renewable energy
- Commissioning of the Prellenkirchen windpark with a capacity of 24 MW (February 2014)
- Opening of the Schonkirchen photovoltaic plant with public participation (May 2014)
- Construction of the Prottes-Ollersdorf windpark with a capacity of 37 MW (on-going)

Environmental service business

- Investments in water supplies for Lower Austria
- Takeover of operations for water supply network in the community of Gollersdorf (January 2014)
- New pipeline and pressure regulation equipment to connect the community of Litschau to EVN's cross-regional
supply network (June 2014)
- Construction of natural filter plants for drinking water in Obersiebenbrunn and Drésing (on-going)

- Successful orders in CEE
- Modernisation of the Pruszkow waste treatment plant in Warsaw, Poland (December 2013)

- Planning and modernisation of the Kotor-Tivat waste treatment plant in Montenegro (February 2014)
- Commissioning of the Mia Milia/Haspolat waste treatment plant in Nicosia, Cyprus (April 2014)

Financing

- Financing basis strengthened
- Conclusion of a EUR 400m revolving credit line for up to seven years (July 2014)

EVN Full Report 2013/14
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-nergy transition =
Renewable energy
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Intro — Talking with experts

The managing director of the German Agency for Renewable Energy, Philipp Vohrer,
started to celebrate several years ago: “The energy transition gives people the
opportunity to take energy supplies into their own hands and join in the expansion
of regenerative energy production.” Photovoltaic equipment on the roof of every
house. A wind turbine for every community. Everyone supplies everyone else. A nice
idea. But one problem was overlooked: in order to exchange and transport energy,
you need secure networks. The feed-in of energy from thousands of photovoltaic
and windpower plants with their high volatility creates enormous challenges for the
existing networks — which were not designed for this purpose. The challenges are
so great that many experts are even warning of threatening black-outs. In short: will
the energy transition make the lights go out?

We asked Eveline Steinberger-Kern, consultant and expert for
renewable energy, Wolfgang Gawlik from the Institute of Energy
Systems and Electrical Drives at the Vienna University of Technol-
ogy, Andrea Edelmann, EVN's innovation officer, Johannes Reindl,
managing director of Netz NO GmbH, and Franz Dinhobl, managing
director of EVN Wasser, to give us their opinions.

Have the established utility companies slept through the
energy transition?

Eveline Steinberger-Kern: If you analyse the entire branch —
and here | mean global — you would have to answer this question
with yes. The market distortions have led to impairment losses of
500 billion euros since 2008.

Andrea Edelmann: | think we need to take a closer look at the
individual utility companies. If we evaluate EVN’s commitment to
windpower, the results are much better: in Lower Austria, EVN has
made good use of the opportunities to date.

Johannes Reindl: EVN is also remarkably well positioned on the
photovoltaic market in Lower Austria. One-fourth of all photo-
voltaic systems in Austria are connected to our network. Here we're
talking about a total capacity of 160 megawatts, which after all,
corresponds to the output of a small Danube River power plant. But
we're also aware of one other important fact: the boom in photo-
voltaics and windpower has created significant challenges for EVN
as a network operator.

You just mentioned one of the major points on the
agendas of today’s utility companies: renewable energies
are, in part, highly volatile and that creates major
challenges for network operators...

Reindl: That's right. The networks currently in use weren't created
for these new challenges. They were designed as one-way lines
from the power plant to the customer. What we now need to do is
to restructure these networks into motorways that can carry two-
way traffic. And there’s one more difficult assignment: even if the
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“The market distortions
have led to impairment
losses of 500 billion euros
since 2008." :.cine stcinberger-ken

expansion is successful, substantial efforts will be required to keep
the networks stable.

Wolfgang Gawlik: No one could have predicted the enormous
momentum that we are now seeing in the area of renewable ener-
gies. My colleagues once coined the saying: “A photovoltaic cell
is good for a pocket calculator, and nothing else.” Now we have
solar plants with 35 gigawatts of installed capacity — for example,
in Germany. Of course, network operators would love to build new
networks — but they're not allowed to. Or not allowed to as quickly
as they want.

Who is responsible for taking the next step?

Gawlik: What we're discussing here is a social problem. On the one
side, the public acceptance of renewable energy is high. However,
when energy prices increase, this acceptance drops very quickly. And
when the discussion turns to the necessary network expansion, the
acceptance is even lower. We need to start right here and clearly
state: you can’t have it all. If we want an energy transition, we must
also be prepared to pay for it and cut back somewhere else.

Edelmann: I'd like to make another brief comment on the pre-
viously mentioned impairment losses. We are currently confronted
with rapid changes in the value of certain power plants. Natural gas-
fired power plants were the focus of intensive construction activity
only a few years ago — but they can’t be commissioned today. Simply
because they're not profitable.

Reindl: Natural gas-fired power plants are dramatically underval-
ued at the moment. Because they provide key support for network
stability. The wind blows when it wants to, the sun shines when it
wants to and customers use electricity when they want to. Unfor-
tunately, all these factors aren’t synchronised. We need an energy
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source that can provide a flexible, reliable and environmentally
friendly balance. And that, for example, is natural gas.

Edelmann: But right now, there’s no compensation for the costs of
keeping these power plants on stand-by. That, however, is exactly
what we need.

Specifically: What dangers are we facing from the energy
transition?

Gawlik: Many of the elements that kept the system stable for a long
period of time don’t work as well any more. The shift from a hierar-
chical, centrally managed system to a decentralised system sounds
nice: the neighbours supply each other with electricity. Everybody
helps everybody else. But it's not that simple. The restructuring of
the networks is a huge challenge.

And financially?

Gawlik: Subsidies were real doping for renewable energies. Today
we have a system on “speed” with strong side effects. In Germany,
for example, the energy transformation will still trigger substantial
costs in two decades and it's not clear who will pay the bill.

Edelmann: We are now also witnessing the decommissioning of
windpower plants because they can't recover their operating costs
without public subsidies. People are taking on the risk of very high
costs for their national economy, but without a strategic plan.

Let's go back to the negative effects on the networks:
Is Austria facing a black-out in the near future?

Gawlik: The danger of black-outs is also increasing in Austria. You
can see that in the transmission networks. In network operations,



there is a sharp rise in the number of necessary interventions. The
networks are moving closer to their maximum load, which makes
a major outage more likely. However, we're still able to maintain
stable network operations and | don’t have canned food stored at
home because I'm worried about a black-out.

Mr. Reindl, do you have any emergency rations in the
basement?

Reindl: No. | also believe that our networks will be stable in the
future. But we shouldn't take supply security for granted. Also
because we know that EVN's customers expect this supply security.
But let's be honest, we have been living in a fragmented energy
world since 2001. Modern approaches like “smart grids” don't work
well in a fragmented world, as every participant’s objective is to opti-
mise his or her own clearly defined business. That's why I'm worried

Intro — Talking with experts

“If we want an energy
transition, we must also be
prepared to pay for it."” wigang owic

about excessive unbundling and regulation and the possible negative
effects on network stability.

Mr. Dinhobl: As the managing director of EVN Wasser,
how do you see the much-discussed subject of supply
security in the energy industry? What is the situation with
respect to water supplies?

Franz Dinhobl: One big difference between the electricity and water
system is, of course, the regulatory environment. But supply security
and quality are also important for water supplies. In contrast, the price
is less of an issue. You can't put a price on a litre of tap water because
it costs so little. The charges are manageable and a minor cost factor
for households.

“We shouldn’t take supply
security for granted.” e reina
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Steinberger-Kern: In comparison with other countries, we are still
privileged with respect to supply security here in Austria, aren't we?

Dinhobl: That's right. We use only three per cent of the entire water
volume for drinking water, industry and agricultural applications. In
comparison, Belgium uses 43 per cent. This statistic alone illustrates
our enormous resources.

And how do you guarantee supply security?

Dinhobl: As a water supplier, we have invested over the past years
and decades to develop wells and well fields in areas of Lower Austria
that are rich in water and then connect these areas through ring
pipelines. That allows us to create a balance between the different
regions. From a regional point of view, there are areas where quality
or volume can be a problem. For example, we transport supplies to
the eastern Weinviertel region from the source areas in the Danube
lowlands, where there is sufficient high-quality water.

Reindl: Here | can see a number of parallels to the energy industry.
To ensure supply security in all regions, you also need intelligent
pipeline planning and the right investments for electricity and
natural gas.

Intelligent pipeline planning brings us back to the energy
industry and to smart grids: Don’t they work in Austria?

Gawlik: Of course, the smart grids work! The only problem is that
we can't use their full potential in Austria. For example, a network
operator is not allowed to set up a decentralised storage facility to
collect electricity in peak periods and use it later when it’s really
needed. Regulations put a stop to some solutions.
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Steinberger-Kern: We have reached a point where we're com-
mitted to carrying out the energy transition. Whether we want this
transition or not ceased to be an issue a long time ago. The question
now is whether and how we can get a grip on the situation. And
while we're debating, new competitors are entering the market —
not colleagues from the industry, but corporations we all know well
from the Internet. For example, Google recently spent 3.3 billlion
dollars to purchase the thermostat producer “Nest” (note: a devel-
oper of thermostats that can be controlled via the Internet) to opti-
mally match energy generation and demand in households. That is a
classical service that a utility company should and must provide. The
real question is: How can a regional company like EVN offer these
types of services — instead of companies that grew up in California?
After all, EVN has a lot more know-how in this area than Google!

Is the industry at risk of missing the energy transition a
second time?

Edelmann: Two different speeds are now colliding: the fastest
branch on the planet has met a very traditional branch. Our strength
is the capability to offer services that are also based on trust. We
can’t compete with the size and speed of companies like Google.
Then again, there is also good news: we have already developed
services that are moving in this direction. Our “Smart Home" product
has been on the market for two years.

Reindl: | think we also have a number of things to offer when it
comes to speed: we can reach our customers quickly when there are
problems. We're also innovative and can develop products in a short
period of time. For example, we built a device to regulate the amount
of energy fed into the network by photovoltaic equipment, so that
in peak periods, it limits the feed-in to the actual network capacity.



Once again on smart grids: What could they contribute to
supply security?

Gawlik: You could accomplish a great deal by simply capping the
peak time feed-in. That would provide substantial relief for the net-
works — without losing a great deal of energy or destroying value.
But, of course, that's not what the plant operators want. And espe-
cially not when they have a guarantee to sell every single kilowatt
hour of electricity.

Reindl: Thank goodness, we don’t have this guarantee here! Austria
was smarter than German lawmakers when the green-electricity
regulations were created. In Germany, the network operators are
required to purchase all of the energy.

Intro

"Supply security and quality
are also important for water
Supplies-" Franz Dinhobl

Steinberger-Kern: The German economics minister recently spoke
about a calculation which shows that the expansion of the German
electricity network to transport electricity from the windy areas in
the north to consumers in the south would cost about 50 billion
euros. He believes these costs could easily be cut by one-third with a
“smart” concept — in other words, power plant operations could be
reduced when the electricity is not needed or transformers could be
more efficiently controlled.

Reindl: As a network operator, we could also install batteries in
the local network to improve stabilisation. However, the regulatory
authority must make a clear commitment to compensate the net-
work operator for these added costs.

“You need intelligent pipeline
planning and the corresponding
inVEStmentS." Johannes Reind|
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“"The storage of energy will pay
off much more quickly than
many Of US expect-" Eveline Steinberger-Kern

Steinberger-Kern: Perhaps we need to realise that the network
operators have completely different responsibilities in our decen-
tralised supply world. The market organisation originally created by
liberalisation is now outdated.

We've been talking about the regulation and storage of
energy. But where exactly will this storage take place?

At a central location in a pump storage facility in the Alps
or decentralised as local battery storage?

Edelmann: In both places. We will certainly see widespread local
storage in battery form. But, in any case, we will also need large
facilities like pump storage power plants.

Reindl: At the present time, it doesn’t pay for homeowners to store
surplus energy from their own photovoltaic equipment. It makes
more sense to feed this energy into the network. However, that
could change in the future.

Steinberger-Kern: | believe the storage of energy — even smaller
volumes — will pay off much more quickly than many of us expect.
The costs will suddenly become competitive. | visited MIT (note:
Massachusetts Institute of Technology) at the beginning of the
year and took a look at their research on this subject. Very impres-
sivel Not only with respect to the technologies, but also the costs.
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If there is a sharp drop in the cost of electricity storage:
wouldn’t the expansion of the networks be a bad
investment?

Gawlik: The answer is simple: no! Even the most decentralised
energy system needs a good network to utilise the effects from the
different production and consumption periods.

Supply security is declining - that’s one point we agree on.
Exactly what has to happen now to avoid black-outs?

Steinberger-Kern: Three things: First, renewable energy forms must
be gradually weaned from the subsidy schemes and integrated in the
competitive market. For that to work —and here is the second point —
the options for network operators must be adjusted. And third, in the
current transition phase, we won't be able to manage without more
environmentally friendly fossil energies. We need clear price incen-
tives — for example, for natural gas, which is much more environmen-
tally compatible than brown coal. Then we can bring together supply
security and renewable energy carriers. I'm sure of that.

Reindl: From our point of view, investments in the network are
absolutely necessary. EVN has decided to follow this course and
strengthen its networks. Because we want to offer our customers
the same high supply security also in the future.






Renewable energy — high share of EVN's total capacity

EVN has a total capacity of 2,240 MW for electricity generation, 563 MW of which are based on renewable energy

sources.

. /‘ 8 3 MW from hydropower

109 MW in Austria: 5 storage power stations and 67 run-of-river
power stations (thereof 63 in Lower Austria, 9 in Styria)

74 MW in South Eastern Europe: 48 MW from 11 hydropower
plants in Macedonia and 26 MW from the Ashta hydropower plant
in Albania

-
m MW of hydropower purchasing rights

Electricity purchasing rights rights from the Danube power plants in
Melk, Greifenstein and Freudenau, the investment in the Nussdorf
power plant in Vienna and the investments in 13 Verbund Inn River
power plants in Germany

. 2 /‘ 3 MW windpower

197 MW in Lower Austria: 105 windpower plants in 14 windparks
16 MW in South Eastern Europe: 8 windpower plants in Bulgaria

/‘ 3 MW from biomass-fired combined heat and power plants

3 biomass-fired combined heat and power plants in Lower Austria

B 5 MWp solar power

1.7 MWp in Lower Austria: photovoltaic plants with a capacity of
0.6 MWp in Zwentendorf and 1.1 MWp in Schonkirchen
2.8 MWp in South Eastern Europe: 2 photovoltaic plants in Bulgaria

2 6 MW from other renewable sources

26 MW in Moscow: 2 sludge-fired combined heat and power
plants

A GRIindicator: Installed capacity (EU1)

Innovations for a sustainable energy future
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Innovation management at EVN is organised as an interdisciplinary network. Its central responsibilities include the systematic moni-
toring of the environment and the detection of technologies and trends that are relevant for EVN in order to identify opportunities
for innovation at an early point in time. An important step to systematise this process was taken in 2013/14 with the start of the
“EVN trend monitor”. Following the identification of trends and technologies by EVN’s managers and experts, EVN employees
were invited to register as trend scouts for various trend clusters. These trend scouts monitor current developments, locate the
most important trends and provide interested employees with relevant information in the form of articles, videos, blogs etc. on
an Intranet platform. EVN's employees are also invited to share their know-how, interesting media reports and other information
sources over the trend monitor to enable a more comprehensive monitoring of current trends and future developments.



Intro — Check of facts

Another key building block for innovation management is the “EVN future lab”. Various future scenarios for the company’s operating
environment in 2030 were developed in line with the most important trends and used to pinpoint possible new future areas of activity
based on EVN's current core expertise.

Energy efficiency - demand side management

The volatility of windpower and solar power generation has created a range of new challenges for utility companies and also had an
effect on EVN's innovation, development and research strategy. In this connection, EVN is working to improve energy efficiency in
end customer households (among others through demand side management) and to store the surplus energy produced by renewable
energy carriers during peak generation periods — not least as a means of supporting network stability.

The storage alternatives currently under evaluation by EVN involve electrochemical storage in batteries, chemical storage in the
natural gas network and thermal storage in the form of heat:

- Hydrocarbons can be used as energy carriers for electricity generation and mobility in periods of high energy demand. Based
on the “"GECO” feasibility study — which investigated the conditions under which the storage of surplus renewable energy in the
natural gas network would generally be possible — the “wind2hydrogen” project is now testing possible operational scenarios,
operating conditions and business models in real time at a pilot plant.

- In Lichtenegg, EVN started to test the operational alternatives for battery storage during the reporting year. This “multifunctional
energy storage” study involves a real local network and is part of a small windpower plant project.

The optimisation of decentralised household photovoltaic equipment also makes an important contribution to network stability and
supply security. In a joint project with a research partner, EVN defined the optimal configuration for household equipment based on
individual consumption behaviour. The goal was to maximise the household’s own use and thereby reduce the burden on the elec-
tricity network in advance. The voltage monitor introduced by EVN in 2013/14 also helps to protect voltage quality by mounting the
device on the feeder near the meter and gradually reducing the feed-in when there is an excessive voltage increase.

Sustainable energy generation and climate protection

EVN has set a goal to generate 50% of its electricity production from renewable energy sources over the medium term. In order
to reach this goal, approx. EUR 140m will be invested to expand windpower generation capacity in Lower Austria over the coming
years. Plans call for an increase from the current level of 213 MW on 30 September 2014 to 300 MW over the medium term. Work is
also proceeding on a number of innovation projects to develop new methods for electricity generation from renewable energies and
additional methods to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

- The research and development projects CO2SEPPL (CO, separation from flue gas) and CO2USE (production of bioplastics with
microorganisms, CO, and sunlight) were successfully continued during the reporting year. Most of the projects’ goals were
reached together with the participating partners Andritz, the Graz University of Technology and the University of Natural
Resources and Life Sciences, Vienna.

- Sludge2energy: This process is based on the decentralised connection of sewage sludge drying with subsequent mono-
combustion and electricity generation by means of a gas turbine. It guarantees the optimal reduction of the sewage sludge
volume and mass. No external thermal energy is needed due to the independent (self-sufficient) combustion and drying process,
and most of the residual waste material can be recycled (e.g. in construction).
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Electricity: network quality — the focal point of investments

Supply security with electricity: efficient infrastructure and access to basic supplies

In order to hold supply security at the current high level, EVN has defined network quality as the focal point of its investments. The expan-
sion and maintenance of the distribution and transmission networks therefore continued during the reporting year. This agenda will also
apply in the future: plans call for the investment of approx. EUR 700m in Lower Austria’s network infrastructure over the next four years.
Another focus for EVN is the continuous improvement of efficiency in its power plants, above all through certifications (e. g. under EMAS).
The related projects are designed to reduce both the consumption of resources and emissions from electricity generation. The CSR target
discussions included the definition of concrete goals and measures to increase the efficiency of the thermal power plants, improve the
coverage ratio and support further energy savings in EVN's power plants. Information on the progress made in these areas during 2013/14
can be found in the CSR programme on page 233.

L1 For details on investment projects in the network infrastructure and power plants, see the following sections: Operating
highlights on page 15 and Segment reporting on page 129

Efficiency of long-distance lines and distribution networks

EVN's focus in Lower Austria is on the expansion and stabilisation of the network infrastructure, while activities in Bulgaria and Macedonia
are concentrated on the further reduction of network losses. Network losses” have been cut steadily from 17% to less than 11% in
Bulgaria and from 24% to less than 16% in Macedonia since market entry. In Austria, network losses remain stable at a low level of
slightly over 4%. The mean supply interruption — which was calculated according to the Average System Interruption Frequency Index
(ASIFI) generally used in Austria — equalled 0.71 for the 2013 calendar year. That is substantially lower than the Austrian average of 1.03.
An ASIFI value of 0.71 means that EVN's customers experience less than one power failure per year. The average annualised duration of
unplanned power interruptions, as calculated according to the Average System Interruption Duration Index (ASIDI), equalled 31.53 min-
utes in 2013/14 and was thereby also below the Austrian average of 33.96 minutes (E-Control, press release, August 2014).

A GRI indicators: Efficiency of long-distance lines and distribution networks (EU12); Frequency and duration of power failures
(EU28 and 29)

Efficiency of EVN’s power plants
The average efficiency level (fuel utilisation as a per cent of energy production) in EVN's natural gas-fired power plants in Austria and
Bulgaria equalled 71.3%2? in 2013/14. The comparable value for EVN'’s coal-fired power plants averaged 50.3%.

A GRIindicator: Efficiency (EU11)

Availability of EVN's power plants

Regular inspection and maintenance procedures are carried out to ensure uninterrupted operations and the technical safety of
EVN's power plants. These activities are connected with planned and coordinated downtime. EVN's natural gas power plants in
Korneuburg and Theild achieved 100% availability in 2013/14, with the exception of scheduled inspections. The unplanned down-
times of the coal-fired power plants in DUrnrohr and Duisburg-Walsum equalled 0.6% and 4.7%, respectively. EVN’s windparks were
in service roughly 96% of the time during the reporting year. These windpark statistics do not differentiate between scheduled and
unscheduled downtime.

A GRIindicator: Average availability of power plants (EU30)

1) A direct comparison of network losses is not possible due to the differences in the customer and network structures in EVN's various supply areas.
2) Value weighted by capacity
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Intro — Check of facts

. Westschiene” pipeline considerably increases natural gas supply security

The completion of the Westschiene pipeline at the beginning of May 2014 marked a further decisive step by EVN to improve the
supply security for natural gas. The Westschiene pipeline has a length of 143 km and links the eastern interconnection point of
Netz NO GmbH in Auersthal with the measurement and grid hub of Energie AG (formerly OO Ferngas) in Kronstorf. This natural gas
transport pipeline runs from east to west and has a diameter of 800 mm. A special feature is the possibility to operate the pipeline
in both directions, which means the natural gas flow can be switched as needed from east to west or from west to east. In this way,
the storage facilities operated by EVN's subsidiary Roholaufsuchungs AG (RAG) in Upper Austria (Puchkirchen, Haidach and Seven
Fields) can be filled during the summer months when less heating gas is normally required, while the higher winter demand can
be met by transporting natural gas from the storage facilities to Lower Austria. This natural gas pipeline is therefore an important
factor for the protection of supply security.

High supply security for drinking water

EVN, together with its subsidiaries EVN Wasser and WTE, is active in the provision of drinking water supplies and
wastewater purification. In this way, the company plays an important role in maintaining an intact water cycle.

In the area of drinking water supplies, EVN Wasser operates a 2,483 km pipeline network in Lower Austria which is fed from 104 wells
in protection zones covering 362 ha. This network supplied 503,900 persons, directly and indirectly, with 27.4 million m® of drinking
water in 2013/14. EVN Wasser handles cross-regional and local water supplies and constructs and operates wells and transport pipe-
lines. It also ensures the continuous functioning of the water network, for example through the operation of 148 pressure regulation
stations, as well as treatment and routine repairs. Last but not least, EVN Wasser improves the water quality in its supply area through
natural filter plants. EVN is planning further investments over the coming years to protect the security of drinking water supplies in
a quality that reflects spring water. The EVN subsidiary WTE is also active beyond Austria’s borders and provides fresh drinking water
every day to more than one million people in countries like Russia, Montenegro and Germany.

lIn the area of wastewater disposal, WTE treated roughly 155.0 million m? of wastewater in 2013 with a mean purification perfor-
mance of 89%". That represents service for roughly 1.5 million residents. The sewage sludge from this process is used for agricultural
applications and compost production, deposited in a landfill or used to generate heat. WTE has planned and built 100 wastewater treat-
ment plants since its founding, and a further nine plants for 2.6 million residents are currently under construction. This subsidiary is also
responsible for operations at 22 of these plants. WTE's plants purify the wastewater from approx. 18.8 million people and return it to the
water cycle.

1) Average value over the parameters for chemical oxygen requirements, biological oxygen requirements, total nitrogen and total phosphorous.
The per cent value means that 89% of the pollutants were removed.
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The wastewater disposal cycle

How residual products from wastewater purification are transformed into energy and how the purified water helps
to maintain the drinking water cycle.

Wastewater disposal is essential not only for maintaining the water cycle, but also for protecting drinking water supplies. State-
of-the-art technologies have made it possible for EVN's subsidiary WTE to develop a practical use for the previously unpopular
by-products from wastewater and waste disposal. With the help of four different technologies, WTE transforms these by-products
into renewable energy carriers.

Co-generation plants

The operation of wastewater treatment plants requires substantial amounts of energy. When integrated as a module in the purifi-
cation plant, a co-generation aggregate allows for nearly energy-autonomous operations. The biogas from the clarification process
and sludge treatment is converted into electricity through incineration and used to operate the equipment or transformed into heat
and used to dry the sewage sludge.

Thermal waste utilisation

The thermal utilisation of waste has proven to be an ecologically practical solution for energy generation. EVN Umwelt uses the
heat released by the incineration process for heating operations and for the preparation of warm and hot water. The resulting
steam is used to drive turbines.

Sludge incineration

The sludge incineration process used by EVN's subsidiary WTE is based on the biological cleaning of wastewater. The sewage sludge
is dried and then incinerated. The resulting heat can be used for energy-autonomous plant operations, to dry the sewage sludge, to
generate hot water for steam-driven turbines or for long-distance heating.

Wastewater treatment
EVN's subsidiary WTE also uses energy exchangers to convert the heat released by wastewater treatment into energy. This energy is
used to operate the equipment or fed into the public network. First pilot projects were already calculated.

Benchmark project: the Mia Milia/Haspolat energy-generating wastewater purification plant

One of the largest membrane bioreactors in Europe was opened in the Cypriote capital of Nicosia in April 2014. EVN's subsidiary
WTE was responsible for its construction and will now take over operations for a period of 10 years. This plant, which has a capa-
city to clean the wastewater for roughly 270,000 residents, generates biogas through sewage sludge treatment and digesting. The
biogas is then used in co-generation plants to produce energy and heat.
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EVN is a leading, international, listed energy and environ-
mental services company. Its headquarters are located in
Lower Austria, the largest Austrian province.

EVN is currently active in 16 countries and employed an average
workforce of 7,314 during the 2013/14 financial year. The company’s
main operating locations are Austria, Bulgaria, Macedonia and
Germany, each defined by a workforce of more than 100. The major
activities of the EVN Group are combined under the national and
international energy business (energy generation, network opera-
tions including cable TV and telecommunications and energy supply)
and the environmental services business (drinking water supply,
wastewater disposal and thermal waste utilisation), which are com-
plemented by strategic investments. EVN is divided into six segments
for management purposes, which also correspond to IFRS reporting
requirements: Generation, Energy Trade and Supply, Network Infra-
structure Austria, Energy Supply South East Europe, Environmental
Services as well as Strategic Investments and Other Business.

A GRI indicators: Organisational profile: Overview of pro-
ducts (G4-4); Location of the organisation’s headquarters
(G4-5); Locations of significant operations (G4-6); Scale of
the organisation (G4-9)

: Regional coverage in the energy business
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1) EVN share: 13%
2) EVN share: 49%
3) EVN share: 50%
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Energy business

EVN follows an integrated business model that covers the entire value
chain in the energy business. These activities include energy genera-
tion, the operation of energy distribution networks and the delivery of
energy to end customers. The company is active in the areas of elec-
tricity, natural gas and heat — with different focal points in the indi-
vidual markets. EVN provides a full range of these services in Lower
Austria, while business activities in Bulgaria and Macedonia involve
the operation of electricity networks and electricity supplies to end
customers. Heat is also sold to end customers in Bulgaria. EVN sells
natural gas to end customers in Croatia, distributes energy through

EnergieAllianz in Germany and also operates a coal-fired power
plant there. In Albania, EVN plays an important role in the country’s
energy supply through the operation of the Ashta hydropower plant.

Energy generation

EVN can rely on a balanced mix of energy generation capacity. In
Austria, the company operates natural gas- and black coal-fired
power plants as well as plants that use renewable sources (hydro-
power, windpower and solar energy) for energy generation. This
combination of thermal generation plants and generation capacity
from renewable sources is important to ensure reliable supplies for
customers at all times. A key aspect in this regard is the ability to

EVN power generation capacities mw  30.09.2014 30.09.2013
Renewable energy 563 550
thereof hydropower" 306 307
thereof windpower 213 200
thereof photovoltaics 5 3
thereof biomass 13 13
thereof other renewables? 26 26
Thermal energy? 1,677 1,487
thereof natural gas 1,038 1,088
thereof coal 639 398
Total 2,240 2,037

1) Incl. purchasing rights from hydropower plants along the Danube at Melk, Greifenstein and Freudenau and from
investments in the hydropower plants Nussdorf in Vienna and Ashta in Albania as well as in Verbund-Innkraftwerke GmbH

2) Contains two sludge-fired combined heat and power plants in Moscow

3) Incl. co-generation and combined heat and power plants in Austria and Bulgaria; change in presentation of

thermal power plant capacities in 2013/14 from gross output to net output

Photovoltaics
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supplement the volatile generation from renewable energy sources
with predictable feed-in volumes that are available on short-term
from conventional facilities. This supply stability is ensured, above
all, by the thermal power generation plants (the gas-fired power
plants in Theiss and Korneuburg, the coal-fired power plants in
Dirnrohr and Duisburg-Walsum) and hydropower from EVN's five
pump storage power plants. The energy generated by these plants
is generally sold at market prices in Austria, while the prices in South
Eastern Europe are regulated. Subsidised feed-in tariffs apply to the
energy generated by windpower and photovoltaic plants in Austria
for a period of 13 years in each case. In Bulgaria, EVN generates
electricity in eight windpower plants and two photovoltaic plants.
The windpower electricity is charged at subsidised feed-in tariffs for
twelve years, and photovoltaic electricity can be fed into the net-
work at subsidised tariffs for 20 years. In Macedonia, EVN generates
electricity in eleven small hydropower plants which is sold at market
prices.

L1  For details on the generation capacity from renewable
energy see page 24

A GRIindicator: Installed capacity (EU1)
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Corporate profile and resources — Energy business

Network operations

For the distribution of electricity and natural gas, EVN operates elec-
tricity networks in Lower Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia and nat-
ural gas networks in Lower Austria and Croatia. The operation of
these networks is based on a regulated business model under which
the tariffs charged by the network operator for the distribution of
electricity and natural gas are determined by the respective regula-
tory authority. The increased use of renewable energy sources, espe-
cially in windpower and photovoltaic plants, has created substantial
challenges for the stability of networks due to the high volatility of
the generated electricity volumes.

In addition to electricity and natural gas transmission, network oper-
ations also include cable TV, Internet and telecommunications ser-
vices in Lower Austria and the neighbouring province of Burgenland.
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: EVN heat generation by thermal energy source

: EVN electricity generation by thermal energy source

in%

1.1 Fuel oil
25.6 Natural gas

2012/13

2013/14

in%
57.5
47.2 47.0 Other (waste utilisation)
wen 0.8
35.2 Coal
Natural gas”

1.2
e

2012/13 2013/14

1) Thereof 291,844 MWh own generation in Bulgaria (co-generation plant)

__ EVN heat generation by renewable energy source

__ EVN electricity generation by renewable energy source

in%

in %

w
o
w

27.8

Other renewables”

Windpower
Hydropower?

73.6 73.3
284 26.7 Biomass
77 9.4 Heat from combined
heat and power
37.5 372 Steam from waste
incineration
2012/13 2013/14

A GRIindicator: Energy generation (EU2)

Energy distribution/networks (EU4) 30.09.2014
Electricity networks

Power lines 137,250 km
Customers 3,308,000
Sales volumes 2013/14 20,908 GWh
Natural gas networks"

Natural gas pipelines 13,897 km
Customers 292,400
Sales volumes 2013/14 14,143 GWh
Other?

Customer units cable TV and telecommunications 219,000

1) In Austria and Croatia
2) In Austria
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2012/13 2013/14

1) Incl. electricity generation from biomass, photovoltaics and other
renewable energy sources
2) Thereof 135,314 MWh own generation in Macedonia (hydropower plants)

Energy supply
Electricity is sold to Austrian end customers in a market that was

liberalised during 2001, while the natural gas market has been liber-
alised since 2002. The prices are determined by supply and demand.
EVN's energy offering is complemented by competitively priced heat
from over 60 biomass plants, which makes the company Austria’s
largest supplier of natural heat. In addition to a wide range of tariff
models that are designed to meet the individual needs of customers,
EVN offers a wide variety of energy services from a single hand. Due
to its attractive service and support portfolio the EVN brand enjoys
high positive recognition, above all in its home market of Lower
Austria. This forms the basis for strong customer loyalty and makes
EVN the market leader in Lower Austria. In South Eastern Europe,
the energy markets are moving towards liberalisation. The market
for industrial customers in Bulgaria and Macedonia has already been
liberalised, whereas sales to household customers are still based on
regulated prices. The tariffs in Bulgaria, where EVN also sells heat



T you want to continue supplying
spring-fresh drinking water tomorrow

Despite the fact that we take

it for granted, clean water is a
valuable good. And high-quality
drinking water is impossible
without the responsible use of
natural water reserves. In our
own interest — and in the
interest of future generations.

from its co-generation plant in Plovdiv to customers, are set by the
regulatory authority.

EVN supplies roughly one million electricity, natural gas and heat
customers in Lower Austria, approx. 1.7 million electricity and heat
customers in Bulgaria and nearly 800,000 electricity customers in
Macedonia. The natural gas supply business along the Dalmatian
Coast in Croatia is currently under development, and the first cus-
tomers have already been connected to the network.

Energy supply 30.09.2014
Electricity

Sales volumes 2013/14 19,317 GWh
Natural gas

Sales volumes 2013/14 5,383 GWh
Heating

Heating lines 705 km
Customers 81,900
Sales volumes 2013/14 1,991 GWh

you need to think about the
entire water cycle today

Environmental services business

Environmental services represent the second major business for
EVN and are classified in three areas: water supply, thermal waste
utilisation and the international project business. In Lower Austria,
EVN supplies more than 500,000 residents directly or indirectly with
drinking water. A strong reputation as a reliable electricity, natural
gas and heat provider has led numerous communities to entrust EVN
with water networks that they can no longer operate efficiently. In
this area, EVN is recording steady growth. The operation of a thermal
waste utilisation plant in Dirnrohr not only relies on state-of-the-art
technology to make a significant contribution to waste disposal;
but the heat released by the incineration process is used to supply
EVN'’s customers in the provincial capital of St.Pdlten. Through its
subsidiary WTE, EVN has realised more than 100 international pro-
jects in the areas of drinking water supply, waste water disposal and
thermal waste utilisation in 18 countries across Western, Eastern
and South Eastern Europe. The projects involve the design and con-
struction of plants by EVN as well as operational management after
completion if requested by the customer. Project financing is also
arranged in some cases. These projects are generally commissioned
by cities and communities in the above-mentioned regions, with the
orders resulting from competitive international tenders.
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Drinking water/wastewater 30.09.2014 Strategic Investments
Drinking water supply in Austria EVN's strategic investments represent the logical vertical expansion
Customers 503,900 of the value chain. The investments in Verbund AG and Burgenland
thereof directly supplied 87,000 Holding AG, which, in turn, holds 49% of Energie Burgenland AG,
Water pipes 2,483 km allow EVN to benefit from the companies’ concentration on renew-
Sales volumes 2013/14 27.4 Mio. m? able electricity generation from water and wind. Rohél-Aufsuchungs
Drinking water/wastewater in Central, AG (RAG) gives EVN a valuable link to oil and gas exploration and the
Eastern and South Eastern Europe natural gas storage business in Austria.
Drinking and wastewater projects 108
thereof completed 96 A
- P — - Strategic investments 30.09.2014
thereof installed drinking water capacity 1,183,500 PE" -
- - 5 Verbund AG (EVN WEEV Beteiligungs GmbH) —
thereof installed wastewater capacity 16,182,000 PE power generation, trading and transport 12.63%
1) Population equivalent (PE): Industrial wastewater converted to household water Burgenland Holding Aktiengesellschaft
(Energie Burgenland AG) —
regional electricity and natural gas supply 73.60%
Waste incineration 30.09.2014 RAG-Beteiligungs-AG (Rohél-Aufsuchungs AG) —
Austria oil and natural gas exploration and gas storage 50.03%
Plant in Zwentendorf/Dlrnrohr — annual capacity 500,000 t
intemnational A GRIindicator: Organisational profile: Brands, products and
Plant in Moscow — annual capacity 360,000 t services (G4-3)

Markets in the environmental business

. _ad
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Drinking water Wastewater
projects projects
Austria” [ ] [
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Cyprus [ ]
Czech Republic [}
Germany [ ] [
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Poland [ ]
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1) Thermal waste utilisation plant, drinking water supply
2) Thermal waste utilisation plant

c’/ A GRIlindicator: Markets (G4-8)



Strategy and values

Mission statement and values

Our long-term strategy is expressed in our vision and mission and also
communicated in the corporate policy statement and values of EVN.

Our vision

As an energy and environmental services provider, EVN meets the
daily needs of its customers and makes a sustainable contribution
to their quality of life by providing reliable, high-quality services. We
want to provide our customers with the supply security they are
accustomed to, not only at the present time but also in the future.
In doing so, top priority is given to actions that protect the environ-
ment and climate — because that is the only way to ensure sustain-
able economic success in the long run.

Our mission
In realising our vision, we respect the needs of all our stakeholders.

For our customers, we offer competitive prices and highest-quality
products and services. For our shareholders, we aim to achieve a
sustainable increase in value. For our employees, we create attrac-
tive working conditions. With our stakeholders, we maintain an
active dialogue. This contributes to our high social acceptance, as
does the focus on fairness in our supplier relationships.

Environmental and climate protection play a central role in all our
activities. We rely on outstanding know-how, a high level of effi-
ciency, state-of-the-art infrastructure and a constant willingness
to innovate to ensure the responsible use of natural resources and
the continuous reduction of CO, emissions. This forms the basis for
sustainable performance in the provision of electricity, natural gas,
heating, drinking water, wastewater treatment and waste incinera-
tion services.

Based in Lower Austria, EVN has expanded its business activities
to the dynamically growing region of Central and South Eastern
Europe. Our objective is to also realise sustainable success in these
new markets based on the application of our proven principles and
values.

In order to fulfil our mission, we have developed a system of values
that is binding for the entire Group. The individual components of
this system are described below.

Our values

EVN's values and managerial mission statement are based on the
terms “ensure, encourage, enable”. With these terms, EVN clearly
defines — both internally and externally — how it intends to act
and how it wants to be perceived by its stakeholders. The publica-
tion of the values in German, English, Bulgarian and Macedonian

[]]
Our values

ensure

We ensure quality and corporate success

- We are committed to continuity and safety.

Our employees are willing to perform, competent, reliable and
quality conscious.

- Each employee ensures that we are able to implement our
strategy and provide energy and environmental services to our
customers in the best possible way.

- This position of the EVN Group ensures healthy growth.

encourage

We encourage people.

- The way we think and act encourages people.

- Both good atmosphere and a positive working climate are
as important to our corporate success as our employees’
development.

- We are the right company for people who love to learn and
who — if necessary — also offer constructive criticism.

We enable the future.
- We do not only talk, we also enable things.
We always choose the correct and solution-oriented way.
- Whatever we do, we always keep the environment from
which we generate energy in mind.
- We are committed to sustainability in all fields.

N
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underscores their binding nature across countries and through-
out the Group, while also emphasising the focus on EVN's core
markets.

O The managerial mission statement is available online
at www.evn.at/EVN-Group/responsibility/employees/
hrprinciples.aspx.

EVN Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct includes corporate principles and behavioural
guidelines for all employees of the EVN Group, above and beyond
legal requirements. It represents a binding foundation for day-to-
day business activities and is based on reliability, transparency, trust
and quality in interactions with internal and external partners. The
Code of Conduct also promotes responsible, self-reliant actions.

O The Code of Conduct is available at
www.evn.at/code-of-conduct.aspx.

Integrity clause for suppliers

EVN uses an integrity clause for suppliers, which includes guide-
lines for sustainable procurement and defines suppliers’ duties and
responsibilities.

O The integrity clause is available at
www.evn.at/integrity-clause.

Environmental policy statement

EVN's environmental policy statement includes the following goals:
- Minimisation of environmental impact
Sustainability

Improved environmental performance
State-of-the-art environmental engineering
Resource conservation and climate protection
Landscape conservation

Waste management

Energy consulting

Workforce motivation

N N 2 R N

o

The environmental policy statement is available (in German
only) online at www.evn.at/EVN-Group/Verantwortung/
Okologie.aspx.

A GRI indicator: Values, principles, standards and norms of
behaviour (G4-56)
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Short- and medium-term implemen-
tation of the corporate strategy:
consolidation and selective growth

EVN's activities in the energy business are based on a proven inte-
grated business model which covers generation, network opera-
tions and energy trading and sales (also see page 30ff). Against the
backdrop of the current situation on the energy markets, EVN is
working to consolidate the business activities in its core markets.
The company has defined Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia as its
core markets — whereby the scope of the value chain is different in
each country. Plans also call for optimising the timing of business
activities in Croatia. Continuous efficiency improvements at all levels
of the value chain are an important element of this concept. The
focal point of EVN's consolidation course is the protection of supply
security, which is also given high priority on the materiality matrix.
The continuous expansion and improvement of its energy networks
allows EVN to meet these challenges, which are also influenced by
regulatory requirements and the expansion of renewable generation
capacity in the company’s network area.

The goal set by EVN for electricity production calls for a coverage
ratio of 30%. This refers to the share of electricity sales which can
be met with internal generation and/or is covered by electricity
procurement rights. The current ratio equals 22.8% (previous year:
18.3%). The commissioning of the Prellenkirchen IV windpark and
the Duisburg-Walsum coal-fired power plant in the reporting period
made an important contribution to improving the coverage ratio.
EVN's strategy also includes an increase in the generation from
renewable energy sources from the present level of 42.5% to 50%.
In addition to the further expansion of windpower capacity in Lower
Austria, regional projects in the areas of hydropower, biomass and
photovoltaic will help to meet this goal. This focus on generation
from renewable energies underscores EVN’s commitment to its
economic and ecological responsibility and also helps to safeguard
energy supplies.

A GRI indicator: Planned capacity in relation to expected
demand (EU10)



Strategy and values — Mission statement and values, Corporate strategy, Materiality matrix

EVN materiality matrix 2014

very important to stakeholders

sustainable energy generation ) | )
e and climate protection ©_©_€nviromental protection and

security of supply o
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resource conservation

P sustainable increase
in corporate value

. 1
responsible employer
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supply chain |
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o corruption prevention
o stakeholder dialogue
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- o
human rights

O One EVN
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very important to EVN

The vertical Y axis shows the assessment of our external stakeholders, thus how important (“material”) certain issues defined by external experts are evaluated.
In turn, the horizontal X axis shows the internal assessment of EVN. Accordingly, for example, “security of supply” and “customer focus” are two areas of action

which are considered to be very material for EVN, both internally and externally.

In the environmental services business, EVN's strategy is based on
continuous growth in water supply services in Lower Austria and
the sustainable operation of the thermal waste utilisation plant in
Durnrohr. International projects are realised on a selective basis and
with coverage for political risks.

The consolidation measures implemented by EVN ensure steady,
sustainable growth in the core markets. This supports the genera-
tion of continuous stable cash flows, which help to further optimise
working capital. With this strategy, EVN protects the financing of
its investments and safeguards stable dividends. The EVN Group's
investment activities are concentrated in Lower Austria. The priori-
ties include maintaining high standards in the electricity and natural
gas networks, the further expansion of energy generation from
renewable sources and drinking water supplies.

L1 Details on the investment projects are provided in the
section on operating highlights, see page 15.

Continuous alignment of corporate
strategy with stakeholders’ interests

The topicality and relevance of EVN's strategic areas of activity
are reviewed regularly through a dialogue with the company’s
internal and external stakeholders. EVN carries out regular stake-
holder surveys to systematise and structure its stakeholder relation-
ships. The latest survey conducted in spring 2014 led to the adjust-
ment and further development of EVN's materiality matrix, which
now includes the following six central areas of activity:

1. Supply security

stands for the reliable supply of electricity, natural gas, heat and
water. The expansion of generation capacity, high technical network
quality, the integration of renewable energy sources (among others
by offering storage solutions), a flexible generation mix and prepara-
tions for crisis situations play an important role in this area.
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2. Focus on customers

stands for high customer satisfaction based on the fair and trans-
parent design of prices and services as well as understandable and
reasonable products and services for electricity, natural gas, heat
and water.

3. Sustainable increase in shareholder value

stands for economical business oriented activities, adaptation to
a dynamic environment through targeted innovations, a value-
oriented investment strategy, stable dividend development, fairness
and transparency.

4. Responsible employer

stands for the creation and protection of jobs, the responsible devel-
opment of human resources, health and workplace safety, open
communication, work-family balance, training and education as
well as diversity and equal opportunity.

5. Environmental protection and resource conservation
stands for the environmentally-friendly use of energy, water and
waste disposal services, the systematicimprovement of our impact on
the environment and the efficient and responsibility use of energy
and resources.

6. Sustainable energy generation and climate protection
stands for the expansion of renewable energies, the minimisation of
negative effects on the environment, efficiency improvement as well
as innovation, development and research activities.

/A GRIl indicators: Boundaries for material aspects
inside and outside the organisation (G4-20 & -21)

L1 For details on the 2014 stakeholder survey and EVN's
stakeholder management, see page 50ff.

O Details on the current CSR programme can be found
beginning on page 233 of this report and on the EVN web-
site under www.evn.at/CSR-strategy/CSR-programme.

O The EVN materiality matrix, including explanations, can be
accessed under www.evn.at/CSR-strategy/CSR-materiali-
ty-matrix.
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Success and influencing factors

The stability and efficiency of EVN's energy distribution networks are
central factors for ensuring supply security — the key strategic area of
activity for EVN in relation to its stakeholders — and for protecting
the Group's sustainable economic success. The continuous improve-
ment of these networks therefore represents one of the focal points
of EVN's strategic investments. In South Eastern Europe, the mod-
ernisation of the networks and the implementation of measures to
prevent electricity theft are sustainably reducing network losses. The
development of earnings in the network business is significantly
dependent on the regulatory environment and the tariff system.

In the area of energy generation, EVN ensures supply security by
generating a balanced share of its energy requirements with its own
facilities and by maintaining a flexible mix of generation from ther-
mal and renewable capacities. The high importance given to two
strategic areas of activity in the EVN materiality matrix — “sustain-
able energy generation and climate protection” and “environmental
protection and resource conservation” — is reflected in the impor-
tance placed on the expansion of energy generation from renew-
able sources and the continuous improvement of generation and
distribution efficiency. The earnings from thermal energy generation
are dependent on the development of primary energy prices and
selling prices on the European electricity market. Earnings from the
generation and sale of renewable energy are dependent on regu-
lated feed-in tariffs, and on water flow and wind conditions. The
on-going analysis of these relevant factors allows EVN to actively
utilise the optimisation potential of its own generation activities.

In the area of electricity and natural gas trading, EVN uses vari-
ous hedging strategies to counter the volatility on the markets for
primary energy, electricity procurement and electricity sales. The
company’s integrated business model — above all the flexible use of
own generation capacities — creates a natural hedge for the electric-
ity business. Earnings from the generation of heat from biomass are
dependent on the cost of the purchased biogenic fuels. Selling
prices are indexed by linking the related contracts to official indexes.
The sales volumes of electricity, natural gas and heat are influenced
by the temperature, whereby the highest sales volumes are recorded
during the winter months.
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In the area of environmental services, the security of fresh water
supplies for drinking water is of key importance. The focus here is
on the connection of wells and well fields as well as quality improve-
ments through the construction of natural filter plants based on
state-of-the-art technology and environmental standards in order to
ensure a sustainable, high quality and long-term supply at fair prices.
The demand for solutions in the international project business is
influenced by the financing capabilities of the public sector cus-
tomers. A broad international focus and the successful completion
of over 100 projects have given EVN a reputation as a recognised
expert for the competent realisation of projects for municipal waste
water disposal, drinking water purification and thermal waste utili-
sation in Central, South Eastern and Eastern Europe. EVN serves as
the general contractor for these projects and is therefore respon-

Stable profitability

Solid Capital Structure

sible for planning and turnkey construction as well as subsequent
operation where desired. Through so-called PPP models (Public
Private Partnership), EVN also arranges the financing without taking
on any economic risks for the respective facility.

The strategic investments make an important and valuable contribu-
tion to EVN's vertical integration as well as to the supply security for
electricity and natural gas. This is true, above all, for the investments
in Verbund AG and the Inn River power plants that support elec-
tricity generation. Natural gas storage in Austria has also become
an important issue, in particular due to the current international
crises and the related direct threats to natural gas supplies. With the
investment in Rohoél-Aufsuchungs AG (RAG) EVN holds gas storage

facilities in Austria in its portfolio.
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Financial strategy

As a utility company with a high sense of responsibility toward all
its stakeholders, EVN is also committed to maintaining a sound
financial position and minimising risk in its financing activities.

EVN's management uses the following financial indicators for evalu-
ating the attainment of financial goals:

Financial indicators 30.09.2014 30.09.2013
Equity ratio 38.5% 43.2%
Net Debt Coverage (FFO) 41.3% 38.3%
Interest Cover (FFO) 8.1x 8.8 x
Payout ratio - 65.3%

EVN's debt structure is designed to maximise the long-term nature
of the company’s financing instruments, achieve a balanced matu-
rity structure and diversify the financing partners while also opti-
mising financing costs. Capital market financing plays an important
role in this process because it provides access to longer maturities at
attractive conditions as well as greater independence from the loan
markets. Approximately 42.9% of the financial liabilities outstanding
as of 30 September 2014 represented bonds, private placements
and promissory note loans. The key requirements for access to the
capital market are the external ratings and the framework docu-
mentation for capital market financing (debt issuance programme).

Other goals for financial management include maximising the plan-
ning ability of future debt service and minimising financial risks.
Accordingly, all foreign currency financing is hedged against foreign
exchange risks when the related contracts are concluded. The pre-
dictability of future debt service is allowed for by a high share of
fixed interest financing.
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In the lending area, EVN works together with Austrian and inter-
national banks as well as multilateral financial institutions. For exam-
ple, a EUR 150.0m loan agreement with a tenor of 25 years was
concluded with the European Investment Bank in November 2013
for the expansion of network infrastructure in Lower Austria.

EVN's short-term financing requirements were secured by credit
commitments totalling EUR 575.0m as of 30 September 2014.
These commitments serve primarily as a liquidity reserve to pro-
tect the company’s financial flexibility and were not used during
the 2013/14 financial year. They include bilateral commitments by
six banks for a total volume of EUR 175.0m with remaining terms
of up to five years as well as a syndicated, revolving credit line of
EUR 400.0m. In view of the attractive market environment, EVN refi-
nanced the syndicated credit line prematurely in July 2014 through
an agreement with a consortium of twelve international banks. The
new loan agreement has a five-year term with two one-year exten-
sion options. This refinancing also involved a reduction in the origi-
nal loan volume from EUR 500.0m to EUR 400.0m in line with EVN's
lower financing requirements.

The borrowing and investment of liquid funds is carried out cen-
trally by EVN AG for all corporate units. Two financing subsidiar-
ies, EVN Finanzservice GmbH and EVN Projektmanagement GmbH,
serve as management companies for intragroup cash pooling and
loans. Loans are also concluded directly by the Group companies in
exceptional cases, for example to manage risk or improve the use
of hedges against political risks, but these transactions always take
place in close coordination with the Group Finance Department.

L1 A description of the financial transactions carried out dur-
ing the reporting year and the balance sheet structure is
provided in this full report beginning on page 115.

L1 An overview of the long-term financial liabilities can be
found on page 193f of the notes.



Strategy and values — Financial strategy, Rating, Value management

Rating

EVN uses the services of two rating agencies, Moody’s and
Standard & Poor’s, on a regular basis. Their ratings, which are based
on objective credit ratings, give EVN flexible access to capital market
financing outside the banking sector at attractive conditions and
with longer terms.

The structural and economic challenges in the energy sector are
also reflected in the rating agency estimates for the European util-
ity companies. Subduing factors such as the on-going pressure on
generation margins naturally have an effect on the credit standing
of EVN. Conversely, the ratings are positively influenced, above all,
by the stable and regulated core business in the network area of the
Lower Austrian home market. The two agencies’ ratings for EVN
remained generally unchanged during the 2013/14 financial year:
Standard & Poor’s confirmed its BBB+ (stable outlook) in April and
July 2014, while Moody's retained its A3 rating, but reduced the
outlook from stable to negative in July.

EVN therefore met its goal to maintain a rating in the good invest-
ment grade segment during the 2013/14 financial year.

Value management

One of the most important goals for EVN's management is to real-
ise a long-term increase in operating value added. EVN measures
this performance indicator based on Economic Value Added (EVA®),
which compares net profit after tax with the weighted average cost
of capital employed. Since this calculation neutralises the cost of
capital, it highlights the actual operating value added by a company.

EVA® is calculated by multiplying the difference between the return

on capital employed (ROCE) and the weighted average cost of
capital (WACC) by the average capital employed.
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When you want to sustaina
protect enerqgy supplies

Evolution not revolution. Every change in our
energy system requires responsible actions,

an intuitive feeling and a balance between the
use of new, regenerative energy and supply
security. As a pioneer in this system change,
EVN is well-equipped not only to step forward
into a sustainable energy future, but also to
ensure reliable supplies here and today. EVN's
moderate, integrated approach, long-standing
experience and solid capital structure form
the basis for sustainable success — even in a
challenging market environment.
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Stakenolgers

EVN strives to ensure equal treatment of the interests of all its stakeholders.
The following chapter provides information on the individual stakeholder groups.

As a responsible energy and environmental services provider, EVN
is committed to balanced and equal treatment of the interests and
requirements of all stakeholder groups. Based on this fundamen-
tal orientation, EVN sees the dimensions “People”, “Environment”
and “Economy” as three interrelated parts of a whole and works to
achieve a balance between any conflicts of interest.

The publication of EVN's first environmental report in 1990 was
followed by continuous improvements over the following years and
subsequent development into a sustainability report in 2002. The
increasing importance of sustainability aspects for EVN's business
model has been reflected in the release of an integrated annual
report — a so-called “full report” — since the 2009/10 financial year.
The content of this report gives equal treatment to sustainability
aspects, financial information and corporate governance.
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The structure of the following chapters is based on the various
stakeholder groups and thereby intends to enable direct access to
information relevant to the individual addressees. All of the subjects
relevant for EVN's various stakeholder groups are given equal treat-
ment. The selection of the subjects and information is based on the
materiality matrix (see page 37).

An overview of the GRI indicators is provided on the end-cover
flap of this full report to facilitate the location of specific content.
References to the GRI indicators are also included in the corres-
ponding sections of the report. Links to additional information on
the EVN website and other publications are intended to limit the
scope of this report and supply detailed facts and figures on selected
issues and projects.



Governance, commitment
and engagement

Corporate governance and management structure

The management and organisational structure of the EVN is
described in the corporate governance report starting on page 97.
An overview of EVN’s major investments can be found on page 232.

Involvement of management and the highest governance
body in sustainability issues

The Executive Board of EVN is responsible for the continuous
development of the corporate strategy and for the preparation and
revision of corporate guidelines and policy statements. This work
is carried out in close coordination with the Supervisory Board
and is supported by steering committees and working groups that
are established for specific topics. A CSR steering committee was
installed to deal with questions regarding sustainability. It comprises
the entire management team, including the Executive Board, and
therefore reflects European best practice standards. This commit-
tee's broad composition allows for the targeted management of
CSR issues and continuous coordination with the corporate strategy
and operating segments’ goals.

A GRI indicator: Role of the highest governance body in
economic, ecological and social impacts, risks and oppor-
tunities (G4-42)

Assistance to the Executive Board and Supervisory Board on sus-
tainability issues is also provided by the Advisory Committee for
Environmental and Social Responsibility. This committee consists
of independent internal and external experts as well as employee
representatives. For guidance on issues related to social commit-
ment, the Executive Board can also call on the external experts who
serve on the advisory board of the EVN Social Fund (details on these
advisory boards can be found on page 47.). The stakeholder group
“customers” has been represented by a committee since 2011,
whose function is to intensify the customer dialogue. The Customer
Committee has 24 members who are selected to represent the inter-
ests of consumers from Lower Austria. The committee’s members
serve two-year terms, whereby the last appointments were made at
the beginning of 2013. The direct exchange of ideas and opinions
between various stakeholders and the members of the Executive
Board also takes place in a roundtable discussion as part of the
regular stakeholder surveys. The needs and concerns expressed by
the stakeholders flow directly into EVN's strategy in the form of the
strategic areas of activity that are derived from the surveys.

A GRI indicator: Consultation processes between stake-
holders and the highest governance body (G4-37)

The Supervisory Board is supplied with in-depth information on cur-
rent economic, ecological and social issues that are relevant for EVN

atan annual closed conference. Compliance was the main subject of
this conference in 2013/14. The Chief Compliance Officer reports to
the Supervisory Board twice each year on critical issues and concerns
at meetings of the Audit Committee. Independent of these meet-
ings, the Supervisory Board receives additional information on any
initial suspicions of violations that may represent an economic risk
to the company or damage to its reputation. The Audit Committee
of the Supervisory Board is informed of any initial suspicions of vio-
lations that may have material economic effects or cause damage to
the company’s reputation. The chairman of the Supervisory Board
is notified directly if there are any suspicions of severe compliance
violations involving the Executive Board members or if the Executive
Board fails to take action. No critical issues were reported to the
Supervisory Board during the reporting year.

A GRI indicators: Measures taken to develop and enhance
the highest governance body’s collective knowledge
of economic, environmental and social topics (G4-43);
Process for communicating critical concerns to the highest
governance body (G4-49); Nature and total number of
critical concerns communicated to the highest governance
body (G4-50); Anti-corruption training (SO-4)

Stakeholders have the opportunity to express their views on
management’s remuneration and the remuneration scheme at the
Annual General Meeting.

The remuneration scheme for key EVN managers was adjusted as

of 1 October 2010. Among others, the adjustment included the

following points:

= Inclusion of value-oriented indicators

- Inclusion of sustainable development factors for the respective
areas

A GRI indicator: Stakeholders’ views on management remu-
neration (G4-53)

Ethics and integrity

EVN’s dynamic international expansion in recent years was also con-
nected with new challenges in the areas of cultural diversity, values
and business ethics. In order to support the development of a shared
corporate culture across language barriers and national borders, EVN
issued a Code of Conduct. It explains the most important principles
and rules of conduct of EVN's corporate culture to its employees and
is available in German, English and the languages of the subsidiaries
in Bulgaria, Macedonia and Russia. The EVN Code of Conduct is
regularly adapted to reflect current developments, above all changes
in legal requirements. It is based on internal management directives
and the following international regulations:
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- UN Global Compact

- Universal Declaration on Human Rights (U.N.) and the
European Convention for the Protection of Human Rights and
Fundamental Freedoms

- |LO (International Labour Organisation) Tripartite Declaration of
Principles concerning Multinational Enterprises and Social Policy

- |LO Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work

- OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises

- OECD Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Public
Officials in International Business Transactions

- Austrian Corporate Governance Code

/A GRI indicator: Values, principles, and norms of behaviour
(G4-56)

In 2011/12, EVN’s compliance organisation was modified and fun-
damental decisions were taken concerning the implementation of a
compliance management system (CMS). The Corporate Compliance
Management Department (CCM), a staff department reporting
directly to the Executive Board, was created to establish, operate
and further develop the CMS.

A GRI
compliance and integrity (G4-57)

indicator: Internal and external mechanisms for

L1 Additional information on the compliance organisation can
be found in the corporate governance report on page 97f.

Extensive training for employees

Following the implementation of the modified compliance organi-
sation in 2012/13, activities in the reporting year focused on train-
ing sessions for employees as well as the introduction of internal
procedures for advising and reporting concerns related to ethical
and legal behaviour. The participation of managers is vital for the
establishment of a sustainable compliance culture due to their func-
tions as role models and contact partners for compliance-relevant
concerns. Five-hour, interactive and dialogue-oriented workshops
were therefore held in October 2013 for roughly 100 managers to
create a greater awareness for this issue. Similar workshops were
held for the managers in EVN's South Eastern European subsidiaries
from February to April 2014.

In order to spread and anchor CMS as strongly as possible through-
out the Group, the training for employees built directly on the
managers’ courses. The compliance officers responsible for the
respective departments explained EVN's CMS and the related
structures and processes to employees. The minimum standard for
these courses, which were held in small groups, was 2.5 hours. The
content was based on the ten subject areas defined in EVN's Code
of Conduct. A previous risk analysis led to the focus on the following
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issues, which were discussed by means of specific examples:
- Customers

- Capital market and investors

- Integrity and avoidance of corruption

- Data protection and confidentiality

A GRI indicator: Total hours of employee training on human
rights policies or procedures (HR2)

The compliance box “Compliance. It's good energy.” was developed
for these training courses. It can be used as a collection of resources
or reference work and was distributed to all participants at the
start of the training course. The box is available in German, English,
Bulgarian, Macedonian and Russian. This compliance training placed
a special focus on the confidential, anonymous whistle-blowing
system installed by EVN to facilitate the reporting of concerns related
to unethical or illegal actions. The whistle-blowing system is also an
important element of the compliance box. Both compliance training
and the compliance box provide detailed information on reporting
procedures that are available to employees in the EVN Intranet and
to business partners via email under compliance@evn.at/mk/bg.
The entry form for reporting in the EVN Intranet is also available
in the languages mentioned above. A Group directive defines the
procedure for dealing with the reported concerns and protecting
the whistle-blower against reprisals.

Compliance training courses were held for roughly 6,000 employees
and over 200 managers in ten different languages at more than
100 different locations in 2013/14. Plans call for the completion of
these courses by the end of the 2014 calendar year.

New compliance-relevant content and issues are reviewed on a regu-
lar basis. In accordance with the risk assessment, they are processed
and included in the compliance box as required. Training courses on
special subjects provide additional information for areas exposed to
increased risk. The EVN Intranet and e-learning tools are also availa-
ble to all employees as a means of strengthening the awareness for
compliance and reinforcing the course content. A specific plan sets
the main points for communications on current compliance issues.

A GRI indicators: Anti-corruption measures trainings (SO4);
Reporting concerns related to integrity (G4-58)

O The EVN Code of Conduct is available under
www.evn.at/Code-of-conduct.aspx.

L1 For information on EVN's capital market communications,
see page 75f, Investor Relations

L1 See page 48 on EVN in sustainability indices



CSR organisation

The sustainable orientation of management and the related
goals represent central elements of EVN's corporate strategy. The
actual integration of sustainability issues is the responsibility of
the CSR steering committee which includes also members of the
Executive Board. Organisational and content-related support is pro-
vided by the CSR advisory team, which serves as an interface and
link between strategic decisions and operational implementation.
This team supports the departments in developing goals, measures
and standards, which are then approved by the CSR steering com-
mittee. It also identifies current trends and developments in the area
of sustainability. The Corporate Social Responsibility Management is
represented by the spokesman of the Executive Board.

The involvement of all corporate units and the identification of
the CSR development opportunities in these units are ensured by
the nomination of CSR network officers in all departments. These
network officers ensure that previous CSR activities are regularly
reviewed and current activities and opportunities for improvement
are discussed and realised. The handling of CSR issues at EVN's sub-
sidiaries in Bulgaria, Macedonia, Croatia and Germany is supported
by the implementation of individual CSR organisations that are based
on the Austrian model.

A stakeholder survey was carried out in 2013/14 to review the stra-
tegic areas of activity and their prioritisation. The results led to the
modification and further development of EVN's materiality matrix.
Within the framework of the regularly scheduled CSR target discus-
sions, the survey results were also discussed internally with the spe-
cialist departments. The related goals and measures were adjusted
where necessary and should help to further strengthen and anchor
the CSR strategy in the core business and support the implemen-
tation of an annual structured process to include stakeholders. The
CSR measures in the individual corporate units are also monitored
annually. In addition, in the reporting period a workshop was held
with the CSR network officers to define further measures to increase
CSR awareness and to describe CSR examples. One result of this
workshop was a project to integrate the subject of CSR in exist-
ing training programmes. A working group was also established to
improve the understanding of human rights demands on EVN.

A GRI indicators: Sustainability management process -
responsibilities and process for delegation by the high-
est governance body (G4-35); Report of environmental,
ecological and social topics to the highest governance
body (G4-36)

O Additional information on the CSR organisation can be
found under www.responsibility.evn.at.

Stakeholders — Governance, commitment and engagement

Advisory Committee for Environmental and

Social Responsibility

EVN's Environmental Advisory Board was already established in
1992 to advise the Executive Board on environmental and sustain-
ability issues. In 2006, the scope of its activities was expanded to
include social responsibility and its name was changed to the current
designation of Advisory Committee for Environmental and Social
Responsibility. The 28 members meet twice each year to discuss cur-
rent issues.

The meetings in 2013/14 focused on the following topics:

- The electricity market in transition — surplus and competitio
versus shortage and government intervention

- The energy transition and the EU’s energy and climate goals

Power to Gas — the technology of the future?

- Innovation in the energy industry — the role of EVN

N

L1 The members of this committee are listed on page 243.

O Also available under www.evn.at/Advisory-committee-
for-environmental-and-social-responsibility

EVN Social Fund

The EVN Social Fund was created at the end of September 2008
to bundle and increase the transparency of sponsoring activities in
social areas. It provides sustainable support for youth institutions
in Lower Austria and has an annual endowment of EUR 100,000.
Decisions on the projects to be sponsored are made by an expert
committee that meets twice each year. The committee members
are Gabriela Peterschofsky-Orange, Head of the Children’s and
Young Persons’ Advocacy for Lower Austria, Helga Preitschopf,
Federal Province of Lower Austria — Department of Social Affairs,
Harald Wieser, Youth Welfare Social Worker, Elisabeth Baum-Breuer,
Head of the Pottenstein Youth Centre and Michael Landau, Caritas
President as the chairman. Their recommendations for the use of
funds are made unanimously to the Executive Board of EVN. Twenty
projects were supported during the reporting year.

L A list of the supported projects is provided in the chapter
“Society” on page 79.

Control and assessment of sustainability performance

In addition to compliance with the provisions of the Austrian
Corporate Governance Code, EVN's most effective instrument for
controlling its sustainability performance — and therefore also the
Executive Board — is the annual process of collecting, analysing, eval-
uating, summarising and publishing facts and figures for sustaina-
bility reporting according to GRI, application level “comprehensive”.
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EVN also commissioned TUV SUD, an independent testing institute,
to verify its sustainability performance and the 2013/14 full report,
in particular the content reported under GRI G4 and the GRI index,
for the 2013/14 financial year. This verification included an interview
with the members of the Executive Board on sustainability issues.
TUV sUD issued its external evaluation of the company’s sustaina-
bility performance in the form of a management letter.

Numerous sustainability indices have added the EVN share to their
listings in recent years. The companies included in these indices are
audited on a regular basis. EVN has been included in the FTSE4Good
Index since 2002 and in the Ethibel Sustainability Index Group (ESI),
which covers ESI Global and ESI Europe, since 2005. In 2005 the
EVN share was included in the Austrian sustainability index VONIX,
which represents Austria’s leading listed companies for social and
ecological performance. Since December 2010, the EVN share has
also been part of the ECPI Index and the ECPI Ethical Index EMU.

A further method for the external evaluation of EVN's sustainability
performance is the continuous extension of EMAS certification to
additional power plants and heating plants. EVN took a further step
in this direction during the reporting year with the auditing of the
Korneuburg thermal power plant according to EMAS/ISO 14001 in
March 2014.

EVN's internal audit department reports directly to the Executive
Board and to the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board. Its
responsibilities include the audit of EVN's procedures and business
units in Austria, while comparable functions for the subsidiaries in
Bulgaria and Macedonia are carried out by separate internal audit
departments. The activities of the internal audit department are
based on International Standards for the Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing (IIA). The problem areas identified by the internal
audits in 2013/14 were reported to the responsible managers
together with suggestions for improvement. The implementation of
the measures defined by management will be verified in a follow-up
review. No serious deficiencies were identified that could endanger
the strategy or goals of the EVN Group.

A GRI indicators: Evaluation of the highest governance
body’s performance with respect to sustainable develop-
ment (G4-44); Highest committee or position that formally
reviews the sustainability report (G4-48)

L1 The report on internal audit and risk management activi-
ties as well as information on EVN’s remuneration scheme
can be found in the corporate governance report starting
on page 97.
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Support for external initiatives

EVN is part of the steering committee of the Austrian Global
Compact Network since 2012. Established in 2009, the steering
committee evaluates the past activities and plans the future activities
of the Austrian UNGC Network.

External initiatives

OECD OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises

UNGC UN Global Compact

respACT austrian business council for sustainable development
OGUT Austrian Society for Environment and Technology

A GRIlindicator: Support for external initiatives (G4-15)

Membership in associations and interest groups
EVN is a member of numerous industry-relevant organisations and
associations.

A GRI indicator: Memberships in associations and interest
groups (G4-16)

O A detailed list of EVN’s memberships can be found under
www.evn.at/EVN-Group/responsibility/CSR-strategy/
Content.aspx.




When you venture
INto new territory

yOu need a solid basis

Stepping into new territory brings risks: this is also true for regenerative energy forms.

Used on their own, they aren’t yet able to cover the energy demand. What is needed is a flexible
generation mix that can ensure sufficient reserve capacity. Also important is a sound balance
between decentralised generation, on the one hand, and centralised management and
optimisation, on the other hand. An integrated model allows EVN to leverage the valuable
potential of renewable energy and ensure its successful and sustainable inclusion.

In the long term, the share of renewable energy in EVN's own production shall be raised to 50%.

Stakeholders



Stakeholder management

EVN is actively engaged in addressing the diverse concerns
of its stakeholders. Its energy and environmental services
businesses are the focal point of substantial public interest
and are therefore subject to more intense critical observa-
tion than companies in other industries.

EVN's steady expansion, growth and investments in recent years
have also been accompanied by growing interest on the part of
stakeholders. This development has led to a further increase in the
transparency of communications and the number of participatory
processes as well as greater weight given to the importance of a
regular dialogue with stakeholders.

The dialogue carried out with the various stakeholder and interest
groups helps EVN to develop, in the course of its stakeholder
management, effective strategies for the company’s further develop-
ment and the on-going sustainability process. These activities are
aimed at identifying stakeholders’ expectations, recognising risks at
an early stage and utilising opportunities to develop, maintain and
strengthen good relations with stakeholders.

The core of EVN's stakeholder management is based on strong
relationships between the managers of the various strategic busi-
ness units and departments with their stakeholders: employees,
customers, suppliers, partners, external organisations, associations,
NGOs, interest groups, science and research.

An institutionalised dialogue with the many different stakeholder
groups takes the form of working groups, committees in local com-
munities, project mediation with regional citizens’ initiatives, the
EVN Advisory Board for the Environment and Social Responsibility,
the EVN Customer Advisory Board, the EVN Social Fund and the
EVN Art Advisory Board. EVN has also installed a complaint manage-
ment system. Employee-related issues are handled through exten-
sive communications and cooperation between management and
the works council.

EVN carries out regular stakeholder surveys to systematise and
structure its stakeholder relationships. These surveys help to identify
the most important sustainability issues and to develop a focused,
strategic orientation for sustainability activities. The results are also
used to facilitate corporate communications, to identify appropriate
dialogue and cooperation partners and to supply important content
on economic, social and ecological issues as input for managerial
strategic decisions. Based on the survey results, stakeholder man-
agement is improved and the priority ranking of the activity areas is
reviewed. For example, the stakeholder survey in spring 2014 led to
an adjustment of the EVN materiality matrix (see page 37). In com-
parison with the previous materiality matrix, “sustainable energy
generation and climate protection” and “focus on customers” were
added to the subjects with the highest importance, thereby increas-
ing this group of activity areas to six.

Restatements

A GRI indicators: in the report (G4-22);

Changes in the scope and aspect boundaries (G4-23)

Stakeholder survey 2014

The main CSR areas of activity for EVN were identified in 2009
during a workshop with the CSR network officers from all areas
of the company. These interrelated themes formed the basis of
the 2010 materiality matrix. Since then, the subjects have been
discussed internally with all specialist departments within the
framework of the regularly scheduled CSR target discussions and
were updated to reflect the new priority ranking before the 2014
stakeholder survey took place. The updated list was then discussed
and approved by the CSR steering committee, which also includes
the EVN Executive Board. The 2014 survey started with a stake-
holder workshop and telephone interviews, during which the major
themes were limited and their relevance and scope were discussed.
The previous stakeholder ranking was then reviewed and adjusted
in an internal workshop.

What is important?

For whom is this subject very important?

EVN
Supervisory Interest groups/
Owners Board Associations Customers
Supply security [
Focus on customers °
Sustainable increase in shareholder value (]
Responsible employer (] [ ]

Environmental protection and resource conservation

Sustainable energy generation and climate protection
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Stakeholders — Stakeholder management

Federal government

Regional government

National governments

Government agencies

Supervisory Board
Ministries

Media

Legislation

Owners
Associations

Suppliers

. Civil society:
Communities Social groups
Customers: Interest groups

Private customers, SMEs, Communities

Large customers

Interest groups NGOs environment

(Project) partners

Shareholders ~ Investors

NGOs social

Project neighbours

Competition

Based on these preliminary results, 330 stakeholders were con-
tacted from the fields of science, research, business, media, NGOs,
politics and government authorities as well as suppliers, employ-
ees and customers, the members of the Supervisory Board and the
Advisory Committee for Environmental and Social Responsibility
and EVN managers. The analysis of the 187 responses crystallised
six areas of activity as the most important and led to their inclu-
sion in the materiality matrix (see page 37). The results of the sur-
vey were discussed by the CSR steering committee with managers
and afterwards with employees. Presentations were also made to
the members of the Supervisory Board and the Advisory Commit-
tee for Environmental and Social Responsibility. Further measures
are currently being developed with the relevant corporate units as
part of the CSR target discussions. In the future, an annual process
will be implemented to include stakeholders at the strategic level.

/A GRI indicators: Definition of the report content (G4-18);
List of stakeholder groups (G4-24); Identification of stake-
holder groups (G4-25); Engagement of stakeholder groups
(G4-26); Results of stakeholder engagement (G4-27)

Diagram: EVN's stakeholder groups

Project-related inclusion of stakeholders and their interests
EVN is well aware of the social, ecological and economic impact
of its business activities. Compliance with all relevant international
guidelines and agreements and national legislation, above and
beyond legal requirements, is a matter of course. A special focus is
placed on the execution of environmental and social impact assess-
ments and on proactive communications for new infrastructure pro-
jects. EVN supports the early, comprehensive and open inclusion of
stakeholders in decision-making processes. From small-scale hydro-
power plants, pipeline projects, windparks and biomass heating
plants to waste utilisation plants — all these projects are planned
and realised with the active participation of neighbouring residents,
citizens’ groups, NGOs, political representatives, local initiatives and
associations. EVN views these stakeholders as valuable planning
partners and information contributors for realising projects and con-
ducting business activities to the greatest possible satisfaction of
all stakeholder groups. Early inclusion creates the basis for broad
acceptance, provides valuable information on the best possible
resource-conserving realisation and is a decisive factor for planning
security (“licence to operate”).

Market Politics Science
Suppliers partners Media Employees NGOs Authorities Research
[ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
[ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
[ ] [ ] [ ]
[ ] [ ]
[ ] [ ] [ ]
[ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
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A central role in this process is played by the “project communi-
cation”, which was established several years ago as part of the
information and communication department to institutionalise
project-related stakeholder communications. “Project communica-
tion” forms the Group-wide competence centre for participation,
project and stakeholder communications, conflict prevention and
conflict management and, as such, maintains direct contact with
the managers of all major infrastructure projects. With the estab-
lishment of this area, EVN was able to create a bridge between the
technical, financial and legal requirements of projects and Group
requirements for participation, transparency and proactive commu-
nications, on the one side, and the needs and viewpoints of relevant
stakeholder groups, on the other side.

Project communication supports prevention in various ways by
ensuring the close and early inclusion of stakeholders in project
planning:

- Close contact with relevant stakeholders and feedback
to project management allows for the early identification of
project risks,

- The development of trusting working relationships with
important NGOs and other stakeholders over the medium
and long term creates effective communication channels that
allow for mutually acceptable compromise solutions,

- Direct inclusion in project planning strengthens the expertise
and awareness of the project managers in the areas of
stakeholder communications and participation and thereby
helps to sustainably anchor these valuable participatory
skills in all relevant areas of the EVN Group.

The insight gained through stakeholder communications is consid-
ered in the extensive due diligence audits that are conducted before
the start of a project. The results of these audits are used by the
Executive Board and/or the Supervisory Board, depending on the
size of the project, to evaluate the projects’ feasibility. Instruments
such as environmental impact assessments are also used to evaluate
the sustainability risks and effects of new projects.

A GRI indicators: Engagement of stakeholders (G4-26); Role
of the highest governance body’s role in the identification
and management of economic, environmental and social
impacts, risks, and opportunities (G4-45); Operations with
implemented local community engagement, impact assess-
ments, and development programs (SO1); Operations with
significant negative impacts on local communities (502)

EVN's stakeholders and

Working group, Advisory

method of inclusion Active and forum, committees, Supervisory
(selection) Surveys" frequent contact annual meetings? expert groups® Board
Employees [ ] [ ) [ ) ° ®
Customers [ ] [ ] [ ] [ J (J
Suppliers [ [ [ [ ] [ ]

NGOs [ ] ® [ ] (]

Media [ ] [ ] [ ]

Investors [ ] [ ] [ ] (J (J

1) Employees and customers at regular intervals, stakeholders survey 2010, 2014
2) Once or twice per year or more often
3) Once or twice per year or more often
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Customers

Customers represent the focal point of all activities for EVN.
This is demonstrated, above all, by the high importance
given to the strategic areas of activity “focus on customers”
and “supply security” in EVN’s materiality matrix.

In 2013/14, nearly four million customers placed their trust in the
safe and reliable energy and environmental products and services
offered by EVN from a single hand. This wide-ranging portfolio —
which includes electricity, natural gas, heat and drinking water as
well as wastewater disposal, cable TV and telecommunications —
helps to improve the quality of life for people in 21 countries across
Central and South Eastern Europe. EVN, in its role as a network
operator, acknowledges its responsibility to provide the customersin
its supply areas with secure access to energy. The necessary network
reliability is protected by a targeted investment policy. EVN supplies
3.5 million customers with electricity, natural gas and heat. Roughly
503,900 customers in Lower Austria are supplied directly and indi-
rectly with clean drinking water, and a further 219,000 customers
use EVN's cable TV and telecommunications services. The plants
built by EVN's environmental services business in recent years pro-
vide thermal waste utilisation, drinking water supplies and wastewa-
ter disposal for 17.2 million customers in 18 countries throughout
Europe. EVN's broad customer base is reflected, above all, in the
energy business, where households comprise roughly two-thirds of
the customers. The remaining customers are commercial enterprises,
industrial companies and public institutions. In the project-based
environmental business, EVN works primarily with public customers
like cities and municipalities.

A GRIlindicator: Number of customer accounts (EU3)

EVN'’s customer structure (EU3) 30.09.2014
Energy

Electricity grid 3,308,000
Natural gas grid 292,400
Heating grid 81,900
Environmental services

Drinking water (Austria)" 503,900
International drinking/wastewater services (PE?) 17,235,000
Cable TV and telecommunication 219,000

1) Thereof directly supplied: 87,000
2) Population equivalents (PE): industrial wastewater adjusted for
wastewater of households
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“EVN is always there for me" -

more than just an advertising slogan

The high importance given to the “focus on customers” as a strategic
area of activity is reflected in EVN's continuous efforts to develop a
fair and professional partnership and in the customer-oriented struc-
ture of the EVN customer service. Throughout the entire supply area,
an extensive network of customer centres ensures easy access to
EVN's services. EVN customers in Lower Austria can rely on a highly
qualified staff in 26 service centres and the EVN Shop in Wiener
Neustadt which opened in 2011. Telephone enquiries on EVN's
products and services, invoices and energy issues are answered by
employees of the customer service. This close customer orientation
as well as competent personal and telephone advising are important
factors to achieve and maintain high customer satisfaction. In order
to ensure optimal access and to protect the health and safety of
customers, the service centres can also be reached at any time of
the day or night to report supply interruptions. Electricity invoices
that are easy to understand and clearly organised, detailed infor-
mation on the homepage, a direct dialogue and regular customer
satisfaction analyses are further instruments used by EVN to justify
customers’ far-reaching trust and to meet their high expectations.

EVN also supports its customers through various activities in the area
of energy consulting. Mobile consulting teams and the EVN Shop
in Wiener Neustadt provide helpful tips and valuable information
on energy savings in personal discussions and through individual
services. Examples of these services include the so-called renovation
advice service “SanierService”, the replacement of heating equip-
ment, the maintenance of electrical and natural gas equipment, the
calculation of energy consumption for building certification and sup-
port for the construction of photovoltaic equipment. In connection
with its products, EVN offers technical solutions to improve energy
efficiency and reduce energy consumption. Individual and flexible
energy tariffs complete this offering for customers.

EVN'’s customers in the international environmental services busi-
ness consist primarily of cities, municipalities and the relevant
administrative authorities. The size and structure of the projects
in this area require in-depth exchange between EVN and its cus-
tomers throughout all phases. EVN's subsidiary WTE functions as
the process coordinator and realises compact facilities for smaller,
outlying locations and business enterprises as well as projects for
Europe’s major cities and large industrial companies. As a provider
of complete project-specific models (planning, construction, financ-
ing, operation), WTE also serves as a communicator between the
various project participants and therefore sees not only the direct
contracting entity, but also all involved organisations as its cus-
tomers. The contact partners include municipal water/wastewater
authorities as well as expert committees that are established for and
take decisions on specific projects. These projects, which are usually



When you want to
successtully serve

business and industrial customers
—~

Business customers place
particularly high value on
specially designed solutions.
Every company is different and
deserves individual service. EVN
has learned to understand its
business customers and provide
them with the best advice -

a fact that is demonstrated by
numerous solid, long-standing
partnerships.

awarded through Europe-wide tenders, are generally accompanied
by engineering firms that monitor the planning and execution in
accordance with international standards and maintain a continu-
ous dialogue with WTE. Other project partners include banks and
the export credit agency of the Republic of Austria or the countries
which provide guarantees for these foreign investments.

Customer Advisory Board

EVN took another step to improve its dialogue with customers by
founding the Customer Advisory Board in 2011. This board, which
entered its second term of office during the reporting year, is
designed to provide an increased understanding of the opinions,
concerns and needs of customers, and thereby support the com-
pany’s continuous efforts to increase customer satisfaction. The
Customer Advisory Board has a key advisory function, draws
attention to current trends and issues, contributes fresh ideas and
recommendations and, in this way, has an important influence on
the design of services, products and communication measures. The
main subjects of the information exchange in 2013/14 included the
EVN Journal (magazine for EVN customers), energy invoices and the
EVN homepage as well as selected tariff products.

The 24 members of the Customer Advisory Board represent EVN's
diverse range of customers and help the company to also see its
business operations from the customers’ differentiated points of
view. The Customer Advisory Board is elected every two years, with

N

you need intelligent
solutions

the next elections scheduled for 2015. Interested EVN customers can
find an invitation to apply in the EVN Journal, on the EVN homepage
and in the EVN Newsletter. The board members are selected with
a view to achieving a balance between various customer groups
and thereby ensuring the inclusion of many different interests. The
members of the Customer Advisory Board come together twice
each year, when they also meet EVN staff and representatives of the
Executive Board to discuss issues that are relevant to customers and
to develop suggestions for improvement.

EVN Bulgaria, which first invited interested customers to apply for
nomination to a Customer Advisory Board in September 2013,
started its activities in this area during the first quarter of the report-
ing year. The meetings of the Customer Advisory Board served as
a platform for the exchange of information, criticism and ideas
between representatives of EVN and household customers and also
resulted in recommendations to improve products, services and
customer service. Plans now call for the installation of a Customer
Advisory Board by EVN Macedonia in 2015. For this purpose, an
underlying concept, based on the experience gained in Austria and
Bulgaria, was developed in the reporting period.

O Additional information on EVN’s Customer Advisory Board
and its activities can be found under www.evn.at/
Customer-Advisory-Board.
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Customer satisfaction

Customer satisfaction is an issue of great importance for EVN in all
its markets. In order to learn from the diverse experience and know-
how in dealing with customers, Group-wide Customer Relations Days
were held in June 2014 at EVN Macedonia with EVN representatives
from Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia. Ideas and concepts for further
improving the quality of customer service throughout the EVN Group
were developed in workshops, presentations and roundtable discus-
sions that set the stage for a wide-ranging exchange of experience.

Austria
EVN’s customer service in Austria received roughly 640,000
(previous year: 680,000) telephone enquiries and 115,000

(previous year: 120,000) e-mail enquiries during 2013/14. In keep-
ing with its continuous efforts to provide the best possible service,
EVN has carried out systematic surveys for many years to measure
customer satisfaction. The 2013 survey covered nearly 8,000 house-
hold customers and 1,200 commercial customers in Lower Austria.

These latest results, combined with long-term trends, create the
basis for identifying general developments in customer satisfac-
tion and analysing relevant business transactions and also provide
valuable information on suggestions for improvement. The results
are discussed with the involved departments during workshops, in
which approaches for future measures are regularly defined.

The overall satisfaction of EVN's household customers remained
nearly unchanged at the high prior year level (1.76) with a mean value
of 1.80 in 2013 (on a five-step scale ranging from 1 = very satisfied
to 5 = not at all satisfied). The price-performance ratio, an important
indicator of basic customer satisfaction and loyalty, also remained
high. The satisfaction of EVN’s commercial customers also remained
stable at a good level compared with the last survey in 2011.

Customers view supply security and good customer service — both
over the telephone and in eliminating supply disruptions — as
two of EVN’s greatest strengths. For commercial customers, the

Electricity price structure
~_in Lower Austria"

Natural gas price structure
in Lower Austria"

in %
as at 01.10.2013
as at 01.10.2014

w
©
o

Energy costs

Network costs

Taxes and
charges

1) Assumptions: household with an annual consumption of 3,500 kWh

in %
as at 01.10.2013
as at 01.10.2014

53.3

Energy costs 52.3

Network costs

Taxes and
charges

1) Assumptions: household with an annual consumption of 20,000 kWh

Energy price structure and product composition

EVN offers reliable electricity and natural gas supplies at
competitive prices. In keeping with the current low level of
wholesale prices, EVN's supply company reduced electricity
prices for all end customers as of 1 October 2014 within
the framework of EnergieAllianz Austria. This step will help
a household with average electricity consumption of
3,500 kWh per year to save 10% of its energy costs.

Our product management regularly develops new tariff
models that are designed to meet customer requirements and,
where desired, can be based on fixed or variable energy prices
and include electricity from 100% renewable energy sources
or biogas. For many years, the electricity sold by EVN's supply
company has not contained any nuclear energy and is
generated from 100% domestic production.
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price-performance ratio was another important reason for their
satisfaction with EVN.

EVN’s Customer Loyalty Index, which was introduced in 2011,
measures customer loyalty based on various indicators. It has
become a strategic monitoring instrument and was also calcu-
lated monthly in 2013/14. The goals of the index are to promptly
recognise changes in customer loyalty, identify the causes and react
quickly with suitable measures. The survey results indicated that
customers with an in-depth knowledge of EVN's supplementary
services have a particularly strong affinity to EVN.

The EVN customer service centre has been certified under EN 15838
since 2012 based on a monitoring audit for the certification of
European Call Centres. This standard sets quality requirements for
customer contact centres, with customer satisfaction forming the
focal point. The audit covers personnel, organisation, processes,
technology and service. This certification is a strong proof of the

Stakeholders — Customers

high quality of the service hotline, which is available free of charge
to EVN's customers.

A quality improvement programme has been in place for many years
to monitor compliance with internal quality standards in responding
to customer enquiries and complaints. This programme asks custom-
ers to report their experiences and is designed to analyse the quality
of advising under specific scenarios and to identify opportunities for
improvement as the basis for the implementation of corrective meas-
ures. The quality of EVN's services was last tested from March 2013
to April 2014 in roughly 1,300 mystery shopping tests at members
of the EVN customer service staff. Customer-oriented actions as well
as service quality in direct customer contacts — via telephone, e-mail
and personally — were evaluated by an external market research
institute. The results led to the immediate implementation of impor-
tant quality improvements. In order to underscore the importance
of customer orientation, particularly dedicated employees were
honoured at a closing event.

o Composition of electricity from EVN KG
~_in terms of primary energy sources”
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Bulgaria and Macedonia

The customer service staff at EVN Bulgaria responded to roughly
506,000 (previous year: 531,000) telephone enquiries and nearly
20,100 (previous year: 23,800) e-mail enquiries in 2013/14. The
comparable figures for EVN Macedonia were approx. 343,700
(previous year: 340,000) telephone enquiries and almost 17,900
(previous year: 14,600) e-mail enquiries.

In Macedonia, 6,600 interviews and 1,600 mystery shopping tests
were carried out during the reporting year to evaluate customer
satisfaction. The results of these surveys and further internal quality
analyses led directly to improvement and optimisation programmes
that helped to reduce the number of complaints.

EVN Macedonia also demonstrated its commitment to the contin-
uous improvement of customer service in 2013/14 by organising
the international “Customer Service Week”, which was held in
Macedonia for the second time in October 2014. This event draws
several thousand companies from more than 40 countries and
focuses on the importance of customer satisfaction and the signifi-
cance of employees in customer-related fields.

A GRIlindicator: Customer satisfaction (PR5)

EVN Bulgaria launched its “EVN next to you” customer satisfaction
programme during the reporting year, which organises meetings
between representatives of EVN Bulgaria and its customers in their
home cities and villages. These meetings give customers a platform
to discuss basic concerns and problems in their respective region
with EVN contact partners. Another step to strengthen the focus on
customers was the opening of an EVN customer service centre in a
shopping mall, where flexible opening hours together with fast and
friendly service makes the personal contacts between EVN and its
customers as pleasant as possible.

A GRIindicator: Percentage of operations with implemented
local community engagement, impact assessments, and
development programmes (SO 1)

Product responsibility

Similar to the corporate policy statement and the environmental
policy statement, the principles of product responsibility represent
an integral part of EVN's central mission statements, which under-
scores their key importance. The EVN key values — Ensure, Encourage,
Enable — also highlight the importance of the EVN brand promise,
which can only be met with the commitment of all employees.

O The individual statements can be found under
www.responsibility.evn.at.

Combatting energy poverty

EVN places high value on energy consulting that is focused on
customers and aligned with their needs. Accordingly, energy
savings is one of the most important principles for these activ-
ities. While reducing energy consumption is a focal point in
many households for ecological reasons, energy counselling is
even more important for people at risk of poverty. The charity
organisation Caritas and EVN therefore launched a joint pro-
ject entitled “"Households at risk of poverty”, which operates
according to the “train the trainer” principle. EVN's energy
advisers equip the Caritas social counsellors with the necessary
know-how and special technical aids to offer energy-savings
tips directly in the home — in other words: helping people to
help themselves. This project was implemented in six steps:

Step 1: Development of consulting tools (quideline, checklist)
and selection of technical aids (energy measurement instru-
ments, flow restrictor to reduce the use of hot water, electric
kettle, etc.)

Step 2: Expert advice on-site (initial evaluation and review)

Step 3: One-day basic course on energy consulting for social
counsellors with EVN energy experts

Step 4: Joint advising on-site in the involved households
Step 5: Further training session and reinforcement of
energy consulting know-how for the social counsellors,
feedback round

Step 6: Roll-out of energy consulting services by the social
counsellors

The Caritas social counsellors carried out 200 advising sessions
during the reporting year, 150 in the regional Caritas agency
offices and a further 50 directly in the apartments and houses
of the involved families. Since the EVN energy advisory are
constantly developing new tips and tricks for energy savings,
regular training programmes are held to update the Caritas
staff. EVN not only provides expert know-how in the form of
training for the Caritas social counsellors, but also appropriate
energy solutions for concrete savings in the individual house-
holds.
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L1 For additional information on EVN’s key values, see pages
35f and 62.

EVN’s product and service portfolio — which includes electricity,
natural gas, heat, drinking water, cable TV and telecommunica-
tions as well as environmental services — plays an important role in
supplying customers with basic services and improving their quality
of life. The projects for drinking water purification, wastewater dis-
posal and thermal waste utilisation carried out by the international
environmental services business make a significant contribution to
the sustainability of EVN's business model through their positive
influence on society and the environment. In public opinion, the
production and sale of electricity from nuclear power plants is
controversial. EVN's energy mix has therefore not contained any
nuclear-generated or grey electricity for many years.

/A GRIlindicator: Sale of banned or disputed products (PR6)

Protecting the high quality of EVN's products and services and
compliance with the strict regulations for safeguarding customer
data are given the same careful attention. EVN also places great
importance on transparent and informative market, product and
service communications as well as social responsibility toward dis-
advantaged groups and active climate protection.

The electricity and natural gas networks operated by EVN are cer-

tified for compliance with the security standards issued in the form

of guidelines by “Oesterreichs Energie” and the Austrian Association

for Gas and Water (“Osterreichische Vereinigung fur das Gas- und

Wasserfach”, OVGW). Regular reviews by an independent external

auditing team ensure a high level of quality, among others in the

following areas:

- Planning, construction, operation and maintenance of grids
and plants

- Organisational structures, procedures and processes

- Responsibilities, specialised know-how and decision-making
expertise

- Training, personnel and operating costs

A GRIindicator: Customer privacy (PR8)
A GRIindicator: Product and service labelling (PR3)

In planning and designing its advertising and marketing campaigns,
EVN not only focuses on its own strategic goals but also on sus-
tainability. The central aspects of energy supply, energy saving tips
and energy services receive adequate treatment in all communica-
tions. EVN rejects advertising that does not conform to generally
accepted ethical or cultural standards, which encroaches on privacy
or which attempts to influence particularly vulnerable target groups

Stakeholders — Customers

such as children. There were no incidents of non-compliance with
legal regulations or voluntary conduct rules related to advertising in
the 2013/14 financial year.

A GRI indicator: Total number of incidents of non-compli-
ance with regulations and voluntary codes for advertising
(PR7)

The responsible approach followed by EVN along the entire value
chain minimises the potential risks associated with the impact of
the company's products on health and safety. Quality manage-
ment plays an important role in this process through its focus
on the definition of and compliance with high standards for the
(further) development of the product portfolio, innovation, research
and development activities as well as processes for the certifi-
cation, manufacture, production, distribution, marketing, sales
promotion, use, maintenance, disposal and recycling of products.
Recycling within the Group is based on Austrian standards and is
considered exemplary in many areas, particularly in the foreign oper-
ations of EVN and its subsidiaries. This applies, above all, to the
sustainable planning, production and distribution of electricity as
well as quality assurance for the networks and electricity supplies
in the regions where EVN operates. All categories of products and
services are continuously monitored with respect to customer satis-
faction, health and safety based on comprehensive quality assurance
procedures.

A GRIindicator: Effects on health and safety throughout the
product life cycle (PR1)

PR2 Violation of health and safety regulations

The Executive Agency of the Bulgarian General Labour Inspec-
torate conducted six audits at EVN Bulgaria EP and one audit at
EVN Bulgaria TP during the period from October 2013 to October
2014. These audits resulted in two directives for EVN Bulgaria TP,
which were met within the required timeframe, and twelve direc-
tives for EVN Bulgaria EP, which are currently being implemented.
Ten of these directives involve requirements for the buildings used
by EVN Bulgaria EP, while a further directive requires an updated risk
evaluation for two client energy centres ("KEC").

No fines were imposed on the member companies of the
EVN Bulgaria Group by the Executive Agency of the Bulgarian
General Labour Inspectorate for violations of health or safety requ-
lations during the period from October 2013 to October 2014.

PR8 Justified data protection complaints

In January 2013 the Bulgarian Commission in charge issued directives
to EVN Bulgaria TP and EVN Bulgaria EP, which require both com-
panies to modify their internal procedures for changing customer
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profiles in order to avoid possible violations of data protection reg-
ulations. EVN TP and EVN EP have already met these requirements.

In Macedonia, a special audit by the Macedonian Personal Data Pro-
tection Directorate (with minutes No.07-271 dated 29 November
2013) found that EVN Macedonia breached customers’ data pro-
tection rights by sending email reminders for delayed payments
containing the addresses of the customers. This led to a fine of
EUR 1,000 for EVN Macedonia as a company and EUR 300 for the
responsible staff member.

PR9 Fines due to violations of product and service
regulations

As explained in the chapter “Society” under “Fines/sanctions as a
result of illegal activities” (SO8), the Bulgarian regulatory authority
imposed 50 fines on EVN Bulgaria EP as of 10 October 2014. Each
of these fines equals BGN 20,000 (in total, BGN 1.0m). Most of the
fines involve violations of the replacement of protocols for com-
mercial metering devices (CMDs). The reasons for the alleged viola-
tions include missing signatures by customers, witnesses, company
employees of EVN Bulgaria EP, etc. EVN Bulgaria EP has filed appeals
against all of these fines with the responsible Bulgarian court, and
the proceedings are currently pending.

Aspect: Customer health and safety

EU25 Injuries and fatalities of individuals

(customers, neighbours, general public)

There were no injuries or fatalities involving customers, neighbour-
ing residents or the general public in connection with EVN's facilities
during 2013/14.
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Energy price and information campaign by

EVN Bulgaria: Winter 2013

NN
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In light of the temperature-related sharp rise in electricity
consumption during the winter months, EVN Bulgaria
launched the “Winter 2013" information campaign in
autumn 2013 to help its customers save energy and reduce
their energy costs. The most important element of the
campaign was the “Winter 2013" brochure, which included
answers to numerous questions on energy consumption

as well as practical, easy-to-understand tips. The brochure
provided detailed answers to the following questions:
Which household appliances use the most energy?

What factors influence energy consumption?

How can you control energy consumption?

What should you do before you leave home for a longer
period of time?

What do you need to know about meter reading?

The brochure was sent to roughly 508,000 customers by mail
and to nearly 175,000 customers by e-mail and also distrib-
uted to 5,000 customers in the EVN customer service centres.




Aspect: Access to basic services

EU26 Population in sales area without electricity supply

Full coverage can be assumed in all countries where EVN is the elec-
tricity supplier.

EU27 Electricity disconnections due to payment arrears

EVN offers individual support and instalment payment options for
customers who are unable to pay their bills on time. The past years
were, however, still characterised by inconsistent payment behaviour
and the frequent inability to meet scheduled payments, especially in
Bulgaria and Macedonia. In 2013/14 the collection rate was 99.5%
in Bulgaria and at 91.2% in Macedonia. The collection rate for heat-
ing payments in Bulgaria equalled 85.8%. In spite of its high com-
mitment to social responsibility, EVN is forced to interrupt energy
supplies when payment arrears extend over a longer period of time.
The number of disconnections remained stable at a low level in
Austria, but EVN was required to take this final step more frequently
in Bulgaria and Macedonia — where, in contrast to Austria, meters
are read and invoices are sent on a monthly basis. Supply interrup-
tions are generally reversed within 24 hours in Austria, Bulgaria and
Macedonia after the required payments are made or an extension
or instalment payment agreement is concluded. EVN has introduced
numerous measures in the past to help customers meet their pay-
ment obligations on time. These measures include an educational
programme on energy savings (see the text box “Winter 2013,
page 60) as well as a wide range of information and awareness-rais-
ing initiatives. For example, customers in Bulgaria can receive e-mail
or text message reminders on the approaching end of the payment
period to avoid disconnections due to unintentional late payments.
EVN also places a special focus on the reliable delivery of invoices
and simple payment procedures.

Stakeholders — Customers
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Employees

The central importance of employees for EVN and its
stakeholders is expressed, not least, by the high priority
given to the area of activity “responsible employer” in EVN's
materiality matrix.

During business year 2013/14, EVN Group employed an average
of 7,314 employees. The expansion of business activities in up to
21 countries over the past ten years has significantly increased
cultural diversity. As a means of maintaining EVN's identity and
brand promise toward its stakeholders in all countries according to
the same high standards applied in Lower Austria, key values were
introduced throughout the entire Group: E(V)Nsure, E(V)Ncourage,
E(V)Nable. They represent an important element of the major instru-
ments that determine the corporate culture, e.g. the managerial
mission statement and the feedback and orientation sessions (FOS).
These key values help employees to fill the EVN brand with life.

L1 Detailed information on EVN's key values can also be
found on page 35f.

A GRI indicator: Employment structure (G4-10)

Principles of human resources management

EVN is committed to the equal treatment of the wide-ranging inter-
ests of its stakeholders and, for that reason, also places high value on
meeting the diverse needs of its employees. Numerous measures are
in place to ensure that EVN not only meets its legal obligations as an
employer, but also provides numerous voluntary benefits. With this
continuous engagement, EVN offers its employees a positive work-
ing environment where they can develop their skills and talents. The
central values of the corporate culture and the treatment of employ-
ees are defined in corporate principles.

Equal treatment and opportunity

The EVN Group is active in a large number of countries with dif-
ferent working conditions. This diverse operating environment led
to the company’s decision to comply with the principles of the
International Labour Organization (ILO). Moreover, EVN joined the
UN Global Compact in September 2005 and thereby confirmed its
intention to act in accordance with the global principles of ethical
business behaviour. Closely connected with this commitment is the
challenge of eliminating all discrimination on the basis of nationality
or ethnic background, gender, sexual orientation, culture, religion,
age or state of health. People with the same professional and per-
sonal qualifications are given equal treatment in hiring, further train-
ing and career development, working conditions and salaries. EVN
also signed a “charter on the new compatibility between parents
and business” in May 2011. In addition, the “Women@EVN" pro-
gramme was introduced by the Executive Board already in 2010/11.

Corporate social partnership

EVN takes major business decisions in a transparent manner in
agreement with the managerial mission statement and in accord-
ance with legal regulations. Employee representatives are, of course,
integrated into the decision-making process and provided with
appropriate information.

Health care, occupational safety and accident prevention
Occupational safety and accident prevention have high priority in
all EVN business units. The high level of safety is ensured by train-
ing and awareness-building measures. In addition to legal regula-
tions, EVN has issued a comprehensive internal safety set of rules
with business directives and guidelines. The main section is a special
“Safety Handbook” tailored to working conditions in the energy
industry that is available to all employees on the Intranet.

Employee key indicators (G4-10, LA1) 2013/14 2012/13
Number of employees” Number 7,314 7,497

thereof women % 21.4 21.9
Apprentices? Number 52 46
Employee fluctuation® % 2.8 3.2
Average employment period Years 16.0 16.1
Average age Years 43.8 43.5
Revenue per employee? EUR 270,007 282,858
Sick days per employee Number 10 10
Cost of personnel in relation to revenue® % 15.9 14.5

1
2
3
4

On full-time equivalent (FTE) basis; annual average
Apprentices in Austria and Germany only due to dual education system
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Excl. departures due to Bulgarian and Macedonian redundancy programme and excluding retirement
The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting in accordance with IFRS, page 148).



Up-to-date and comprehensive information for employees

The magazine “EVN Intern” has provided employees with regular
information on corporate developments for many years. In addition,
the EVN Intranet provides a broad overview of current issues involv-
ing the company, energy supply and employee representatives as
well as information on seminars and training events. In a personal
section, each employee can also review his or her own flexi-time
data.. In order to support the preferred internal filling of positions,
job advertisements are also posted on the Intranet. These and addi-
tional measures promote the Group-wide exchange and employ-
ment of personnel.

Employee commitment to social causes

Many EVN employees not only work for the company, but also make
valuable contributions to society. A large number of EVN's employ-
ees do volunteer work in organisations like the Red Cross or the local
fire brigade during their free time. As an employer, EVN supports
this commitment by excusing employees from work for up to half of
the invested time in case of an operation. EVN also helps employees
to accumulate the necessary vacation time through flexitime work
models.

1 An example of how EVN brings the principle of voluntary
commitment and volunteer work to life is provided in the
text box “EVN for Lower Austria” on page 80.

Human resources activities and initiatives

The most important activities and initiatives continued or initiated by
the human resources department in 2013/14 include:

- Group HR Day

Full workforce survey on mental stress on the job in Austria
Programme to stimulate the internal job market

Roll-out of idea management in Macedonia

Children’s programme Holidays@EVN

Parent-and-child office

EVN SUN Academy (in cooperation with the

Danube University Krems)

Various trainee programmes

EVN apprentice support programme

Group-wide know-how transfer and dialogue
Management support programme

Employee survey in Macedonia

N I R
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Stakeholders — Employees

[ . . .
Diverse ideas from diverse employees

How many ideas does a company need to successfully
manage its future? At EVN, the answer is clear: “as many as
possible!” The wide-ranging diversity of backgrounds, nation-
alities and cultures that make up the EVN workforce represent
not only a wealth of different viewpoints, but also a wealth
of ideas. This potential can now be used more effectively
with EVN's Intranet idea management, which was rolled out
in Macedonia in the reporting period and therefore now

also covers the two main business locations in South Eastern
Europe. Successfully implemented ideas are rewarded with
bonuses. A total of 140 ideas were submitted by more than
8% of the employees in 2013/14 — ranging from technolog-
ical innovations in the electricity network to social ideas for
the “EVN for Lower Austria” campaign to smaller and larger
opportunities for cost savings. A special focus in South Eastern
Europe was on ideas to further improve service quality.

L For information on employee commitment for social
causes, also see EC8 on page 78.

Employee satisfaction

Increasing employees’ satisfaction with their working environment
and the related conditions is a central concern for EVN. Regular sur-
veys are carried out to collect data for relevant indicators and sug-
gestions for continuous improvement. The first survey on employee
satisfaction in Bulgaria was conducted in 2011/12 and followed by a
survey at EVN Macedonia in September 2013. The high participation
rate of 85% underscores the open feedback culture and the close
ties between employees and the company. Over 80% of the survey
participants indicated that they were satisfied or very satisfied with
their employer, EVN. The employees’ willingness to communicate is
also reflected in the fact that roughly one-third of the respondents
took the time to include individual feedback in the form of open
comments. The evaluation of the survey results also served as the
basis for developing concrete measures to address the employees’
central concerns. Occupational safety and communications were
identified as important issues, and further measures will be imple-
mented to improve conditions in these areas.

Diversity of the workforce

As of 30 September 2014, 1,593 women (21.4%) and 5,836 men
(78.6%) were employed by EVN. The average number of appren-
tices in the reporting period was 52. The EVN AG and Netz Nieder-
Osterreich GmbH workforces consist entirely of salaried employees.
No differentiation is made between wage and salaried employees in
Macedonia and Bulgaria.
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Diversity of employees 2013/14 Other
(G4-10) Austria Bulgaria Macedonia countries Total
Number of employees
thereof women % 18.8 24.7 19.0 31.7 21.4
thereof men % 81.2 75.3 81.0 68.3 78.6
Type of employment™
Worker % 7.4 0.0 0.0 27.8 4.0
Employee % 92.6 100.0 100.0 72.2 96.0
Contract type
Part-time in total % 10.3 0.4 0.1 8.9 4.2
Part-time women % 7.9 0.2 0.0 7.6 3.2
Individuals with special needs % 2.1 1.5 1.1 2.3 1.6

1) In Bulgaria and Macedonia, there is no distinction between employee and worker.

The Group-wide share of wage employees equalled 4.0%. In line
with EVN’s international business model, the workforce includes
a number of different nationalities. Men and women from more
than 20 countries work for EVN, whereby most come from Austria,
Bulgaria and Macedonia. Employee turnover during the reporting
year equalled 2.8%. This indicator does not include transfers within
the Group, retirements or departures based on the Macedonian
social plan and was not analysed in detail due to its low level. A
total of 87 women and 182 men joined EVN in 2013/14.

The EVN Group uses personnel leasing for three reasons: first, as a
preliminary step to a conventional employment relationship (integra-
tion leasing); second, for projects covering a limited time period; and
third, to handle peak work periods. A total of 184 leased employees
worked for the EVN Group as of 30 September 2014.

Women comprised 21.4% of EVN's workforce during the reporting
year. The Women@EVN programme was launched in 2010 /11 to
increase this ratio and has improved the opportunities and perspec-
tives for women working for the EVN Group in Austria. This pro-
gramme has been supplemented by an internal women's network
since 2014. The various measures to optimise working conditions
are designed to help women attain skilled and /or managerial posi-
tions according to their interests and abilities.

The compatibility of work and family is also an important issue for
EVN. Accordingly, the company offers flexible work models such as
part-time work or flexitime without core times, individual support
after parental leave, holiday child care (Holidays@EVN), information
events for employees on parental leave and an extensive training
programme that is also open to employees on parental leave. EVN is
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working to increase the share of women over the medium term to
a level that mirrors the current educational levels of women in the
applicable professional groups.

At EVN, women and men with comparable functions, qualifications
and length of service with the company receive the same remuner-
ation for the same work. Austrian law requires companies with a
workforce above a certain threshold to submit a biannual remuner-
ation report (§ 11a of the Equal Opportunity Act). All companies in
the EVN Group with a workforce above the legally defined thresh-
old prepared and submitted the required report to their respective
works council.

: Total number of new employees 2013/14
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A GRI indicators: Total staff by employment type, work
contract and region (G4-10); Total staff and fluctuation
(LA1); Diversity of employees and leading bodies (LA12);
Differences in remuneration due to gender (LA13)



Corporate social partnership at EVN

“Convince rather than force” is the principle underlying the corpo-
rate social partnership at EVN. Employee representatives are there-
fore informed of major business decisions on a regular basis and
integrated in the transparent decision-making processes that are
based on the managerial mission statement and legal regulations.
This approach applies to strategic decisions as well as to changes
and adjustments involving employees. Similar to EVN AG, the larger
companies in the EVN Group have also designated special employee
representatives.

Employees’ interests are represented in the form of works councils
or trade unions. Over 90% of all EVN employees are represented by
such bodies and their remuneration is protected by collective bar-
gaining agreements, tariffs or legal minimum wage regulations. In
Austria, Macedonia and Bulgaria, employee-related issues are han-
dled in workplace, health and safety committees that also include
representatives of the works councils or unions. Members of the
works council also serve on the Supervisory Board and the Advisory
Committee for Environmental and Social Responsibility. Apprentices
have also had a voice in the works council since the first youth rep-
resentatives were appointed in 2008. The last election of youth rep-
resentatives took place in June 2014. A European works council was
founded in September 2007 to further integrate the South Eastern
European subsidiaries and to improve cross-border communications.
This council serves as a platform for communication and exchange
and includes members from Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia. The
last conference was held from 9 to 11 September 2013 in Burgas,
Bulgaria, and the last presidium meeting on 5 and 6 June 2014 in
Maria Enzersdorf.

A GRI indicators: Minimum notice periods regarding opera-
tional change (LA4); Percentage of employees in occupa-
tional safety committees (LA5); Percentage of employees
under collective agreements (G4-11); Ratios of standard
entry level wage by gender compared to local minimum
wage at significant locations of operation (EC5)

The remuneration for the members of the EVN Executive Board
reflects industry standards and is disclosed in point 67 of the con-
solidated notes on page 215. As described above, the remunera-
tion scheme for 90% of EVN’s employees is based on the collective
bargaining agreements that apply to the main business locations.
These collective bargaining agreements are available for review by
the general public and include salary levels as well as the definition
of time-dependent salary increases. In 2013/14, the annual collec-
tive bargaining negotiations in Austria led to an average increase of
2.4% in salaries.

Stakeholders — Employees

A GRI indicators: Report the ratio of the annual total com-
pensation for the organization’s highest-paid individual to
the median annual total compensation for all employees
(G4-54); Percentage increase in annual total compensa-
tion for the organisation’s highest-paid individual to the
median percentage increase in annual total compensation
for all employees (G4-55)

EVN also places a special focus on the needs of the following
employees:

Senior Employees

The average age of EVN employees currently equals 43.8 years, but
this figure is projected to rise over the coming years due to the
expected increase in the legal retirement age. EVN has therefore
introduced specific personnel development measures and part-time
working models within the context of a partial retirement pro-
gramme. In 2013/14, 54 employees at Netz Niederdsterreich GmbH,
EVN AG, EVN Wasser and EVN Business Service decided in favour of
a part-time working model.

Based on the current legal retirement age, approximately 7% of
EVN's employees will retire during the next five years and nearly 22%
in the next ten years. EVN is working to meet the resulting need for
specialists and managers with specially designed programmes and
measures to support the transfer of know-how between older and
younger employees.

EVN also incorporates the needs of the various age groups in the
development of its health programme and gives special attention to
the needs of senior employees.

A GRI indicator: Retirements in the next five and ten years
(EU15)

: Employment period of employees
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__ Age structure of employees
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Individuals with special needs

EVN places high value on integrating people with special needs in
its workforce, not least because of its socio-political responsibility
as a major employer. Particular importance is given to the individual
design of workplaces and processes (e.g. using sign-language inter-
preters) to facilitate the integration of these employees into every-
day business operations. Additional opportunities regarding work-
ing hours and locations are available if required. 21 of the 26 EVN
customer centres in Lower Austria are also equipped for barrier-free
access.

EVN employed 120 men and women with special needs in 2013/14,
representing 1.6% of the total workforce. In addition, Netz Nieder-
Osterreich GmbH and EVN Warme GmbH placed orders of a total
value of approximately EUR 626,000 with sheltered workshops
during the reporting year and, in this way, made a contribution to
the employment of individuals with special needs.

Young people

EVN traditionally attaches great importance to apprentice training
for young people. This not only reflects the Group's focus on social
responsibility, but also helps to meet the demand for skilled pro-
fessionals. An information afternoon with an emphasis on practical
demonstrations was held at four customer centres in October 2013
to give interested young people, above all girls, a glimpse into the
workday of an electrical technician with a utility company. EVN had
a total of 52 apprentices in 2013/14, including twelve who started
their training to become electrical technicians on 1 September 2014.
Additional classes and seminars at EVN complement the dual pro-
gramme of theoretical vocational school education and practical
on-the-job training. EVN also supports double and multiple qualifi-
cations, e.g. apprentice training to qualify as natural gas and heating
technicians, as a means of improving interdisciplinary qualifications.
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The high quality of training is also demonstrated by the fact that
the majority of apprentices remain with the company after com-
pleting their programmes. Of the 22 apprentices who started their
training with Netz Nieder6sterreich GmbH in 2008, 21 finished suc-
cessfully and have been chosen for fixed employment; as of 30 Sep-
tember 2014, 19 of those apprentices that started in 2008 were
still employed with EVN. Experienced colleagues support the young
technicians after their training is completed and thereby ensure the
transfer of their know-how and experience. Every year EVN also
gives more than 300 schoolchildren and students an opportunity to
put their theoretical knowledge to use and gain their first practical
experience in traineeships. These activities underscore EVN's goal to
give young men and women opportunities at an early age and to
awaken their interest for professions in the energy and environmen-
tal sector. This commitment brought EVN a second place ranking
in the “Place to Perform” competition in 2013 (first place in 2011;
second place in 2012), which evaluates the best traineeships among
Austrian companies.

EVN also has a strong commitment to cooperation with students
and young professionals in Bulgaria. In April 2012, EVN Bulgaria
and the Technical University Sofia signed a cooperation agreement
to promote the practical skills of students as well as the exchange
of experience in areas such as information technology and electrical
engineering. More than 400 students have used this opportunity
to learn about EVN since that time. EVN Bulgaria also organised
a “Youth with a future” internship programme in 2013/14, which
gave talented young people an opportunity to develop their inter-
ests and gain experience in one of the headquarters departments in
Plovdiv in the course of a traineeship.

A GRI indicator: Notification deadlines for major changes
within the company (LA-4)

Working and living with EVN

Work-family balance

EVN provides active support for its employees in their efforts to
achieve the best possible work-family balance. This applies, for
example, to employees who are considering taking advantage of
legally entitled parental leave. Their return to work is facilitated by
contacts with EVN throughout the leave period. Parents can also
choose to work part-time as an alternative to full parental leave
or during the subsequent re-entry period and adapt their working
hours to meet their personal needs. These flexible arrangements
create advantages for both sides: EVN is able to retain qualified staff
and utilise its investments in training and professional development
beyond the phase of intensive parental care. From the parents’ point
of view, close ties and regular contacts with the company facilitate
re-entry and keep their professional expertise up to date.



When you take resource

conservation seriously

Resource conservation requires
a professional approach and
maximum performance.
Because minimising the impact —
on primary energy carriers,
other raw materials, the
atmosphere and landscape

as well as people, flora and
fauna requires experience and
innovative concepts. That is
why EVN works continuously
on efficiency improvements
and the further reduction of
emissions, also in conventional
energy generation.

EVN offers opportunities for parental leave that extend beyond legal
entitlements and allow for time-out until the child is 36 months of
age. Men are also using the available models: in 2013/14, 13 men
were on parental leave. As a result of these individual solutions, nearly
all mothers and fathers at EVN AG, Netz Nieder6sterreich GmbH,
EVN Wasser GmbH, EVN Geoinfo and EVN Business Service GmbH
return to the company after this leave. Two employees left the com-
pany for family reasons during the reporting year (previous year:
one resignation after parental leave). Another measure to facilitate
re-entry after parental leave is the parent-and-child office that was
installed in 2012. It allows employees to bring their children to
work, especially in times of difficult childcare situations. A comfort-
able atmosphere allows for concentration on both work and chil-
dren. The parent-and-child office is equipped with two fully func-
tional workstations as well as special children’s furniture, toys and
a bottle warmer — and provides parents as well as children with an
attractive environment. For children from six to twelve years of age,
the popular three-week vacation programme Holidays@EVN was
repeated in summer 2014. This programme, which was started in
2011, took place at the EVN corporate headquarters and adjoining
green areas and in the information centre of the Theiss power plant.
It was organised together with the “Family Business” initiative. More
than 60 children of EVN employees were able to enjoy a diverse
programme of games and handicraft activities, excursions and art
workshops.

you need to work even

harder on energy

production and distribution

A GRI indicator: Employees returning to work after parental
leave (LA3)

EVN pension fund

EVN provides its workforce with a supplement to legal pension insur-
ance ("ASVG" pension) through a company-operated pension fund.
The fund gives employees the opportunity to accumulate additional
retirement benefits in the form of a private pension with the support
of the company. In this way, EVN participates in securing the retire-
ment income of its workforce. The EVN pension fund is a defined
contribution scheme, in which the amount of the future pension is
derived from the employer and employee contributions up to the
date of retirement. EVN's responsibility as an employer is also illus-
trated by the pensions provided for its employees in Bulgaria, where
voluntary pension insurance was introduced for all full and part-time
employees.

A GRI indicator: Company defined benefit plan obligations
(EC3)

EVN Full Report 2013/14 67

Stakeholders



Supplementary health insurance

Another voluntary benefit provided by EVN for its employees is the
opportunity to conclude supplementary health insurance at favour-
able conditions. A framework agreement with an Austrian insur-
ance provider guarantees optimal medical care for all participating
employees. Additional benefits like supplementary health insurance
and the EVN pension fund are available to all employees of the con-
tributing employers in the EVN Group — regardless of age, gender or
the scope of employment.

EVN culture and sports club

The EVN culture and sports club is an employees’ initiative with
a long-standing tradition. The offering ranges from soccer, yoga,
mountain biking, jogging, sport shooting, curling, climbing, winter
and water sports to scuba diving, sailing, surfing, fishing and tennis.
Other popular activities include Pilates, chess, golf, bodywork, body-
building and cardio training, aviation, table tennis, hiking, photogra-
phy and film or culture and tourism.

EVN supports these activities, above all, in accordance with its
focus on health promotion. At the same time, participation in these
shared activities improves communications and strengthens social
ties within the company.

The EVN culture and sports club had more than 1,800 active members
during the reporting year and includes 16 individual clubs that are
located in Krems, Horn, Waidhofen an der Thaya, Deutsch-Wagram,
Hollabrunn, Mistelbach, St. Polten, Waidhofen an der Ybbs, Wiener
Neustadt, Korneuburg, Theiss, Dirnrohr and Maria Enzersdorf. All of
the clubs have strong ties to their respective regions and generally
operate autonomously.

In 2013/14, a total of EUR 15.8m was spent on employee benefits
(pension contributions, other employee benefits), which represents
5.1% of personnel expenses.

A GRIindicator: Benefits for full-time employees only (LA2)
A GRIindicator: Employee benefits (EC3)

Human resources development

EVN's business performance is based on its highly qualified and
motivated employees. Not only their know-how, but also their moti-
vation and their continuous readiness to learn play an important
role in the company’s sustainable success. Maintaining and increas-
ing employees’ high levels of expertise therefore represent a focal
point of human resources activities. The EVN Academy was founded
to organise the training and continuing education programmes in
Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia. Each area of the company has
designated specific employees to serve as training coordinators.
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Their function is to assess the development needs of individual
employees, submit the results to the EVN Academy teams and coor-
dinate qualification programmes.

O For further information on the measures and priorities for
training and further education, see
www.evn.at/hr-development/education-and-training.

A GRIindicator: Programme for knowledge management and
lifelong learning (LA10)

Employee survey: Mental stress on the job

As part of its health programme, EVN carried out an extensive
employee survey during the reporting year to collect data on
the subject of “mental stress on the job”. That made EVN one
of the first companies to meet the legal requirements intro-
duced in 2013, which require the evaluation of employees’
physical as well as mental health.

The survey was carried out during March and April 2014 and
had an above-average response rate of over 70%. In addition
to questions on the objective stress situation, the employees’
subjective priorities for improvement were also examined.

The results of the survey represented a good average based on
a representative norm group comparison. The employees’
suggestions for improvement will now be reviewed in work-
shops to develop specific measures for implementation.

Continuous training and education

In 2013/14, EVN invested a total of EUR 2.3m (2012/13: EUR 2.3m),
or EUR 310.4 (2012/13: EUR 314.8) per employee, in continuous
training and education. Each employee spent an average of
34.9 hours on these programmes. The offering concentrated on
specialist seminars, language training and seminars to strengthen
social skills. The specialist seminars included an increased number
of courses related to the natural gas business, whereby the initial
courses were attended by roughly 250 employees and the refresher
courses by roughly 420 employees.

The training centre established by EVN in Stara Zagora during
2011/12 led to a substantial improvement in training for the Bulgarian
employees. The programmes held in Bulgaria and Macedonia during
the reporting year focused on personal behaviour and included sub-
jects such as time management and efficient discussions. In addition,
the e-learning programmes launched by EVN Bulgaria in November
2012 have attracted 2,176 employees to date and were continued
in 2013/14. They included courses on process and project manage-



ment as well as English. In Macedonia, the courses concentrated on

languages and IT.
A GRIindicator: Education and further training (LA9)

Securing skilled labour requirements

EVN has implemented various measures to meet the future demands
for skilled workers and managers, among others in the areas of
apprentice training (see page 66), talent management and leader-

ship development:

- Talent management: EVN supports the internal recruitment

of managerial staff with training programmes to expand
the qualifications and support the personal development of

employees. One programme implemented to reach this goal is

the EVN Summer University, “EVN SUN". This year’s Summer
University, which was held from 21 to 26 September 2014
in cooperation with the Danube University Krems, included

international lecturers on operations management, innovation

& change management, cross-cultural management and
key performance indicators. The theoretical presentations
were supplemented by numerous practical case studies.
EVN managers were also available to discuss interesting

issues. The programme included seven female employees and

13 male employees from Austria, Macedonia, Bulgaria,
Croatia and Germany.

- Leadership development: Leadership development is an

important focal point of training and further education at the

EVN Academies in Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia. These
programmes are designed to prepare selected employees
to assume leadership and expert tasks over the medium
term as well as to make use of internal career opportunities.
In 2011/12, a specially designed, individual management
training programme was introduced for employees who are
designated for management positions. EVN also supports
training at the university level, among others, through MBA
programmes. A pilot group for the exchange of experience
between team leaders was also introduced in 2013/14 as a
platform for evaluating challenging situations.

A Securing skilled labour requirements (EU14)

Stakeholders — Employees

: EVN'’s education structure 2013/14

sty R

Secondary school” - 16.1%

Technical school
graduates/employees
with completed

craftsman certificates 53.7%

Others l 3.0%

1) Includes higher graduation in Macedonia because of
country-specific educational structures,
equivalent to secondary school graduation.

EVN introduces itself as an attractive employer at apprenticeship
events and career fairs and in joint appearances with universities
and universities of applied sciences. In 2013/14, EVN participated
in the career fair of the Vienna University of Technology, in Career
Calling, in High-Potential Day in Vienna as well as in career fairs in
Bulgaria (e.g. “National Career Days” in Plovdiv) and in Macedonia
(e.g. “Skopje Fair”, “Job Fair” by SEEU Tetovo). EVN is also rep-
resented on information platforms like kununu, Facebook and

Watchado.

O Additional information on kununu can be found under

www.kununu.com

Training and further education 2013/14 2012/13"
Expenses? EURmM 2.3 2.3
Average training expenses per employee EUR 310.4 314.8
Training hours per employee hrs. 34.9 31.3

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting in accordance with IFRS, page 148).

2) Seminar cost, trainers, e-learning
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The inclusion of and support for regional employees leads to an
increased understanding of the unique characteristics of the local
culture and creates economic benefits. In all EVN markets, almost
all employees and most of the management staff are natives of
the respective region. Strengthening local management capacity
represents an important aspect of the corporate strategy. EVN there-
fore supports career planning for local employees in Bulgaria and
Macedonia with specific management training and international
programmes. Included here, for example, is the already mentioned
EVN Summer University, a training and networking platform for
future managers.

A GRI indicator: Employment of local personnel (EC6)

Feedback and orientation sessions

Feedback and orientation sessions are held each year in all major
EVN companies in Austria. These instruments allow for an appraisal
by the employee’s supervisor and structured feedback on work per-
formance and quality. Additionally, development goals and meas-
ures are defined. More than 90% of all employees are covered by
these sessions and therefore receive regular feedback on their per-
formance and development plans.

A GRI indicator: Performance evaluation and development
plans for employees (LA11)

Healthcare and occupational safety

EVN places great importance on the best possible training and con-
tinuing education for employees on relevant health and safety issues.
The occupational safety department established for this purpose has
supplemented the legal regulations with an extensive set of inter-
nal directives and guidelines. Representatives of the works councils
and trade unions are involved in all workplace, health and safety

issues.The Health@EVN programme for healthcare advancement has
three goals: health protection, healthier living and fitness. The many
related measures include medical check-ups, vaccinations, eye and
hearing tests, psychological counselling, coaching, tips on healthy
nutrition and special offerings for groups of employees who are
exposed to particular risks. This occupational medical care exceeds
legal requirements and is well received by employees.

In 2013/14, 572 vaccinations were undertaken at EVN AG and
Netz Niederdsterreich GmbH in Lower and a further 47 employees
underwent medical check-ups. Although EVN does not operate in
countries where there is an increased risk of infectious diseases,
Group guidelines like the “EVN Pandemic Prevention” are in force
at all Group subsidiaries to deal with emergencies. These instruc-
tions, which deal especially with influenza pandemics, are designed
to minimise the risk of infection at the workplace and thereby ensure
continued smooth business operations and uninterrupted service for
EVN's customers. Included here are organisational, preventative and
hygienic measures aimed at minimising the spread of an influenza
pandemic among the workforce. In the event of a pandemic, the
Group'’s crisis management team is authorised to define concrete
implementation measures for each organisational unit in accordance
with the crisis management guideline.

The extensive range of training programmes on health protection,
occupational health and safety and fire prevention was continued
during the reporting year. The courses covered safety issues such
as “working with voltage” and “working with anti-fall protection
systems”. The permanent offering also includes initial and follow-up
courses on first aid. In Austria, all employees are represented by
safety officers in working committees that monitor and discuss the
workplace safety programmes.

Accident and lost days statistics 2013/14 2012/13
Number of occupational accidents” 98 121
Number of staff sick days? 2,097 3,346
LTIF? 8.5 10.1
1) Number of minor accidents and of notifiable occupational accidents (excluding commuting accidents)

2) Lost days are working days only; excluding weekends resulting from work-related accidents (excluding commuting accidents)

3) Lost Time Injury Frequency Index — Frequency of occupational accidents per one million working hours

Fire statistics" 2013/14 2012/13
Number 6 3
Damage TEUR 46.0 15.5
1) Austria
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A GRI indicators: Prevention of and education in serious
diseases (LA7); Occupational safety agreements with trade
unions (LA8)

o - -
Occupational medical care

EVN offers its employees extensive occupational medical
care, above and beyond legal requirements. Two occupa-
tional health physicians are available to answer questions on
maintaining and improving workplace health and attend to
employees within the framework of labour protection laws.

One example of the Group’s wide-ranging health services

is the “Smoke-free EVN” campaign that was launched in
September 2013. This initiative included the adaptation of
specially designated smokers’ rooms as well as a programme
for employees who want to become ex-smokers. EVN also
organised impulse lectures to explain the consequences of
tobacco consumption and the options for breaking the habit.
The smoking behaviour of the individual participants was ana-
lysed and individual goals were defined in feedback sessions.
The participants received intensive support during the with-
drawal phase as well as regular feedback on their experiences.

All occupational accidents in the EVN Group are recorded and eva-
luated in a standardised IT system. This system supports conclusions
on the safety behaviour of the involved employees as well as instruc-
tions for focal points in safety training. It also allows for the com-
parison of data between the individual companies and, in this way,
determines the most important issues for prevention independent
of industry trends.

The number of occupational accidents in the EVN Group fell by
19.0% to 98 in 2013/14. In addition, the number of days lost
dropped by 37.3% to 2,097 days. There were no fatal accidents
involving employees during the reporting year.

A GRI indicator: Injuries, occupational diseases, lost days,
absence and fatalities (LA6)

Stakeholders — Employees
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When your ideas tor energy
generation point to tomorrow

your plans for financing shouldn't
depend on yesterday

Innovation doesn’t stop at technology. The structure and financing of projects
also provides sufficient room for new, forward-looking concepts. For example,
EVN uses public participation models to develop solar energy, which give

its customers an opportunity to take part in the production of renewable energy.
That not only places photovoltaics on a broader base, but also increases
people’s awareness for sustainable energy supplies.



Sharenholaers
NvVestors

The capital market is particularly important for EVN due to
its stock listing and the issuance of bonds.

EVN share

Market environment and performance

Economic development in Europe fell short of expectations during
the course of the year due to the Ukraine crisis and the related sanc-
tions against Russia, while growth in the USA continued to gain
momentum. This growing gap between the European and US econ-
omies was also reflected in divergent central bank policies. While
the US Federal Reserve (Fed) announced its plans to gradually end
the previous support measures, the European Central Bank (ECB) fol-
lowed a series of three cuts in the prime lending rate from 0.50% to
the current level of 0.05% at the beginning of October by announc-
ing its intention to launch a securities purchase programme. This
measure is designed primarily to provide relief for bank balance
sheets and to stimulate economic growth through an increase in
lending.

Developments on the international stock markets were positive, in
spite of the on-going difficult environment, and included a num-
ber of new historical highs. The German benchmark index DAX
rose by 10.2% from October 2013 to September 2014, while the
US Dow Jones index increased 12.7%. The performance of Vienna's
benchmark index ATX presented a different picture with a loss of
12.8% during this same period. The difficult market climate for
utility companies also had a negative influence on the EVN share,
which declined by 10.3%. In comparison, the DJ Euro Stoxx Utilities,
the relevant industry index for EVN, rose by 23.2%. The EVN share
closed the 2013/14 financial year at EUR 10.125, which reflects
a market capitalisation of EUR 1.82bn as of 30 September 2014.
The average daily turnover in EVN shares declined year-on-year
to 45,167 (single counting), which represents an annual trading
volume of EUR 120.4m (single counting) for EVN shares and 0.53%
of the total trading volume on the Vienna Stock Exchange. EVN was
weighted at 0.87% in the ATX Prime at the end of September 2014.

Share buyback programme

The 85" Annual General Meeting on 16 January 2014 authorised
the Executive Board of EVN AG to repurchase the company’s bearer
shares for the purpose of distribution to employees of the company
or its subsidiaries. This authorisation covers the repurchase of up to
10% of the share capital of EVN AG during a period of 30 months.
At the same time, the resolution of the Annual General Meeting
on 19 January 2012 authorising a share buyback by EVN AG was
terminated prematurely on 16 January 2014. This resolution had
resulted in the repurchase of 1,640,030 EVN shares over the Vienna
Stock Exchange between 6 June 2012 and 15 January 2014, which
represent 0.91% of share capital. On 16 January 2014, based on
the authorisation of the 85" Annual General Meeting, the Executive

anad

Board approved a share buyback programme with a term ending on
30 September 2014; this programme was extended from 30 Sep-
tember 2014 to 30 June 2015 based on a resolution by the Executive
Board. The new share buyback programme led to the repurchase of
117,500 shares by 30 September 2014, which equal 0.06% of share
capital. EVN AG held 1,939,992 treasury shares as of 30 September
2014, including the shares repurchased in earlier years, which repre-
sent approx. 1.1% of share capital.

Strategy for the use of financial resources and dividend
EVN's strategy includes establishing a balance between current
investment projects and attractive dividends for shareholders. This
strategy is reflected in a targeted payout rate of 40% of Group net
profit over the long term. The Executive Board will make a recom-
mendation to the 86" Annual General Meeting on 15 January 2015,
calling for the payment of a EUR 0.42 dividend per share for the
2013/14 financial year.

The 85" Annual General Meeting on 16 January 2014 approved the
payment of a dividend totalling EUR 74.8m, or EUR 0.42 per eligi-
ble share, to the shareholders of EVN AG for the 2012/13 financial
year. The ex-dividend day was 21 January 2014, and the payment to
shareholders was made on 24 January 2014.

- Shareholder structure

11% Treasury shares
15.4% Y

Free float
0y 0,
32.5% 51.0%
EnBW Trust eV. NO Landes-
Beteiligungsholding
GmbH

EVN Full Report 2013/14 73

Stakeholders



EVN share 2013/14 2012/13"
Share price at 30 September EUR 10.13 11.29
Highest price EUR 12.50 12.66
Lowest price EUR 9.76 9.42
Price performance % -10.3 4.2
Total shareholder return % -6.6 8.1
ATX performance % -12.80 21.00
Dow Jones Euro Stoxx Utilities performance % 23.20 0.50
Value of shares traded? EURm 120 136
Average daily turnover? Shares 45,167 50,544
Share of total turnover? % 0.53 0.74
Market capitalisation at 30 September EURM 1,821 2,031
ATX weighting % 0.87 1.00
WBI (Vienna Stock Exchange Index) weighting % 2.29 2.47
Earnings per share® EUR -1.68 0.61
Dividend per share EUR 0.42% 0.42
Cash flow per share®® EUR 1.90 3.01
Book value per share? EUR 14.80 17.26
Price/earnings per share X - 18.4
Price/cash flow per share® X 5.3 3.7
Price/book value per share X 0.8 0.7
Dividend yield % 4.1 3.7
Payout ratio % - 68.6
1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).
2) Vienna Stock Exchange, counted once
3) Shares outstanding at 30 September
4) Proposal to the Annual General Meeting
5) Gross cash flow
EVN bonds Public bonds Private placements
EUR JPY EUR

Volume 300.0m 12.0bn 28.5m
Due date 13.04.2022 09.01.2024 11.03.2016
Maturity (yrs) 10.5 15 7
Coupon (% p.a.) 4.250 3.130 5.000
ISIN XS0690623771 XS0406428036 XS0417260329
EVN bonds Private placements

EUR EUR EUR EUR
Volume 150.0m 30.0m 100.0m 25.0m
Due date 23.06.2017 18.03.2019 20.02.2032 23.02.2032
Maturity (yrs) 8 10 20 20
Coupon (% p.a.) 5.250 5.250 4.125 4.125
ISIN XS0434384334 XFOOONS4HD4 XS0744577627 XS0746091981

O Details on the current Debt Issuance Programme can be found on the EVN Website under www.evn.at/financial-strategy.
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Shareholder structure

EVN is a listed stock corporation under Austrian law whose shares are
traded in the Prime Market segment of the Vienna Stock Exchange.
In accordance with Austrian federal and provincial constitutional
law, 51.0% of the shares are held by NO Landes-Beteiligungs-
holding GmbH, St.Pdlten, which is a subsidiary of the province
of Lower Austria. On 20 December 2013 EnBW Energie Baden-
Wirttemberg AG, Karlsruhe, Germany, concluded a trust agreement
with EnBW Trust within the framework of a so-called contractual
trust arrangement model. This arrangement resulted in the trans-
fer by EnBW of its 32.5% investment in EVN AG to EnBW Trust on
a fiduciary basis. Consequently, the second largest shareholder is
EnBW Trust eV, Karlsruhe, Germany, with an investment of 32.5%.
As of 30 September 2014 EVN AG held treasury shares representing
1.1% of share capital and free float equalled 15.4%.

A GRI indicator: Nature of ownership and legal form (G4-7)

Capital market financing

In the past EVN has frequently raised long-term loans by issuing
public and private bonds. The currently outstanding public bond
with a volume of EUR 300.0m had a term of 10.5 years when it was
issued in October 2011 and will mature in April 2022. The long-
term end of the spectrum in EVN's maturity profile is formed by
two private placements with a combined volume of EUR 125.0m
that will mature in February 2032. Foreign currency financing in
the form of a JPY 12.0bn private placement was also outstanding
as of 30 September 2014. The related foreign exchange risk was

Stakeholder — Shareholders and investors

hedged when the instrument was issued. In addition to the capital
market financing issued within the context of its debt issuance
programme, EVN also used the market for promissory note loans in
October 2012 to successfully issue a EUR 121.5m promissory note
loan.

Due to the corporate strategy of consolidating and reducing net
debt, there were no new capital market issues during the reporting
year. EVN carried out the scheduled repayment of a CHF 250.0m
bond in February 2014 and a JPY 8.0bn private placement in
September 2014.

Investor relations

EVN places high priority on the provision of transparent and timely
information. This commitment is designed to give all stakeholders
an opportunity to form a realistic evaluation of the EVN Group’s
activities and economic development. The related activities are
the responsibility of the Investor Relations Department, which is
assigned to the Finance Department and reports directly to the Chief
Financial Officer of the EVN Group. The main focus of investor rela-
tions activities is to establish and maintain a regular and active dia-
logue with current and potential investors, stock and bond analysts,
banks and rating agencies.

The dialogue with capital market participants is based on clear prin-
ciples and rules, to which EVN is explicitly committed and which
form a key element of responsible communications based on mutual
trust. Content that is timely, transparent, understandable and solid is

: EVN share price — relative development
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the benchmark for the company’s information policy. Special atten-
tion is also given to sustainability-oriented investors and their infor-
mation requirements, as EVN believes in tailoring its communica-
tions media to the different needs of the various stakeholder groups.

Wide-ranging information activities

In addition to participating in numerous road shows, EVN reports
comprehensively on the development of business in quarterly tele-
phone conferences for analysts, institutional investors and banks,
and in semi-annual press conferences for journalists. Private share-
holders receive detailed information not only at the Annual General
Meeting but, for the past seven years, also at an information after-
noon in connection with the presentation of half-year results by the
Executive Board of EVN AG.

In 2013/14 the Chief Financial Officer and the Investor Relations
team took part in international conferences and road shows in
Boston, Frankfurt, Milan, New York, Paris, Toronto and Zirs. A
“reverse road show” was also organised in Zwentendorf for national
and international investment banks and investors.

The following institutions issue regular analyses on the development
of business at EVN: Deutsche Bank, Goldman Sachs International,
Kepler Cheuvreux, Macquarie Capital (Europe), Raiffeisen Centro-
bank and Société Générale. As of 30 September 2014 the EVN share
had three “buy” and three “hold” recommendations with an aver-
age target price of EUR 11.82. Additional information on the individ-
ual recommendations can be found under www.evn.at/analyses.
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Numerous awards
EVN also received numerous national and international awards and
prizes in various categories during 2013/14:

- ARC Awards 2014 for the 2012/13 Full Report:

- Gold in the category “Full Report”
- Gold in the category “Content”
- Honorary award for “Cover/Photo/Design”

- Trend Austrian Annual Reporting Awards 2014 for the 2012/13
Full Report:

- 15t Place in the category “Graphic Presentation/Layout”
- 2" Place in the category “Sustainability”
- 3 Place in the category “Business Analysis”

- 2" Place at the Austrian Sustainability Reporting Award
(ASRA) 2014 in in the category “Integrated Annual and
Sustainability Report”

- Two first places for EVN Macedonia at the National CSR
Awards 2013 in the categories “Energy Efficiency Platform”
and “Employee Relationships — Strategic Approach to the
Professional Development of Young People”

- EVN Bulgaria received the Prometeya Prize from the Bulgarian
Confederation of Independent Trade Unions in 2013 for its
achievements in the area of occupational safety and employee
health.

Extensive online offering

In order to improve resource conservation and sustainability also
in its capital market communications, EVN is increasing the use of
electronic media. One related step involves the general elimination
of mass printing and mailing in connection with EVN's shareholder
letters (quarterly reports). This information is available in the form
of online reports or PDF documents on the EVN website under
www.investor.evn.at. EVN shareholders can also receive these
reports in hard copy via mail if requested.

EVN’s Internet portals, EVN www.investor.evn.at and www.

responsibility.evn.at, include the full report and quarterly reports,

capital market announcements, information on the Annual General
Meeting, road shows and analyst presentations as well as audio
recordings of the EVN conference calls. These websites also contain
analysts’ assessments on the company'’s development, online stock
exchange information and numerous services tailored to meet the
needs of individual investors.



Soclety

As a responsible energy and environmental services provider,
EVN has been committed to social responsibility for many
years. The company strives to achieve a balance between
economic, ecological and social viewpoints.

EVN carries shared responsibility for the social development of
its markets and has an influence on local stakeholders through
numerous economic connections. All new projects are therefore
subject to environmental and social compatibility assessments
that also include relevant social aspects. The company’s manage-
ment approach covers all social aspects of its business related to
governance, compliance, corporate ethics, the prevention of
corruption, public appearance and competitive behaviour. This
management approach is defined in the EVN Code of Conduct
(www.evn.at/Code-of-conduct).

EVN has prepared comprehensive crisis, emergency and contingency
plans and implemented training programmes for major segments of
its business activities, especially for risk scenarios that may affect the
population. Crisis situations are simulated at all EVN locations, and
internal and external training programmes on crisis management
are also held in Lower Austria. Regular training is provided for the
emergency staff, while annual training courses for all duty personnel
and annual security training programmes for all employees are held.
Crisis management systems have also been implemented in Bulgaria
and Macedonia.

Human rights

EVN is committed to the unlimited protection of human rights in
all areas of its activities. An important tool for this protection is the
inclusion of human rights clauses in contracts. These clauses cover
investment and procurement practices, equal opportunity, freedom
of assembly, right of collective negotiations, the abolishment of
child labour and forced labour, complaint procedures, safety meas-
ures and the rights of indigenous people. In 2005, EVN joined the
UN Global Compact and thereby agreed to compliance with human
rights principles at all its locations and business areas. These prin-
ciples are specified in the EVN Code of Conduct; they are binding
for all employees in all business units and available to the general
public. Implementation throughout the EVN Group is ensured by the
availability of the code in German and English as well as its trans-
lation into the languages of the subsidiaries in Bulgaria, Macedonia
and Russia. The EVN Code of Conduct is regularly adapted to reflect
current developments and changes in legal requirements. Since EVN
requires the same strict compliance with its principles and values
from suppliers and service providers, the integrity clause also applies
to these firms. EVN rejects forced relocation as well as physical or
economic displacement and complies with all relevant international
guidelines and national laws.

A GRI indicator: Investment agreements with human rights
clauses (HR1)

O  For more information on the EVN Code of Conduct, see
www.responsibility.evn.at

O For the integrity clause, go to www.evn.at/integrity-clause

L1 Details on the application of the integrity clause to suppliers
and service providers can be found on page 93f

EVN supports the UN Global Compact

Principle 1: EVN supports and respects the protection of
internationally proclaimed human rights.

Principle 2: EVN makes sure that it is not complicit in human
rights abuses.

Principle 3: EVN upholds the freedom of association and the
effective recognition of the right to collective
bargaining.

Principle 4: EVN supports the elimination of all forms of
forced and compulsory labour.

Principle 5: EVN supports the effective abolition of child
labour.

Principle 6: EVN supports the elimination of discrimination in
respect of employment and occupation.

Principle 7: EVN supports a precautionary approach to envir-
onmental challenges.

Principle 8: EVN undertakes many national and international
initiatives to promote greater environmental
responsibility.

Principle 9: EVN encourages the development and diffusion
of environmentally friendly technologies.

Principle 10: EVN works against corruption in all its forms.

Compliance with human rights principles is the responsibility of the
Executive Board, which is supported by the EVN compliance officer.
The training programme on the Code of Conduct, which covers
the prevention of corruption as well as the human rights aspects
relevant for company activities, involves 2.5 hours of training per
employee per year.

A GRI indicator: Number of hours of training on company-
relevant human rights aspects (HR3)

L Detailed information on EVN's compliance management
can be found beginning on pages 46 and 104f.
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Creation of value for society

As the employer of a workforce that totals 7,314 and a source of
orders for more than 5,000 suppliers and service providers, as a listed
company in which NO Landesbeteiligungsholding GmbH holds a
stake of 51% and as a provider of energy and environmental services,
EVN generates numerous direct and indirect positive effects for the
society in its supply areas. EVN makes a direct financial contribution
to the economies in which it operates through salaries, payments
to suppliers, dividends and taxes. The most important contributions
(excluding the multiplier effects for the entire economy) are outlined
on the front cover flap of this report.

EVN also meets its responsibility to its various stakeholder groups
through numerous initiatives outside the operating business. The
EVN Social Fund, which has an annual endowment of EUR 100,000
supports institutions in Lower Austria that work with children and
adolescents. EVN is also active outside Austria and provides sup-
port, above all, for day care centres, children’s homes and schools in
Bulgaria, Macedonia and Croatia. The Social Fund again supported a
number of projects during the reporting year (see page 79).

A GRI indicators: Indirect economic impacts (EC8); Directly
generated and distributed economic value (EC1)

Projects to increase the awareness of children and young people for energy issues

EVN's social responsibility is also expressed in special projects
for children and young people. The focus here is on interest-
ing facts and figures related to the broad subject of energy
and its responsible use. Three examples of these regularly
organised projects are shown below:

EVN day care centre project — conclusion of the

theatre tour

The EVN day care centre project is intended to give children
an interesting look at the subject of electricity. The focal point
changes each year and covered the safe handling of energy
and energy savings in 2013/14. The “Joulius, the bundle

of energy” project successfully ended in April 2014 after
performances at nearly 250 day care centres with a specially
designed theatre tour and the play “Joulius and the Light
for Emil”. More than 12,500 children were reached by these
performances.

EVN school service in Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia
“EVN Researchers’ World — The Whole World is
Energy”: Discovering the subject of electricity through
experimental learning

The “EVN Researchers’ World — The Whole World is Energy”
experiment kit was developed in cooperation with the Teachers’
Training College in Lower Austria and made available to all
Lower Austrian elementary and special schools starting in
autumn 2014. The kit includes materials for 25 experiments,

quiz cards with assignments, solutions and examples of practical
applications, a personal “researchers’ notebook” for every

boy and girl as well as information for teachers on using the
package. In the EVN Researchers’ World, children can examine
mysterious electrical phenomena, build electric circuits, demon-
strate the conversion of various energy sources into electricity
and learn about the careful use of energy. Supplementary work-
shops have been offered as part of the continuing education
programme at the Lower Austrian Teachers’ Training College

in Baden since August 2014 to help teachers optimally use the
materials in their classrooms. The EVN Researchers’ World gives
roughly 27,000 children every school year an opportunity to
learn and experiment.

EVN in Bulgarian classrooms

EVN also started a school service programme in Bulgarian and
Macedonia during October 2007. The programme in Bulgaria
was updated in 2013/14 under the title “Ivi and Encho's
Class” and the motto “Fascinating education on energy and
environmental subjects”. The educational materials for the
second and third grades were completely revised and the
programme, together with the educational materials, was
expanded to include the fourth grade and a larger number of
schoolchildren. Forty-four partner schools worked together
with EVN Bulgaria on this project in 2013/14, and roughly
11,700 children had completed the programme by the end of
the school year in June 2014.
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security and are therefore in the public interest. Many of the EVN
power plants are open for visits by the general public and, in this
way, support local tourism and education. For example, the non-
operational nuclear power plant in Zwentendorf is available for tours
and for educational and training purposes by private persons and
companies. In connection with the construction of the pump storage
power plant in Ottenstein, EVN also took over responsibility for the
upkeep of Ottenstein Castle. EVN makes an attractive contribution
to the region’s tourism offering through the operation of the castle
as an event location as well as by operating the Hotel Ottenstein, a
boat rental and a restaurant on the Ottenstein reservoir.

O For more information on EVN's tourism offering in
Ottenstein, see www.hotelottenstein.at

Projects EUR
Caritas — vacation club, play and learning days 7,000
Caritas — mobile workshop 4,500
Caritas — learning support for children and adolescents 7,500
Caritas — AusZeit 2.0 play group 6,000
Caritas — Akzept_Tanz dance programme 5,000
Caritas St. Gabriel — summer fun 5,000
Caritas — education as the motor for sustainability 10,000
Caritas — social skills training for adolescents via VIT 10,000
Caritas — school start programme 5,000
Caritas — Open bicycle workshop 5,500
Caritas — Kids 2 Future 7,500
Caritas — Young Chess Club 5,000
Diakonie — expansion of leisure time activities in the

Neue Welt shared apartment 4,800
Diakonie — life support centre in Mddling 8,000
Diakonie refugee service — movement energy 4,500
Diakonie Centre Spattstrasse — sport and leisure time

events, shared apartment in Strengberg 3,300
Association for the support of young people,

Neunkirchen — Girls Zone coffee house 5,000
Association for social housing — social gardening 8,000
Total 111,600

EVN invested EUR 1.2m (thereof 13.4 % from public funding) on
innovation, development, and research projects during the reporting
year. EVN receives no additional financial support from the public
sector. In cases where individual laws allow for the utilisation of
incentives, e.g. the Green-Electricity Act or research and develop-
ment tax credits, EVN evaluates the related conditions and applies
for financial support where possible.

A GRI indicator: Government financial assistance (EC4)

EVN invested EUR 396.3m in the expansion and modernisation of
its infrastructure and generation plants in 2013/14 (previous year:
EUR 372.9m). These investments are intended to improve supply

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8
(see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).

__\Visitors to the EVN information centres

30,204
28,404 8,105 AKW Zwentendorf

26,631 : 7989 (open-house days)

7,017
I - 1,930 Durnrohr/Zwentendorf

Waste incineration plant
2,700 - 2,000 7,488
6,602 .

6.110 Ottenstein Power plant
I 12,726
I 10.804 I 1,813 Theiss Power plant
2011712 2012/13 2013/14

A GRI indicator: Infrastructure investments and services pri-
marily in the public interest (EC7)
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EVN for Lower Austria

EVN provides its customers with reliable energy supplies to
meet their daily needs and also sees its social responsibility
as an important component of the corporate culture. Many
of the EVN employees not only work for the company, but
also demonstrate their social responsibility by participating
in charitable activities. The creation of the “EVN for Lower
Austria” programme demonstrates the company’s commit-
ment to society and its position as a responsible employer.

"EVN for Lower Austria” is a corporate volunteering project
that is designed to encourage employees’ involvement and
support independent initiatives for charitable purposes.
Assistance for the employees’ projects is provided in the form
of funding, e.g. by covering the cost of materials, and also by
credits for working time. The entire programme is guided by
an internal project team. Communications take place over a
separate Intranet platform that shows the content and status
of the individual projects and invites interested employees to
participate.

Nearly 300 employees have worked on more than 40 charita-
ble projects up to now. In addition to excursions and concerts
for retirees, the activities included for example also sporting
events for young refugees. The EVN employees also used their
manual skills, for example by painting the rooms in social ser-
vice facilities or renovating outside areas such as playgrounds
or gardens. Toys, clothing, books, CDs, DVDs and various
gadgets were collected for a flea market that was held during
a summer festival in Maria Enzersdorf, with the net proceeds
donated to a children’s protection centre in Lower Austria.

With this project, EVN and its employees underscore their
shared social responsibility in Lower Austria and also establish
contacts with people in need of support in the region.
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Aspect: Corruption

SO3 Examination of corruption risks

Corruption represents a risk factor in EVN's internal risk manage-
ment system, and appropriate instructions have been issued for all
Group companies based on the EVN Code of Conduct. The work
by the internal audit department also includes a review of compli-
ance-related circumstances and rules that could lead to or be related
to corruption.

S04 Employee anti-corruption training

All employees receive training on the EVN Code of Conduct and
anti-corruption policies of the company. The implementation of the
comprehensive compliance management system was accompanied
by the preparation of a compliance manual that provides employ-
ees with information and forms the basis for all related Group-wide
training programmes. Moreover, a whistle-blowing platform for the
Austrian workforce was installed in the EVN Intranet during the
2012/13 year. Conventional training courses on compliance were
also held for all employees. Following the conclusion of data protec-
tion audits in EVN's major foreign markets, whistle-blowing proce-
dures will soon be introduced in these countries.

L1 Also see Governance, commitment and engagement on
page 45.

SO5 Anti-corruption measures

No corruption issues were reported during 2013/14. Infringements
and violations represent a breach of the employees’ responsibilities
and may lead to consequences under criminal law. Any confirmed
suspicions would result in prosecution under labour and/or civil law,
depending on the severity of the case and the scope of the dam-
age. Therefore, employees who unintentionally come into conflicts
of interest or loyalty during the course of their work are advised to
contact EVN's compliance officer directly and without delay.

L1 Details on the compliance management system can be
found on page 46 under Governance, commitment and
engagement.

Aspect: Anti-competitive practice

SO7 Lawsuits in consequence of anti-competition practice,
cartel or monopoly formation

The structure of the purchase contract submitted by EVN AG during
December 2011 in connection with the privatisation process for the
one-third stake held by the state in EVN Electrorazpredelenie AD was
declared as non-compliant with the rules issued by the Bulgarian
financial market authority. EVN believes it complied in full with the
guidelines for the privatisation process, which were published on
the website of the Sofia Stock Exchange, and therefore appealed
this decision. In connection with the privatisation process, EVN AG



increased its holding in EVN Electrorazpredelenie AD (now EAD) to
97.75% and subsequently to 100% through stock exchange pur-
chases. The responsible Bulgarian court issued a decision on the
appeal by EVN Electrorazpredelenie AD on 25 June 2014, which
confirmed that EVN actions during the privatisation process con-
formed to the applicable guidelines issued by the Bulgarian financial
market authority.

The Bulgarian Commission for Protection of Competition initiated
legal proceedings against EVN Bulgaria EP, EVN Bulgaria EC, EVN SEE
and EVN Bulgaria to evaluate the possible infringement of legal
regulations. These proceedings involve allegations of insufficient
support and the obstruction of the registration process on the free
market as well as the unjustified change of suppliers. A decision
in this case is still pending. The Bulgarian Commission for Protec-
tion of Competition also initiated seven other proceedings against
EVN Bulgaria EC and EVN Bulgaria EP, which are based on possible
violations of Article 15 (unlawful agreements, resolutions and con-
certed practices) and Article 21 (misuse of a monopoly or controlling
market position) of the Bulgarian Competitive Protection Act. Six
of the proceedings are pending, and the seventh ended with the
conclusion that EVN Bulgaria EC and EVN Bulgaria EP acted in agree-
ment with all legal requirements.

In Moscow, the anti-monopoly commission (FAS) issued a legally
binding directive that declared a 1 June 2010 decision by the city
government to be in violation of competitive law. The original deci-
sion by the city government transferred the MPZ1 waste incinera-
tion plant to the investor EVN and also required and authorised an
increase in the capacity to 700.00 tonnes per year. EVN has initiated
several proceedings against the government measures to repeal this
directive and the investment contract, which are currently pending
in various instances.

The Moscow anti-monopoly commission (FAS) declared a 27 Sep-
tember 2007 decision by the city government, which defined the
terms of the tender for the sodium hypochlorite plant as a PPP
model, to be legally invalid. The decision involved Moswodokanal’s
obligations to purchase sodium hypochlorite. EVN initiated a num-
ber of legal steps in response to this decision. The dispute was termi-
nated by a settlement agreement reached with the city of Moscow
on 30 October 2014, which requires Moswodokanal to purchase
all shares in the property company and therefore also acquires the
sodium hypochlorite plant.

Aspect: Compliance

SO8 Fines/sanctions as a result of illegal activities

In March 2014, the Bulgarian State Energy and Water Regulatory
Commission (SEWRC/the regulatory authority) started administrative
proceedings to revoke EVN Bulgaria EC's licence. This action was jus-

Stakeholders — Society

tified by reference to EVN Bulgaria EC's offset of certain receivables
due from the national electricity company Natsionalna Elektricheska
Kompania EAD (NEK), which the regulatory authority claimed led to
the reduction of NEK's cash reserves and impaired the company’s
ability to meet its legal obligations. The administrative proceedings
are currently pending. The regulatory authority imposed a fine of
BGN 1.0m on EVN Bulgaria EC during the administrative proceed-
ings. EVN Bulgaria EC filed an appeal against this fine with the
Plovdiv district court (PDC), which is the court of first instance. On
10 October 2014, the court ruled in favour of the SEWRC and con-
firmed the fine. EVN Bulgaria EC has filed an appeal against this
decision with the administrative court in Plovdiv.

The SEWRC also carried out investigations at EVN Bulgaria EP, which
may lead to fines for violations allegedly revealed by a recent regu-
latory audit. The latest audit began on 6 January 2014 and covered
EVN Bulgaria EP’s operations from 1 July 2008 to 30 November
2013. The regulatory authority had, however, already conducted
three audits at EVN Bulgaria EP since 2010 (two audits in 2013
alone). No reasons were given for this last audit, and EVN Bulgaria
EP is unaware of any specific event or alleged violation that would
provide grounds for increased controls.

As a result of the audit, the regulatory authority imposed 50 fines
as of 10 October 2014. Each fine equals BGN 20,000 (in total BGN
1.0m). EVN Bulgaria EP has filed appeals against all of these fines
with the responsible Bulgarian court, and the related proceedings
are currently pending.

Aspect: Equal treatment

HR3 Occurrences of discrimination and countermeasures
taken

No incidents of discrimination on the grounds of ethnic, national
or social origin, skin colour, gender, sexual orientation, religion or
political orientation were reported during 2013/14. As one of the
key elements of international treaties, national social legislation,
social guidelines and the ILO core work norms, equal treatment is a
central factor for EVN's positioning as a responsible employer. Any
discrimination would be condemned and sanctioned under EVN's
compliance guidelines and personnel statutes.

Aspect: Freedom of assembly and collective negotiation
HR4 Right of free assembly and collective negotiation

For EVN and its subsidiaries at all locations, the right of free assem-
bly and collective negotiation represents a cornerstone for the
implementation of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights as
well as the ILO core work norms. This right also forms an integral
part of the EVN integrity clause, which is the basis for all orders and
contracts with suppliers and business partners by and with EVN.
EVN and its subsidiaries do not conduct any business activities that
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could endanger the free exercise of employee rights, in particular
the freedom of assembly and collective negotiation. In Austria and
all other EU countries, these rights are guaranteed by law. EVN has
also established a works council in its Austrian Group companies
and supported the founding of a EU works council to monitor com-
pliance with these and other human and employee rights at EVN's
facilities in the EU.

An analysis was conducted of the countries or geographical regions
where these human rights could be at risk. It concluded that Russia
is the only business location for EVN's subsidiaries outside the EU
that could be considered a risk country for human rights. EVN's legal
department therefore conducted extensive research into human
rights compliance in such risk countries and intensified its own
further education in this field. In the course of the internal training
sessions on the EVN Code of Conduct, the department also ensured
that the management of the Russian subsidiaries and facilities were
made aware of the need to comply with human and employee
rights, especially those mentioned above. Assessments and feed-
back indicated that these rights are not endangered by the business
activities of EVN or its subsidiaries in Russia. As a further precaution-
ary measure to protect human and employee rights, EVN evaluates
the relevant risks prior to the start of each international project.

Aspect: Security methods

HR7 Training for security personnel on the issue of human
rights

A strong emphasis is placed on the protection of human rights,
especially at EVN's business locations in South Eastern Europe. Loca-
tions that use security personnel — either employed staff or external
firms — are trained in the human rights aspects of the EVN Code of
Conduct and the integrity clause. In addition, the integrity clause
requires external firms to observe human rights. This represents an
integral component of service contracts and is implemented inter-
nally by the service providers. Human rights violations by security
personnel can therefore be ruled out almost completely and are
strictly sanctioned.
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Aspect: Assessment

HR9 Number of reviews concerning the compliance with
human rights and/or impact assessments

EVN places high priority on compliance with human rights in the
areas of investment and procurement practices, equal treatment,
freedom of assembly, the right of collective negotiation, the abolish-
ment of child labour and forced labour, complaints procedures,
safety measures and the rights of indigenous people. These prin-
ciples are specified in the EVN Code of Conduct and apply to all
employees in all business units. The already mentioned procurement
integrity clause requires all suppliers and subcontractors to comply
with these rules. Sampling procedures are used to audit the human
rights performance of suppliers in their business relations with the
EVN Group. The CSR target discussions also cover possible human
rights issues along the value chain and include these points in the
development of targets where applicable.



SNnvironment

As an energy and environmental services company, EVN is
committed to ensuring the careful use of resources and to
making an active contribution to climate protection.

EVN and its stakeholders defined “environmental protection and
resource conservation” and “sustainable energy generation and
climate protection” as central areas of activity. These sustainability
issues are therefore given high priority in the corporate strategy and
the company’s daily actions. One of the primary goals is to also
transfer the principles of environment-oriented management from
Lower Austria to EVN's international subsidiaries.

EVN has established an environmental protection department
already in 1990. It is responsible for the collection and analysis
of data on the ecological impact of issues that include the use of
resources, energy and water consumption, emissions, biodiver-
sity, transportation, as well as wastewater and waste. Based on its
analyses, the department assists the operating units in preventing
or minimising the environmental impact of their activities. EVN's
environmental policy statement defines central goals and values as
well as procedures and methods. The environmental management
system at all of EVN locations, which also covers occupational safety
requirements, has been certified according to I1ISO 14001 and EMAS
standards since 1995.

EVN makes an important contribution to the attainment of Austria’s

climate protection targets through the continuous expansion and

use of renewable energy sources, efficiency improvement measures

and extensive advisory services for customers on reducing energy

consumption. The decisive factor here is the creation of a balanced

mix between optimal supply security and a minimal impact on the

environment. Climate protection management by EVN includes the

following initiatives and strategic approaches:

- Increase in the use of renewable energy sources such as
water, wind, sun, biomass and biogas

- Improvement in the energy efficiency of EVN's own
production plants and networks

- Active participation in innovation, development and research
projects (among others, carbon capture and storage (CCS)
technologies)

- Information and advice for customers on reducing their energy
consumption

- Increase in regional value added through the use of local
energy carriers like biomass and biogas

- Active participation in the introduction of alternative mobility
concepts such as electricity- or natural gas-powered cars

- Creation of a stronger awareness among the general public
and employees through training courses and information
events

- Internal measures such as an increased focus on environmen-
tal aspects in procurement

O EVN's environmental policy statement can be found under
www.evn.at/EVN-Group/Verantwortung/Okologie.aspx

O EVN's EMAS certified plants are listed under
www.umwelt-bundesamt.at/'umweltsituation/ums/emas/

Six new EMAS certifications

EMAS, the Eco-Management and Audit
Scheme, was introduced by the EU in 1993
as a voluntary environmental management
system. The goal of the EMAS directive,
which is seen as the most demanding and [—
comprehensive environmental certification

in the world, is to establish a continuous

improvement process. In addition to the internal audit of
compliance with legal regulations and the requirements of
public authorities, this directive defines measures to conserve
resources and reduce emissions. EVN started the certification
process for its power plants in 1995. The Theiss power plant
was one of the first plants in Lower Austria to be certified
under EMAS, and the Durnrohr power plant followed shortly
thereafter.

The newest member of the EMAS family is the thermal power
plant in Korneuburg, which was successfully audited under
EMAS/ISO 14001 in March 2014. EMAS certification now
covers 100% of the energy supplied by EVN's thermal power
plants in Lower Austria. EVN Warme has also used this envi-
ronmental management system for 15 years: the number of
certified facilities is increasing continuously from the current
level of 45 to include newly built or acquired long-distance
heating plants. The next external audit in spring 2015 will
focus on the addition of five new plants. In 2013/14, a plan-
ning project was also started to include EVN's headquarters in
the EMAS environmental management system.

Aspect: Materials

The materials used by EVN consist mainly of primary energy carriers
like fossil fuels, waste and biomass. Only a limited amount of recy-
cling material is used with these components for technical reasons.
The energy generation and wastewater purification plants use various
substances as secondary components.
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EN1 Material utilisation for energy generation" 2013/14 2012/13
Fossil fuels? Terajoule 24,157 18,195
Biomass Terajoule 2,750 2,757
Waste? Terajoule 4,682 4,205
1) The EVN thermal power generation and heating power plants in Austria, Germany and Bulgaria and the thermal waste utilisation plant in Durnrohr/Zwentendorf

2) Natural gas, anthracite, heating oil

3) For incineration by the waste incineration plant in Diirnrohr/Zwentendorf

EN1 Material utilisation — network construction in Lower Austria” 2013/14 2012/13
Additional power lines km 1,350 1,087
Additional natural gas pipelines km 34 132
Additional heating lines km 35 68

1) Includes overhead lines as well as underground cables and pipelines.

EN1 Materials employed in
energy generation and

wastewater purification” 2013/14"
Limestone t 10,896
Ammonia t 1,179
Ammonia water t 1,331
Demineralised water m3 136,276
Lubricating oils t 2
Hydrochloric acid t 163
Sodium hydroxide t 69
Dosing media t 13
Rock salt t 108
Lime hydrate t 335
Precipitants | 1,584,076
Flocculating agents I 336,951
Citric acid I 4,900

1) At the EVN thermal power generation and heating power plants in Austria and
Germany, at EVN Wasser and in the WTE wastewater purification plants

A GRI indicators: Materials employed by weight or volume
(EN1); Use of recycled materials (EN2)

Aspect: Energy

EVN realises efficiency improvements in many areas through the use
of new technologies and continuous optimisation measures, also in
connection with additional voluntary target agreements related to its
EMAS certifications. These goals and measures are also described in
the CSR programme beginning on page 233. The development of
EVN's own energy consumption in comparison with the previous year
is shown in the table on GRI indicator EN3.

EVN’s energy intensity” for energy generation totalled 17.99 MWh
of primary energy for each GWh of electricity generated. EVN uses
electric vehicles for short distances wherever feasible to reduce indi-
rect energy use. The increased use of vehicles with alternative power
sources for longer distances is also a focus of activities. Business travel
is reduced as far as possible through the use of video conferencing. In
Bulgaria, plant windows were replaced and a solar-thermal system for
independent warm water supply was installed at the headquarters to
reduce the indirect use of energy.

1) Energy intensity includes EVN’s own consumption of electricity, natural gas, heat and
heating oil as a percentage of the total energy sales volume

EN3, EN4 Direct and indirect own energy consumption

broken down by primary energy sources 2013/14" 2012/13?
Natural gas MWh 5,258 6,229
Electricity MWh 459,049 316,504
Heating MWh 8,283 10,260
Heating oil® MWh 179 324
Total MWh 472,769 333,318

1) From 2013/14 incl. WTE and Duisburg-Walsum power plant (proportionally)
2) From 2012/13 incl. Bioenergie Steyr (proportionally)
3) Heating oil is used in Macedonia only.
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A GRI indicators: Energy consumption within the organi-
sation (EN3), Energy intensity (EN5); Reduction of energy
consumption (EN6)

L1  For details on the EMAS certifications, see page 83.

O Details on advising services can be found under
www.evn.at/optimising-energy

The products and services in EVN's core businesses (energy, water,
services) do not lead to any (additional) energy consumption for
customers. No data is available on energy consumption by suppliers
or service providers.

A GRI indicator: Energy consumption outside of the organi-
sation (EN4)

Aspect: Emissions

EN15 Direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1)

EVN takes numerous steps to improve the energy efficiency of its
operations and reduce the emissions from production and customer
usage. Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated on the basis of the
rules and factors defined in the EU Emission Trading Guideline for
the individual countries and cover all CO, emissions. The calculation
is based on the primary energy carriers used and the given emis-
sion factors. The absolute volume of emissions increased in 2013/14
due to the commissioning of the Duisburg-Walsum coal-fired power
plant.

Stakeholders — Environment

EN21 Specific emissions of the EVN thermal and
__ district heating (power) plants
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EN16 Indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) and
EN17 Other indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 3)
The calculation of indirect greenhouse gas emissions is based on the
factors used to determine CO, emissions in accordance with the EU
Emission Trading Guideline.

EN15 Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12
Austria and Germany" tCO, 2,058,900 1,513,334 1,499,640
Bulgaria t €O, 154,198 161,422 146,774
Macedonia t CO, 2,465 2,628 2,542
Total t Co, 2,215,563 1,677,385 1,648,956
£ CO,/GWh 336.21 281.54 292.65
1) Commissioning of the Duisburg-Walsum power plant during business year 2013/14
EN16 Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12
Austria and Germany” t CO, 110,248 62,903 64,859
Bulgaria t CO, 53,374 56,371 60,411
Macedonia t CO, 4,051 4,522 5,110
Total t CO, 167,674 123,796 130,380
1 CO,/GWh 358.79 378.85 402.58

1) Commissioning of the Duisburg-Walsum power plant during business year 2013/14
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VWhen you expand hydropower plants

There's a great deal to be said
for expanding hydropower:

it doesn’t produce any emissions
and is renewable in the best
sense of the word. But the eco-
logical balance is also important.
EVN operates five pump storage
plants and 67 hydropower
plants, and is working to further
strengthen its generation
capacity in this area — that brings
added security for customers.
But in all these activities, the
company never loses sight of its
ecological footprint.

YOU also need to keep an eye on

the ecological balance

EN17 Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3) 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12
Total tCO, 5,945,738 6,924,987 7,966,655

t CO,/GWh 226.21 254.14 286.73
EN18 Intensity of GHG emissions" 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12
Total CO, Emissions t CO,/GWh 315.03 320.24 350.76

1) Specific emissions from the total of Scope 1-3 in relation to the total sales volumes of electricity and natural gas

(20,901 GWh of electricity and 5,383 GWh of natural gas for 2013/14)

EN19 Initiatives for the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions and the results thereof

EVN invests continuously in projects to reduce its greenhouse gas
emissions. The initiatives launched in 2013/14 increased EVN's
annual savings by approx. 96,000 tonnes of CO,. The following sec-
tion provides examples of these projects.

Windpower
With a total generation capacity of 213 MW, EVN is one of the
largest windpower plant operators in Austria. EVN is also investing
in new projects to increase its windpower generation capacity to
300 MW over the medium term and thereby reduce CO, emissions:
- The ground-breaking ceremony for a new EVN windpark
in the communities of Prottes and Ollersdorf took place in
November 2013. The 12 wind turbines with a capacity of
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37 MW at this site will generate electricity for 24,000 house-
holds in Lower Austria. That represents a reduction of more
than 55,000 tonnes of CO, per year. The commissioning of
the windpark is scheduled for spring 2015.

- The new Prellenkirchen IV windpark opened in March 2014.
Together with Kittel-Mihle, EVN built eight further wind tur-
bines at this location. These 3-MW class turbines will generate
roughly 25.6 MW of electricity for roughly 17,000 households
and save approx. 39,000 tonnes of CO, per year.

Biomass

EVN currently operates more than 60 biomass plants, which make
it the largest supplier of natural heat in Austria. In order to ensure
reliable supplies of wood chips for the biomass plants, EVN con-
cluded an agreement with Wiener Neustadter Stadtwerke and



Kommunal Service GmbH (WNSKS) in 2013/14, which will deliver
up to 300 tonnes of forestry wood chips each year to EVN's near-
est long-distance heating plants. EVN uses over 1.5m loose cubic
metres of wood chips in its biomass plants each year. Continuous
expansion is also the maxim for this area:

- The commissioning of a 3.8 km biomass long-distance heating
network in the climate alliance community of Biedermanns-
dorf represented a further step to reduce CO, emissions. The
resulting heat supplies for municipal buildings, apartment
complexes and private households save approx. 960 tonnes of
CO, each year.

- A further 845 tonnes of CO, emissions were reduced by
the commissioning of EVN’s new biomass heating plants in
Reichenau an der Rax and Strasshof, which opened in March
and September 2014, respectively.

- EVN also completed a 4-MW long-distance cooling plant for
the Mistelbach-Ganserndorf hospital during June 2014. It will
save 260 tonnes of CO, per year.

Other projects

= In Schonkirchen, EVN built a solar power plant through a pub-
lic participation model in 2013. The high demand for this pro-
ject led to a second expansion stage in 2013/14 (Schénkirchen
I1). The Schonkirchen plant will have roughly 4,000 panels and
a total capacity of nearly 1,000 kWpeak after completion.
Almost 300 customers have invested in this project.

- The railway transport of most of the household waste in
Lower Austria saved roughly 40,000 truckloads and nearly
4,000 tonnes of CO, emissions.

- EVN's new biogas processing plant in Wiener Neustadt
produces biomethane in a quality equivalent to natural gas
and feeds it into the network. This allows for the energetic
utilisation of approx. 1.1m m? of biomethane per year, which
covers the heating needs of more than 1,000 households.

It also saves roughly 2,000 tonnes of CO, each year.

- The 31 km district heating transport line, which runs from
EVN's thermal waste utilisation plant in Dirnrohr over the
Perschling canal and Traisental to St. Pélten, saves more than
40,000 tonnes of CO, emissions each year.

L1 Also see “Innovations for a sustainable energy future” on
page 24 and indicator EN16

Stakeholders — Environment

EVN also helps to reduce customers’ CO, emissions with a broad
range of energy services. For example, measures in the areas of
lighting, photovoltaics and household appliances as well as energy
advising for households during the period from January to Septem-
ber 2014 saved approx. 2,000 kWh" of energy and reduced CO,
emissions by approx. 730 kg?.

1) Calculated on the basis of the method document published by the Austrian Energy
Agency in October 2013
2) Calculated on the basis of the energy mix ENTSO-E 2013

Aspect: Water

EN8 Total water withdrawal by sources

The increase in utility water consumption during 2013/14 resulted,
above all, from the initial inclusion of the Duisburg-Walsum coal-fired
power plant in these statistics. In contrast, the use of cooling water
declined year-on-year, above all due to the lower use of the thermal
power plants.

EN9 Sources of water that are fundamentally affected by
the withdrawal of water

EVN plants obtain their water from municipal providers or ground-
water wells. In 2013/14, the cooling water flow rate at the thermal
power stations along the Danube River totalled 155.6m m?3. This
corresponds to 0.26% of the average annual volume of the Danube
recorded at the Korneuburg gauge” (measuring point number
20724", which amounted to 59,98 1m m? and remains clearly below
the allowed threshold of 5%.

1) Source: Austrian Hydrographical Annual 2010, Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry,
Environment and Water Management

EN10 Recovered and reused water
The EVN power plants reuse wastewater as process water whenever
possible.

Aspect: Biodiversity

EN11 Land use in protected areas

An extensive supply network is necessary to ensure complete
supply coverage. Approximately 25% of the surface territory of
Lower Austria is designated as a protected area. In order to mini-
mise the environmental impact on these areas, EVN places great
importance on responsible network planning and construction.

EN8 Water withdrawal 2013/14" 2012/13
Drinking water (municipal suppliers) m? 375,890 320,877
Water use (groundwater) m? 1,919,131 1,720,062
Cooling water (surface waters) m? 158,617,752 237,576,241

All plants in Lower Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia
1) From 2013/14 incl. WTE and Duisburg-Walsum power plant (proportionally)
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Protected areas in Lower Austria

Protected areas in Bulgaria

Special protected areas (SPA) by the Natura 2000 network,
Directive 79/409/EEC on the conservation of wild birds (briefly: Birds Directive)

Special areas of conversation (SAC) by the Natura 2000 network,
Directive for conserving natural habitats and the animal and plant species
they contain 92/43/EEC (briefly: Fauna and Flora Directive)

EVN Bulgaria

EN12 Impact of business activities on biodiversity

EN13 Protected or restored natural habitats

EN14 Strategies and measures for the protection of
biodiversity

EVN is committed to minimising the impact of its business activities
on nature, in particular through a special focus on protecting the
natural habitats of local flora and fauna in the areas surrounding the
company’s plants and projects. For example, thermal power plant
operations pay special attention to the sensitive biodiversity of the
surrounding water areas by complying with administrative require-
ments for the intake temperatures of cooling water. This helps to
reduce the negative effects on the environment.

Reservoir monitoring plays an important role in protecting the bio-
diversity near hydropower plants. EVN therefore holds an annual
conference with the public authorities and stakeholder groups at
the Ottenstein reservoir to discuss relevant issues, in particular the
importance of the reservoir as a habitat for fish.

A central measure to protect biodiversity at the Ottenstein reser-
voir was the installation of online monitoring equipment, which
was developed by DWS-Hydro-Okologie GmbH together with EVN's
staff department for environmental protection and controlling.
This equipment continuously records and controls the parameters
required to evaluate the water quality. A probe can extend to the
bottom of the lake from its base on a floating measurement sta-
tion to measure the pH, temperature and oxygen content at various
levels. The goal of this extensive data collection is to research the
effects of return pumping operations and heavy rains on the water
quality and algae development.

EVN is also working on numerous other projects to protect biodi-

versity:

- Fish bypasses at the small-scale hydropower plants in
Hohenberg and Schaldorf and (since 2013/14) also in Erlauf

- Ajoint project with the association for the protection of great
bustards in Austria (continuation of the LIFE+ project)

- Nest platforms for storks (endangered species of white and
black storks) in Bulgaria and Macedonia

- Ajoint project with the Bulgarian Association for
Bird Protection to protect the imperial eagle and gyrfalcons
(EU LIFE+ programme)

- A project to protect the bird life at the Burgas lakes in Bulgaria

- Ajoint project with the Macedonian Environmental
Association for the Protection of Birds in the Ovce Pole region
(assessment of the impact of energy grids on birds)

- Participation in the construction of a Macedonian national
environmental network MAK-NEN
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EVN's properties in Austria in protected areas

or adjacent to protected areas” Number Area (ha)
Properties in protected areas (>50 m?) 679 479.4
Properties in protected landscape areas (>50 m?) 410 369.9
Properties in Natura 2000 areas (>50 m?) 526 2441
Properties directly adjacent to protected areas 19 24.2
Total 1,634 1,117.6

1) Excluding pipeline routes; multiple answers possible

As a continuing measure for the management of the impact on bio-
diversity, EVN works to integrate supervision based on ecological
principles into its construction projects.

EU13 Biodiversity of alternative locations
In 2013/14, alternative sites totalling 77.75 ha were held for wind-
power plants in Lower Austria. The alternative sites for pipeline
routes are published in publically accessible documents on the envi-
ronment and environmental compatibility tests.

Aspect: Waste and wastewater

EN22 Total wastewater discharges

In cases where the type or quantity of a wastewater stream dif-
fers from ordinary household wastewater, EVN concludes con-
tracts with sewage treatment plant operators based on the indirect
discharge. These contracts contain detailed provisions for the allow-
able amount of wastewater, the main substances it may contain,
required wastewater inspections, etc. Direct discharges into surface
water are regulated by the wastewater emission ordinance and
numerous water-related guidelines. EVN's wastewater streams are
regularly tested by accredited external institutions. Possible harmful
environmental effects are minimised by strict compliance with the
requirements of various public authorities concerning cooling water
intake temperatures.

The purification plants operated by EVN's subsidiary WTE discharged
a total of 154,758,139 m? of purified wastewater into surface water
in five countries during the 2013 calendar year.

EN23 Waste by type and disposal method

The hazardous and non-hazardous waste regularly occurring in
Austria is transferred to licensed disposal specialists based on frame-
work contracts. These specialists dispose of the waste in accordance
with Austrian law (thermal or material utilisation or deposition).

EVN recycles all fly ash and coarse ash. REALIT was stored in company-
owned landfills up to October 2009 and has been utilised to 100%
since November 2009. Roughly one-half of the biomass ash from
district heat production is transferred to a disposal firm and then
utilised.

EN24 Weight and volume of significant contamination

EVN records all environmentally relevant incidents in a standard-
ised reporting system that covers the plants in Austria, Bulgaria and
Macedonia. There were three significant cases of contamination
at EVN's Austrian plants during the reporting year. The incidents
involved oil spills which led to the pollution of 130 m* of soil. None
of the incidents involved contamination of the ground water. In all
three cases, the polluted earth was disposed and the areas were
restored based on consultations with the public authorities.

Development of waste quantities” 2013/14? 2012/13
Hazardous waste t 10,703 9,266
Non-hazardous waste t 180,512 137,663
Export of hazardous waste®

Hazardous waste t 0 0

1) With no construction residue or power plant side products
2) From 2013/14 incl. WTE and Duisburg-Walsum power plant (proportionally)
3) Oil containing PCBs from Macedonia to France for disposal
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: Environmental costs by cost categories EN25 Weight of waste categorised as dangerous
in% No hazardous or non-hazardous waste was disposed of across
national borders in 2013/14.

0.4 17.8 ____ Innovations, development and
14.6 research costs

Preventive measures and other EN26 Waters affected by wastewater discharges and
surface run-off

211 e

0.3 " environmental management costs
. a4 Intangible costs . .
(not unambiguously identifiable) A major part of the wastewater is cleaned by treatment plants before

67.5

I 63.9 "~ Waste and emissions treatment it reaches any surface water. At the power plants, quality-monitored
wastewater flows that meet current environmental standards are
discharged into the Danube River. This practice does not cause any
relevant damage.
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Aspect: Products and services

EN27 Initiatives for the reduction of environmental impact
caused by products and services

Due to the nature of its business activities, the environmental impact
of EVN's products is related primarily to emissions. Numerous meas-
ures have been implemented to prevent and minimise these emis-
sions, among others through innovation, development and research.
Plans call for an increase in the share of renewable energy sources to
50%, and measures have also been introduced in the company and
on the customer side (through advising services) to improve energy
efficiency.

Aspect: Transport

EN30 Significant ecological impacts of transport

The energy supplied by EVN is delivered through power lines and,
consequently, only the ecological effects from the construction of
these lines are relevant. These effects are identified through nature
and environmental impact assessments and can be reviewed in doc-
uments that are available to the general public (also see GRI indica-
tor EU13 on page 89). The ecological effects of employee transpor-
tation is included in the indicators EN15 (fuel) and EN17 (flights).
Data is not collected on the emissions resulting from transportation
by EVN's suppliers.

Aspect: Overall

EN31 Expenses and investments for environmental
protection

The environmental cost calculation includes all fully consolidated
and relevant subsidiaries of the EVN Group in Austria. The envi-
ronment-related expenditures is expected to amount to over
EUR 10,000 in 2013/14. The collection of this data is based on the
International Environmental Cost Accounting Guideline issued by
the International Federation of Accountants. Environmental costs
are defined as the monetised, internal costs of the impact of busi-
ness activities on the environment and, in particular, the costs of
damage prevention and repair.

In 2013/14 the environmental costs of the analysed business areas
amounted to EUR 104.0m. They include damage repair costs (e.g.
for the restoration of contaminated sites) as well as damage pre-
vention costs (e.g. for environmental management and/or flue gas
cleaning). On the charts, these expenditures are classified by envi-
ronmental media and cast categories. The highest costs are found
in the area of emission treatment because of the extensive amount
of flue gas cleaning. Environment-related income (scrap metal sales,
waste-generated steam) totalled EUR 26.5m in 2013/14.

Stakeholders — Environment
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suppliers

For EVN as an international energy and environmental
services company with a broad portfolio of products and
services, cooperation with a large number of different sup-
pliers and service providers is an important success factor.

Fair, transparent and partnership-based business relations with its
suppliers — from the initial contact to payment of the invoice —
represent an integral part of EVN's business practices. EVN is com-
mitted to the principles of economy in its procurement processes
and to free and fair competition, the equal treatment of all bidders,
confidentiality during business transactions, transparency and the
documentation of results, resource conservation and social respon-
sibility. In exchange, the company also places high demands on its
suppliers to provide services that are socially, economically and eco-
logically responsible.

EVN'’s supply chain

EVN's procurement activities can be classified under two main areas:
primary energy sources and electricity are purchased by the Energy
Trade and Supply Segment, while the other purchasing transactions
are coordinated, managed and carried out centrally by the procure-
ment department.

Procurement of products and services

Most of the supplier relationships are not related to energy pro-
curement and involve roughly 5,000 suppliers and service providers
at EVN’s main business locations (Austria, Germany, Bulgaria and
Macedonia). The majority of these suppliers come from EU coun-
tries. Numerous suppliers are also located in Macedonia, EVN's
only major business location outside the EU, and in Switzerland and
Turkey for the international project business.

In selecting its suppliers, EVN must comply with the Austrian federal
law on public procurement. EVN is the sector contractor under EU
public procurement law in many areas and must therefore meet
the applicable provisions. EVN also follows the principles governing
competition in the EU. New bidders are regularly included in tenders,
and a special focus is placed on inviting bids from local companies
in tenders for the international project business. The unequal treat-
ment of bidders, e.g. the preferential treatment of local suppliers,
is prohibited. The construction of infrastructure, plants and build-
ings plays an important role in both the energy and environmental
services business. In this connection, EVN works with a wide range
of companies such as construction firms, trade contractors and plan-
ning offices, plant, pipeline and cable line builders as well as suppli-
ers of plastic pipes, transmission/cable lines, electro-technical equip-
ment, meters, hardware and software for the operation of plants
and infrastructure and the production of work clothing.
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The costs in the international environmental project business consist
primarily of externally purchased materials and services (construc-
tion, machinery and electro-technical equipment). The project busi-
ness is characterised by continually changing framework conditions.
The successful realisation of these projects therefore demands high
flexibility from the procurement department for each project, cus-
tomer and technology in every branch and country.

A GRIindicator: Proportion of spending on local suppliers at
significant locations (EC9)

Electricity and natural gas procurement

Part of the energy distributed by EVN to its customers is not gener-
ated by the company’s own plants, but is purchased on the market.
There are a number of similarities in the structure of electricity
and natural gas suppliers: in addition to concluding medium-term
procurement contracts directly with producers, EVN also purchases
electricity and natural gas over the wholesale market, i.e. on com-
modity exchanges and in off-exchange trading over so-called “over-
the-counter (OTC) platforms” in bilateral transactions with individual
trading partners.

Electricity

The electricity requirements of Austrian customers are covered inter-
nally by EVN’s own plants as well as externally through domestic
green-energy allocated in accordance with the Green-Electricity Act
and through purchases over the wholesale market and medium-
term purchase contracts. Purchases over the wholesale market are
handled centrally for EVN and the other EnergieAllianz partners by
e&t Energiehandelsgesellschaft mbH, which utilises the European
Energy Exchange (EEX) and bilateral transactions with various trad-
ing partners.

EVN's electricity subsidiaries in Bulgaria and Macedonia are required
by law to purchase most of their electricity requirements from state-
owned producers, i.e. NEK and ELEM respectively. Since these coun-
tries have not yet implemented electricity labelling requirements,
EVN cannot determine the origin of this energy. The remainder of
the purchased energy comes from the wholesale markets.

Natural gas

Most of the natural gas purchases are handled by EconGas GmbH, in
which EVN holds an investment of 16.5%. This company purchases
natural gas directly from the producers, through intermediate sales
organisations and in national and international OTC trading centres
and exchanges, e.g. in Austria (CEGH), Germany (NCG) or the
Netherlands (TTF). Notable import volumes —from the European point
of view — come from Russia, the North Sea and the Sahara (Algeria,



Libya). One of the most important OTC natural gas trading platforms
is the Central European Gas Hub, which is used by both EconGas
GmbH and EVN for natural gas purchases.

Coal procurement

EVN operates two coal-fired power plants. Coal supplies for
Durnrohr are purchased directly by EVN, while the partner company
Steag handles supplies for the Duisburg-Walsum plant that was
commissioned during the first quarter of 2013/14. The purchases
for Duisburg-Walsum are based on a coal supply contract concluded
between Steag and Steag-EVN Walsum 10 Kraftwerksgesellschaft
mbH, which is responsible for the power plant operation. Conse-
quently, the procurement of coal for the Duisburg-Walsum power
plant is not directly within EVN's sphere of influence.

The coal supply chain for the Dlrnrohr power plant has three tiers:
purchases are made directly by EVN via coal wholesalers or trading
and forwarding agents (Tier 1) which, in turn, buy the coal from
processing companies or exclusive exporters (coal wholesalers) (Tier
2). These companies purchase their coal supplies directly from the
mining companies (Tier 3). EVN purchased coal supplies for energy
generation in the Durnrohr power plant from two intermediate
traders in 2013/14. Approximately 90% of the coal used in 2013/14
came from Europe and Russia, while the remaining 10% came from
the USA.

A GRI indicator: Description of the supply chain (G4-12)

Stakeholders — Suppliers

EVN'’s demands on its suppliers

Aspects: Evaluation of suppliers, complaint procedures

The step-by-step implementation of sustainability criteria in the
selection of suppliers and their products is a priority for EVN's CSR
agenda in order to align procurement practices with sustainability
goals. A continuous dialogue with suppliers plays an important role
in this process.

Integrity clause and guidelines for contract partners

An integrity clause for suppliers defines the guidelines for sustain-
able procurement and the duties and responsibilities of suppliers in
eleven points which include, among others, human rights, labour
practices, protection of the environment, resource conservation and
business ethics. It is binding for all suppliers (100%) of products and
services ordered by the procurement department for the locations
in Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia and is available for review by all
investors, investment and joint venture partners, subcontractors and
stakeholders on the EVN website (www.evn.at/integrity-clause).
The integrity clause is included with each order and tender and rep-
resents an integral part of the contract. EVN reviews compliance with

the integrity clause on a regular basis and has developed a special
questionnaire for this purpose. On-site evaluations were performed
at the locations of major suppliers in 2012/13 and 2013/14. Addi-
tional controls are carried out via checklists as required and in con-
nection with appointments at major suppliers’ locations. The audits
carried out during the reporting year did not lead to any objections.
EVN, as an international company, also operates in countries with
a less developed understanding for human rights or may purchase
services, materials or products from such countries through central
procurement. In connection with the sensitive area of textile pro-
curement (work clothes), risk countries have already been excluded
through an internal guideline. Other product groups are also being
included in this type of exclusion practice, or specific criteria and
measures are introduced to implement the EVN integrity clause and
can even exceed this. One example involves coal procurement in
Poland and Russia, where purchases are only made after EVN has
conducted its own research and verified compliance with human
and labour rights and examined the working and living conditions.

AllEVN's tenders have included an additional checklist since 2011/12,
above all when risk products are involved. This checklist asks for
additional information on environmental compatibility, product recy-
cling and packaging as well as the manufacturer’s certification. It
supports the uniform evaluation of suppliers’ compliance with the
integrity clause. EVN's most important suppliers are now covered by
this type of control.
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When you want to convert biomass
INto heat and electricity

yOu need reliable agriculture
and torestry partners

Energy must always be available when customers need it. EVN's heating supplies based

on biomass create a win-win situation in this respect. Thanks to its long-standing
partnerships, the company has earned a reputation for the intelligent use of forestry wood
chips — and can depend on reliable supplies of raw materials from our local forests.

With more than 60 plants, EVN is the number one for biomass heat in Austria.



WTE, an EVN subsidiary, has fully integrated the “partners and
suppliers” and “integrity and prevention of corruption” sections of
the EVN Code of Conduct in its procurement procedures. Special
attention is paid to compliance with human rights as defined in the
relevant section of the Code of Conduct. The EVN integrity clause has
been a part of all suppliers’ contracts concluded by WTE's German
branch since 2011/12. It is included when offers are requested, and
reference is made to the required compliance. The integrity clause
is explicitly discussed during contract negotiations and included as
an attachment to all suppliers’ contracts. The procurement depart-
ment in Poland has not included the integrity clause in its suppli-
ers’ contracts to date, but all such contracts contain an attachment
on “employer’s requirements”. This attachment covers suppliers’
requirements for projects subsidised by the EU and requires the
tendering companies to provide proof of quality assurance and, for
safety and health protection, certificates of origin for all individual
components. These certificates are normally issued by the suppliers
and confirm the origin of the materials used. Therefore, components
and materials from countries outside the EU are generally excluded.
Since 2007, WTE has followed a goal to avoid the purchase of prod-
ucts from high-risk countries, e.g. India and China.

Certifications and on-site inspections

EVN's procurement department evaluates the major suppliers and
subcontractors for selected product groups, especially those from
non-EU countries, in accordance with human rights and sustaina-
bility principles. This evaluation takes place on both a sampling and
a regular basis when major orders are placed with new suppliers.
The majority of all deliveries to EVN originate in the EU. Suppliers
that are not based in the EU are inspected on-site by EVN. Contrac-
tors, especially construction companies, are audited with regard to
their payment of social insurance contributions for their employees.
This review covers all Austrian contractors performing construction
services with a volume above EUR 10,000. To date, EVN has not
identified a single contractor that has failed to meet the obligations
to make social insurance contributions.

Audits are also carried out in the area of primary energy procure-
ment, above all as regards the coal supply chain. All coal mines
that supplied coal for EVN's energy generation in 2013/14 meet
wide-ranging international standards and are certified under
ISO 14001 (environmental management). The US mine that supplies
EVN with coal is also certified under OAHSAS 18001 (Occupational
Health and Safety). Regular on-site inspections not only take place
at the intermediate tiers of the supply chain — for example, in coal
processing companies — but also at tier 3, i.e. directly in the mines.
EVN conducted on-site inspections at one mine and one process-
ing company during the reporting year. Any objections are imme-

Stakeholders — Suppliers

diately reported to the respective operators and improvements are
requested. In the event that a satisfactory solution cannot be found,
the related contracts are terminated.

A GRI indicators: Percentage of new suppliers that were
screened using ecological criteria (EN32), using human
rights criteria (HR10), using labour practices (LA14) and the
related impacts on society (S09)

Mandatory labelling of electricity

In accordance with legal regulations, EVN's customer invoices in
Austria include information on the origin of the electricity. This proof
of origin shows the percentage of the electricity in the supply mix of
EVN Energievertrieb GmbH & Co KG that comes from the respective
primary energy carriers. The customer invoices also include informa-
tion on the environmental impact (CO, emissions and radioactive
waste). This data is reviewed by an independent auditor after the
end of each financial year and reported to the regulatory authority.
In 2012/13, proof of Austrian origin was provided for all electricity
volumes. The comparative data for 2013/14 will only be available
after editorial deadline of this report.

A GRI indicators: Labelling of products and services (PR4);
Product information (PR3); Percentage of new suppliers
that were screened using ecological criteria (EN32)

L For details on the composition of electricity from primary
energy sources, see page 57.

Complaint procedures

A complaint office was established in Lower Austria for bidders in
tender processes. It can be used to file complaints and obtain expla-
nations, free of charge and without mandatory legal counsel. This
independent office reflects legal requirements and, based on EVN's
activities as a sector contractor, is mentioned in the prequalification/
tender phase of every tender project. There were no justified objec-
tions in recent years.

Labour practices and humane employment

In order to minimise the risks associated with workplace safety, EVN
only works with selected partners who are contractually required to
employ trained personnel. Compliance with the directives for partner
companies is reviewed by experienced, well-trained EVN employees
who serve, for example, as construction coordinators or supervisors.
Subcontractors and suppliers are used for tasks with a limited period
of time, especially for maintenance and repairs and for the construc-
tion of new power plants and transmission networks. More than
5,000 subcontractors and suppliers worked for EVN in Austria and
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other countries during the reporting year. EVN does not maintain
central records on the number of workdays attributable to subcon-
tractors and suppliers because this would not have any significance
for their labour practices.

External services relevant for safety and/or health (e.g. in civil
engineering and building construction) are performed by roughly
300 prequalified companies under general contracts. Point 4 of
EVN's integrity clause, “Health & Safety at the Workplace”, requires
compliance with legal regulations for occupational health and safety
protection at the workplace, free access to drinking water and
sanitary facilities, appropriate fire protection, lighting, ventilation,
suitable personal protective gear and training for its proper use. The
companies are also required to instruct their employees in accord-
ance with § 14 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act (“Arbeits-
schutzgesetz”, ASchG) and § 154 of the Construction Worker Safety
Regulation (“Bauverordnung”, BauV). The same rules apply to their
subcontractors. Training certificates must be provided automatically.
Subcontractors must also confirm that they have the required certi-
fications and qualifications to undertake the contracted work. Com-
parable regulations are in force at EVN's international subsidiaries.

A GRI indicators: Workdays of subcontractors and suppli-
ers for construction, servicing and maintenance (EU17);
Percentage of subcontractors and suppliers who have par-
ticipated in health and safety training programmes (EU18)
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Corporate governance

report

EVN AG is a listed stock corporation under Austrian law whose
shares are traded on the Vienna Stock Exchange. Corporate
governance is therefore based on Austrian law — in particular stock
corporation and capital market laws, legal regulations governing
co-determination by employees and the company by-laws — as
well as the Austrian Corporate Governance Code (ACGC, see
www.corporate-governance.at) and the rules of procedure for
the company'’s corporate bodies.

Commitment to the Austrian
Corporate Governance Code

Introduction

The Executive Board and the Supervisory Board of EVN are com-
mitted to the principles of good corporate governance and thereby
meet the expectations of national and international investors for
responsible, transparent and sustainable management and control.
On 1 October 2012, EVN announced its commitment to comply
with the ACGC in the January 2012 version. The amendments to
the ACGC to reflect the Second Stability Act from July 2012 are also
binding for EVN.

The ACGC standards are divided into three categories. The legal
requirements (L-rules) are based on binding regulations, which must
be observed by all Austrian listed companies. The C-rules (Comply
or Explain) require public disclosure of the reasons in the event of
non-compliance. EVN provides a detailed explanation of any devi-
ations from these rules online under www.evn.at/Corporate-
Governance-Report and provides an overview in the following
section of this report. The R-rules represent recommendations and
do not require the justification of deviations.

The EVN Executive Board and Supervisory Board formally declare
their commitment to fully observe all C-rules of the ACGC, with the
exception of the following deviations and explanations. Further-
more, the company only deviates from a limited number of R-rules.

Deviations from C-rules
EVN does not fully comply with the following C-rules of the ACGC:

Rule 16: The Executive Board meetings must be called in accord-
ance with legal requirements and be attended by at least two mem-
bers for resolutions to be considered legally valid. Resolutions must
be passed unanimously and abstention from voting is not permit-
ted if the Executive Board has only two members. In cases where a
unanimous decision is not reached, the Executive Board must review
and vote again on the respective point of the agenda within ten
days. The Executive Board must report to the Supervisory Board if
the second round of voting does not bring a unanimous decision.
A simple majority of the votes cast is required in all other cases.
A spokesman will also be appointed for the Executive Board, even
when there are only two members, and the direction of the meet-
ings and representation therefore also apply in this case.

Rule 45: All members of the Supervisory Board, with one excep-
tion, complied with the provision that prohibits them from assuming
functions on the boards of other enterprises which compete with
EVN. The Supervisory Board member who does not meet this rule
represents the interests of a specific shareholder of EVN AG.

Rule 51: The Supervisory Board remuneration is disclosed in total as
well as in percentages for the chairman, the two vice-chairmen and
the other members. This presentation provides adequate insight into
the remuneration situation.

EVN Full Report 2013/14 97

Corporate governance report



98

Corporate bodies
Executive Board

Peter Layr
Spokesman of the Executive Board

Born in 1953. Doctor of Technical Sciences. Joined EVN in 1978. Member of the EVN AG Executive Board
since October 1999. Appointed spokesman of the Executive Board in January 2011. His term of office
expires on 30 September 2019. Peter Layr has executive responsibility for the Generation, Network
Infrastructure Austria and Environmental Services segments as well as the following corporate functions:
data processing, procurement and purchasing as well as internal auditing. In accordance with the dis-
closure required by Rule 16 of the ACGC, he holds one supervisory board mandate in another domestic
company that is not included in the consolidated financial statements of the EVN Group™.

1) Verbund AG, member of the Supervisory Board

Stefan Szyszkowitz
Member of the Executive Board

Born in 1964. Master of Law, Master of Business Administration. Joined EVN in 1993. Member of the
EVN AG Executive Board since January 2011. His term of office expires on 19 January 2016. Stefan
Szyszkowitz has executive responsibility for the Energy Trade and Supply and Energy Supply South East
Europe segments as well as the following corporate functions: controlling, customer relations, finance
(incl. investor relations), Group accounting, general secretary and corporate affairs, information and
communications, human resources as well as administration and construction. In accordance with the
disclosure required by Rule 16 of the ACGC, he holds three supervisory board mandates in other domes-
tic companies that are not included in the consolidated financial statements of the EVN Group?.

2) EVN-Pensionskasse Aktiengesellschaft, chairman of the Supervisory Board
CEESEG Aktiengesellschaft, member of the Supervisory Board
Wiener Borse AG, member of the Supervisory Board



Supervisory Board
Members of the Supervisory Board

Corporate governance-report — Corporate bodies

Date of initial Independence
Name (year of birth) appointment Function in listed companies and other important functions Rule 53"
Shareholder representatives
Member of the Supervisory Board of Flughafen Wien
President and Chairman Aktiengesellschaft, Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Burkhard Hofer (1944) from 20.01.2011  of HYPO NOE Gruppe Bank AG no
Stefan Schenker
1%t Vice-Chairman (1946) from 12.12.1996 Independent forestry engineer yes
Willi Stiowicek Head of the Presidential Department of the
2" Vice-Chairman (1956) from 15.01.2009 Magistrate of the Provincial Capital St. Plten yes
Chairman of the Executive Board of
Norbert Griesmayr (1957) from 12.01.2001 VAV Versicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft yes
Member of the Executive Board of
Thomas Kusterer (1968) from 17.01.2013  EnBW Energie Baden-W(rttemberg AG yes
Managing Director of the BENDALUTZ-WERKE GmbH,
Member of the management board of the Benda-Lutz Corporation, USA,
Vice-President of the Lower Austrian Chamber of Commerce and of
Dieter Lutz (1954) from 12.01.2006 the association of Osterreichische Industrie, Group Lower Austria yes
Head of the Finance department, Provincial Government of
Lower Austria, CEO of NO Holding GmbH and
Reinhard Meifl (1959) from 12.01.2006 NO Landes-Beteiligungsholding GmbH yes
Bernhard Mdller (1973) from 12.01.2006 Mayor of the statutory city Wiener Neustadt yes
Edwin Rambossek (1943) from 20.01.2011  Management consultant yes
from 12.01.2001 Chairwoman of the advisory board of Raiffeisen Evolution project
Michaela Steinacker (1962) 1024.12.2013  development GmbH, member of the Austrian Parliament yes
Authorised representative of Raiffeisenlandesbank
Angela Stransky (1960) from 16.01.2014 Niederosterreich-Wien AG yes

Employee representatives

Franz Hemm (1955)

from 03.05.1994
unlimited term

Chairman of the Central Works Council of Netz Niederosterreich
GmbH, Vice-President of the Lower Austrian Chamber of Labour

Paul Hofer (1960)

from 01.04.2007
unlimited term

Chairman of the Central Works Council of EVN AG

Monika FraiSl (1973)

from 01.07.2013
unlimited term

Central Works Council

Manfred Weinrichter (1961)

from 01.01.2001
unlimited term

Vice-chairman of the Central Works Council of
Netz Niederdsterreich GmbH

Otto Mayer (1959)

from 12.05.2005
unlimited term

Central Works Council

The terms of office of all Supervisory Board members elected by the Annual General Meeting expire at the end of the Annual General Meeting that will vote on the release from liability

for the 2014/15 financial year.

The employee representatives are delegated by the respective Works Council for an unlimited term, but may be recalled by their Works Council at any time.

1) Rule 53 of the ACGC: independence of the company and the Executive Board

A list of the Supervisory Board committees can be found on page 100.
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Independence of the Supervisory Board

A member of the Supervisory Board is considered to be independent
when he/she has no business or personal relations with the com-
pany or its management board that could lead to a material conflict
of interest and therefore influence the member’s behaviour. If any
such conflicts of interest arise, EVN requires multi-year transition
periods in accordance with the ACGC.

The guidelines to determine the independence of the elected mem-

bers of the Supervisory Board stipulate that these persons

—> may not have any business or personal relations with EVN AG
or its Executive Board that constitute a material conflict of
interest and are therefore capable of influencing the member's
behaviour;

- may not have served as a member of the Executive Board or a
top executive of EVN AG or any of its subsidiaries during the
past five years;

-> may not maintain or, in the previous year, did not maintain
any business relations with EVN AG or a subsidiary of EVN AG
that are considered material for that member. This also applies
to business relations with companies in which the Supervisory
Board member holds a significant economic interest;

—> may not have acted as an auditor of EVN AG or owned a
share in or worked as an employee of this firm during the past
three years;

—> may not serve on the management board of another company
in which a member of the Executive Board of EVN AG is a
member of the supervisory board; and

- may not be closely related (i.e. direct offspring, spouses, life
partners, parents, uncles, aunts, brothers, sisters, nieces,
nephews) to a member of the Executive Board or to persons
who hold one of the above-mentioned positions.

Function and committees of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board fulfils its responsibilities as a joint decision-
making body in cases where individual issues are not delegated to
its committees. The Supervisory Board committees are responsible
for preparing negotiations and resolutions, monitoring the imple-
mentation of the Supervisory Board’s decisions and taking decisions
on issues delegated by the Supervisory Board. The following com-
mittees were established by the Supervisory Board of EVN AG, each
of which includes at least three elected Supervisory Board members
and the legally required number of employee representatives:

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:

- monitoring the accounting process;

= monitoring the effectiveness of the internal control system
and, if necessary, the company'’s internal audit and risk
management systems;
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- monitoring the audit of the annual and consolidated
financial statements;

- verifying and monitoring the independence of the auditor
of the annual financial statements (consolidated financial
statements), especially with regard to supplementary services
provided for the audited company;

- reviewing the annual financial statements and preparing the
authorisation of these financial statements, reviewing the
proposal for the distribution of profits, the management
report and, if applicable, the corporate governance report
as well as submitting a report on the results of this review
to the Supervisory Board;

- examining the consolidated financial statements and the
Group management report and submitting a report on
the results of this examination to the Supervisory Board
of the parent company; and

- preparing a proposal for the Supervisory Board on the
selection of the auditor of the annual and consolidated
financial statements.

The Audit Committee includes the financial expert required by law
and Rule 40 of the ACGC.

The Personnel Committee is responsible for all matters involving
the relationships between the company and the members of
the Executive Board, in cases where the full Supervisory Board is
not responsible under law. The Personnel Committee nominates
replacements for vacant seats on the Executive and Supervisory
Boards. As the Remuneration Committee of the Supervisory Board,
the Personnel Committee has one member with knowledge and
experience relating to remuneration policy (Rule 43 of the ACGC).

The Working Committee is responsible for carrying out the specified
tasks assigned by the full Supervisory Board. In certain urgent cases,
the Working Committee is authorised by the rules of procedure for
the Supervisory Board to approve specified business transactions on
behalf of this body.

The Supervisory Board held five plenary meetings during the
reporting year, at which its members fulfilled the tasks and duties
required by legal regulations and the company’s by-laws. The Audit
Committee of the Supervisory Board met three times in 2013/14.
The Working Committee, which also serves as an emergency com-
mittee, did not meet during 2013/14. The Personnel Committee,
which also serves as a remuneration and nominating committee,
met three times during the reporting year. Average attendance at
Supervisory Board meetings equalled 88% in 2013/14.



Composition of the Supervisory Board committees

Working Committee
Burkhard Hofer (Chairman)
Stefan Schenker

Willi Stiowicek

Reinhard Meifs|

Franz Hemm

Paul Hofer

Personnel Committee
Burkhard Hofer (Chairman)
Stefan Schenker

Willi Stiowicek

Audit Committee

Stefan Schenker (Chairman)
Burkhard Hofer

Willi Stiowicek

Reinhard Meifsl

Franz Hemm

Paul Hofer

Annual General Meeting

The shareholders of EVN exercise their legal and voting rights at
the Annual General Meeting, whereby each share is granted one
vote. EVN AG has no preferred shares or shares with multiple voting
rights. Decisions on specific matters are reserved for the Annual
General Meeting by Austrian law or the company’s by-laws, among
others the distribution of profits, the release of the members of the
Executive Board and the Supervisory Board from liability, the selec-
tion of the auditor for the individual and consolidated financial state-
ments, and the election of the members of the Supervisory Board.
Moreover, the Annual General Meeting is entitled to make decisions
pertaining to changes in the company by-laws and planned capital
measures. The results of voting and the agenda for the 85" Annual
General Meeting of EVN on 16 January 2014 are available on the
EVN website (see www.evn.at/AGM.aspx).

Clear separation of management and

control responsibilities

Austrian stock corporation law prescribes a dual management
system and requires strict separation between management bodies
(i.e. Executive Board) and controlling bodies (i.e. Supervisory Board).
Parallel membership in both bodies is not permitted.

Corporate governance-report — Corporate bodies

Management of the company by the Executive Board

The Executive Board of EVN has a minimum of two members. If the
Supervisory Board does not appoint a chairman or spokesman for
the Executive Board, the members are entitled to designate their
own spokesman. The Executive Board is responsible for managing
the company to support its business activities and continued success
in the interests of shareholders, employees and the general public.
The work of the Executive Board is based on legal requirements
and the company’s by-laws as well as the rules of procedure for
the Executive Board that were approved by the Supervisory Board.
Important rules of conduct are also defined by the ACGC.

Irrespective of the Executive Board’'s overall responsibility, the
Supervisory Board establishes and assigns specific areas of responsi-
bility to the individual Executive Board members based on the given
requirements. Certain transactions are reserved for joint discussions
and decision-making by the full Executive Board. Business trans-
actions that require consent, based on legal regulations or a previous
Supervisory Board resolution, require the Executive Board to obtain
the consent of the Supervisory Board. The company by-laws contain
a detailed list of such cases.

Reporting obligations of the Executive Board

Organisational regulations require the Executive Board to report
to the Supervisory Board. These reporting standards also apply to
the Supervisory Board committees. The reporting obligations of the
Executive Board also include quarterly reports on the development
of business in the Group and information on matters of importance
relating to major Group subsidiaries.

Communications between the Executive Board and the Supervisory
Board take place at the meetings of the Supervisory Board and its
committees and in writing, as required. In addition, the Executive
Board and the chairman of the Supervisory Board maintain regular
contact on issues that fall under the responsibility of the Supervisory
Board. In particular, this includes the preparation of meetings.

Supervisory Board

As of 30 September 2014, the Supervisory Board of EVN AG had
ten shareholder representatives elected by the Annual General
Meeting and five members delegated by the Works Council. The
Supervisory Board is headed by a chairman and two vice-chairmen,
who are chosen by the Supervisory Board from among its members.
The minimum number of independent members was set at 50%
in a meeting on 29 May 2006. The independent members of the
EVN Supervisory Board, as defined by Rule 53 of the ACGC, are listed
on page 99.

The Supervisory Board performs its duties in accordance with the
provisions of stock corporation law and the company’s by-laws.
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Additional guidelines for its activities are provided by the rules of
procedure for the Supervisory Board and by the ACGC.

One particular responsibility of the Supervisory Board is to supervise
the work of the Executive Board, from which it may request a report
at any time concerning the development of business. Legal regula-
tions allow the Supervisory Board to extend the scope of business
transactions requiring its formal consent as defined in §95 (5) of
the Austrian Stock Corporation Act. The rules of procedure for the
Executive Board and the Supervisory Board contain a detailed list of
such business transactions and measures.

The ACGC further demands an external valuation of compliance
with the requirements defined in the Code (R-62). In the reporting
period the evaluation of the efficiency of the Supervisory Board’s
activity, especially its organisation and mode of operation, was
therefore undertaken by an external consulting company.

Remuneration report

Remuneration for top executives (Rule 28a): In light of the
requirements defined by the latest version of the ACGC, the current
variable remuneration system for top executives was amended by
the company’s corporate bodies as of 1 October 2010. However,
the ratio of the variable remuneration to fixed salaries remained the
same.

This adjustment set the following priorities:

Indicators to illustrate the company’s economic situation:
In line with the further development of management indicators to
reflect the strategic and operating priorities of the EVN Group, the
following quantitative parameters are used: increase in economic
value added (EVA®) and average cash flow contribution.

Sustainability: Within the frame of the new remuneration rules
one of the primary objectives of the current version of the ACGC is
to strengthen the focus of the Executive Board and top managers on
sustainability and a long-term orientation. The introduction of multi-
annual targets and a bonus reserve further increased the solidity and
stability of the variable remuneration system.

The bonus reserve is defined as a payment mechanism which is con-
verted into an annual pro-rata bonus if the quantitative targets are
met during a given period. Up to one-half of the bonus reserve is
distributed after the achievement of objectives has been confirmed,
while the remainder is carried forward to the next year. The intro-
duction of a bonus reserve is designed to achieve two main goals.
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On the one hand, it serves to focus on a multi-annual approach that
links consecutive years by carrying the unpaid bonus components
from the initial reserve forward to the period similar to an open-
ing balance. On the other hand, this scheme aims to cushion and
smooth the “independent” fluctuations in the company’s economic
performance.

Multi-year approach: The quantitative objectives are defined in
advance for a period of three years. The determination of target
achievement is based on internal data and information as well as
external sources, e.g. benchmarks, peer group analysis and capital
market and rating evaluations. In addition to the general three-year
period, the accuracy and validity of the medium-term targets is
evaluated each year. These targets are only revised in exceptional
cases, for example in light of unforeseeable events or changes in the
company which have a significant impact on performance.

Stock options (Rule 29): EVN does not have a stock option pro-
gramme for the members of the Executive Board or key managers.

Performance-based bonus programme for the Executive Board
(Rules 27, 30): In 2013/14, the remuneration of the Executive
Board comprised a fixed component of approx. 80% and a variable
component of approx. 20%. The variable component was based
on the 2012/13 financial year. The performance-based component
consists of the following parts: 30% based on increase in economic
value added (EVA®), 40% on the average cash flow contribution
and 30% on individually agreed targets. Target corridors between
0% and 200% have been defined for the quantitative performance
criteria (EVA®) and the cash flow contribution, whereas 0% to 100%
of the individually agreed targets can be achieved.

In keeping with the requirements of the current ACGC, the Supervisory
Board of EVN AG approved an amendment to the previous variable
remuneration scheme beginning in 2010/11. However, the ratio
of variable remuneration to fixed salaries remained unchanged.
Additional information is provided under the remuneration system
for top executives (Rule 28a).

Detailed information on the remuneration of the Executive Board is
provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements on
page 215.

Directors and officers insurance (D&O insurance, Rule 30):
EVN has arranged for D&O insurance to cover claims for damages
by the company, shareholders, creditors, competitors and customers
against the Executive Board resulting from violations of their legal
obligation to exercise diligence in their capacity as managing direc-
tors. The managerial bodies of the Group's subsidiaries and certain
affiliated companies are jointly insured under the prevailing terms
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and conditions at the present time. The costs for this insurance are
carried by the company. Since the premium applies to the Group and
is not dependent on the number of insured persons, extending this
insurance coverage to the members of the Supervisory Board does
not increase the premium.

Contracts requiring the approval of the Supervisory Board
(Rule 48): No member of the Supervisory Board has concluded
a contractual agreement with EVN or one of its subsidiaries that
would entitle him to more than an insignificant payment. All such
contracts are subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board (Rule 51): The Super-
visory Board remuneration totals TEUR 98 per year. The chairman
receives 15.1% of this amount, each of the two vice-chairman
11.0% and each of the other members slightly more than 9.0%. The
attendance fee equals EUR 190 per person and meeting.

Measures to support women (Rule 60): EVN is commit-
ted to offering equal opportunities to all its employees. The per-
centage of women in EVN's workforce amounts to 21.4%. The
Women@EVN programme was developed in 2010/11 to increase this
percentage by improving the opportunities and perspectives offered
to women working for the EVN Group in Austria. It is designed to
create operating conditions that enable women to assume quali-
fied positions in specialised areas and at the management level in
line with their inclinations and skills. There were no appointments
of women to additional senior positions during the reporting year.
Nine women currently serve as project managers (project manager
career). The percentage of young women in the Group’s manage-
ment development programme was higher than the current share
of women in EVN's workforce during the reporting year. EVN has
long pursued measures to support the work-life balance, including
flexible working time models, the provision of individualised support
to women returning after maternity leave, day care during holidays,
information events for staff members on parental leave as well as a
comprehensive programme of vocational and professional educa-
tion which is also open to men and women on parental leave. EVN's
objective for the medium term is to increase the share of women to
a level that mirrors the current educational levels of women in the
applicable professional groups.

The Austrian Equal Opportunity Act requires companies with a
workforce above a certain threshold to submit a biannual remuner-
ation report (§ 11a of the Equal Opportunity Act). All companies in
the EVN Group with a workforce above the legally defined thresh-
old prepared the required report and submitted it to the applicable
works council.

and risk management at EVN

Directors’ Dealings (Rule 73): No purchases of EVN AG shares by
members of the corporate bodies or other persons listed in §48 d
(4) of the Austrian Stock Exchange Act were reported to the com-
pany or to the Austrian Financial Market Authority during 2013/14.

Related party: EVN AG and NO Landes-Beteiligungsholding
GmbH concluded a group and tax settlement agreement in 2005.
Additional information on related party transactions as defined in
IAS 24 is provided in the notes to the consolidated financial state-
ments (note 67).

Auditor’s fees: EVN's annual and consolidated financial statements
for the 2013/14 financial year were audited by KPMG Austria GmbH
Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Vienna. The
fees charged by KPMG in 2013/14 amounted to EUR 1.5m (previous
year: EUR 1.8m) and were distributed as follows: 52.2% for audit-
ing and audit-related services (previous year: 35.0%), 47.0% for tax
consulting services (previous year: 63.0%) and 0.8% for other con-
sulting services (previous year: 2.0%).

Internal audit and
risk management at EVN

Internal audit

EVN's internal audit department reports directly to the Executive
Board and to the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board. It is
responsible for auditing and controlling processes and business
units throughout the EVN Group. Separate internal audit depart-
ments were also established at EVN's subsidiaries in Bulgaria and
Macedonia. The internal audit departments prepare annual audit
plans based on the results of risk assessments, and these plans are
approved by the responsible corporate bodies before implementa-
tion. Any problem areas identified during the audits are reported
to the respective business units and measures for improvement are
recommended. The implementation of the measures approved by
EVN’s management is then evaluated in follow-up audits. No serious
deficiencies were identified that could endanger the strategy and
objectives of the EVN Group.

Risk management

The primary goal of risk management at EVN is to protect the
Group’s current and future earnings potential. Risks are recorded
and analysed based on a centrally managed two-stage process that
provides the responsible employees in the EVN Group with meth-
ods and tools to identify and evaluate risks. The respective business
units, which are also responsible for risk management, communi-
cate their risk exposures to the central risk management depart-
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ment, which classifies, analyses and evaluates risks across the entire
Group. Measures to minimise corporate risks are also identified and
their implementation is monitored. The two-stage risk manage-
ment process is supported by standardised guidelines and carried
out throughout the Group on an on-going basis. The resulting risk
analyses are presented to the Executive Board and the responsible
managing directors at regular intervals by the Group Risk Commit-
tee. A detailed presentation of EVN’s main risks and the measures
taken to control risks can be found in the chapter Risk management
in the2013/14 management report.

Issuer compliance

EVN has developed a comprehensive set of rules to prevent the
misuse of insider information, which are based on the regulations
defined by the Austrian Stock Corporation and Stock Exchange
Acts, the Austrian Issuer Compliance Code and the Directive of the
European Parliament on insider dealing and market manipulation.
Twenty permanent and six ad-hoc areas of EVN's business have
been designated as strictly confidential, and the involved employees
undergo regular training. In line with the Austrian Stock Exchange
Act, compliance and confidentiality are monitored and evaluated
by a designated compliance officer who reports directly to the
Executive Board. The regular controls carried out by the compliance
officer in 2013 /14 did not identify any deficiencies.

EVN Code of Conduct

EVN places great importance on the integrity and legally compliant
behaviour of all its employees and business partners. As an inter-
national energy and environmental services company, the manage-
ment and employees of EVN have a far-reaching responsibility and
role model function both in Austria and abroad.

The Code of Conduct, which was developed in a Group-wide pro-
cess and updated during 2012, forms the basis for all compliance
measures at EVN.

EVN's compliance organisation was revised in 2011/12, and a fun-
damental commitment was made to develop a compliance manage-
ment system (CMS). The staff department Corporate Compliance
Management (CCM) was established as of 1 October 2012 to
develop, manage and improve the CMS; this department reports
directly to the Executive Board. The CMS defines a standardised
framework for the entire Group, which is designed to ensure honest
and legally compliant behaviour in everyday business activities.
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Following the installation of a Group-wide compliance organisa-
tion in 2012/2013, activities during the reporting year focused on
employee training. As EVN managers play a key role and serve as
role models in establishing a sustainable compliance culture, roughly
100 managers were sensitised for this subject in five-hour inter-
active, dialogue-oriented workshops in October. Training sessions
for the managers of the strategic units in South Eastern Europe,
above all in Bulgaria and Macedonia, followed during the months
from February to April 2014.

In order to spread and anchor the CMS as strongly as possible
throughout the Group, training sessions were consequently also
organised for employees. The compliance officers responsible for
the respective departments explained EVN's CMS and the related
structures and processes in sessions consisting of small groups and
lasting for at least 2.5 hours, whereby special focus was placed on
explaining the anonymous whistle-blower system. The content of
the training sessions is based on the ten subject areas defined in
EVN’s Code of Conduct. The following subjects were defined based
on the risk analysis and discussed with the help of specific case
studies: customers, capital market and investors, integrity and avoid-
ance of corruption, data protection and confidentiality.

The compliance box “Compliance. It's good energy.” was developed
for these training courses. It can be used as a collection of resources
or reference work and was distributed to all participants at the
start of the training course. The box is available in German, English,
Bulgarian, Macedonian and Russian.

Compliance training courses on the content described above were
held for roughly 6,000 employees and over 200 managers in ten
different languages at more than 100 different locations in 2013/14.
Plans call for the completion of these courses by the end of the 2014
calendar year, which means that all employees and all managers in
the EVN Group are well equipped to deal with the challenges result-
ing from adherence to the compliance rules.

New compliance-relevant content and issues are reviewed on a regu-
lar basis. In accordance with the risk assessment, they are processed
and included in the compliance box as required. Training courses on
special subjects provide additional information for areas exposed to
increased risk. In order to strengthen the awareness for compliance
and reinforce the course content, employees have access to the
EVN Intranet as well as to e-learning tools that were especially devel-
oped and contain, among other, special functions for managers,
infrastructure project managers or sales employees. A specific plan
sets the main points for communications on current compliance
issues.
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An important element of the CMS is the whistle-blowing procedure,
which provides a framework to report possible violations of EVN's
Code of Conduct. This system is voluntary and anonymous, and the
identity of the reporting person is never revealed.

The EVN Code of Conduct can be found under www.evn.at/Code-

of-conduct.aspx. Its content is based on EVN's various stakeholder
groups and is designed to support all employees in implementing
EVN's values during their working activities.

Maria Enzersdorf, 18 November 2014

Peter Layr
Spokesman of the Executive Board

The Supervisory Board received a report on the content, goals and
status of the compliance organisation in its meeting on 11 December
2013 in accordance with Rule 18a of the ACGC.

Audit of the consideration of the Austrian Corporate
Governance Code by KPMG Austria

The report by KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Vienna, on their audit of the corporate
governance report of EVN AG, Maria Enzersdorf, pursuant to § 96
(2) Stock Corporation Act, to evaluate compliance with the ACGC is
available under www.investor.evn.at.

Stefan Szyszkowitz
Member of the Executive Board
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When you build windparks

VOuU mustn't forget the dialogue
with the neighbours

The best way to develop good sustainable solutions is through joint efforts. That also
applies to windpower. EVN is a valued partner in this field for a number of reasons:

its proven ability to evaluate all relevant factors, the inclusion of wide-ranging interests
and reservations, respect for wildlife, the creation of reasonable models for all
stakeholders and extensive experience in the construction and operation of windparks.
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Energy policy environment

European energy and climate policies

European climate policy

On 23 October 2014 the Heads of State and Government of the EU
agreed on new goals for their climate and energy policies. These
shall result in reduced greenhouse gas emissions of at least 40%
(compared to the 1990 level) by 2030, thereby expanding the
mandatory reduction in greenhouse gas emissions — minus 20%
by 2020 - that had been defined in the European Parliament’s
2009 climate and energy package. Another target includes an
increase in the share of renewable energy in the total energy mix
from originally 20% in 2020 to now 27% in 2030. Furthermore, a
27% improvement in energy efficiency over the 2007 level by 2030
is intended, compared to the target for 2020 which lay at 20%.

Emission trading

The European Union reacted to the high surplus of CO, certifi-
cates that resulted from the general economic weakness and lower
demand in 2009 and 2010 by temporarily reducing the supply in the
European emission trading system. This step was designed to sup-
port a sustainable increase in the certificate price. The number of cer-
tificates for the period from 2014 to 2016 was cut by 900m and the
related auction was postponed to 2019 and 2020 (“backloading”).

/A GRI indicator: Allocation of CO, emissions allowances
(EU5)

Austrian energy and climate policies

Energy efficiency act

The Energy Efficiency Act passed by the Austrian Parliament on
9 July 2014 requires utility companies to implement energy savings
measures for end customers if they sell more than 25 GWh per year
to this market segment. The legally defined level for these meas-
ures equals 0.6% of the previous year's energy sales volumes. If this
goal is not met a compensation payment of EUR 0.20 per kWh has
to be paid, which goes to a fund to finance energy savings pro-
jects and the increased use of renewable energy sources. EVN has
taken major steps in this area during recent years by introducing an
extensive offering of energy services. The Energy Efficiency Act also
requires large companies to install an energy management system or
to carry out an energy audit every four years. The measures result-
ing from the audit will be used to define a framework for action,
but there is no immediate legal requirement for its implementation.

Electricity labelling requirement

The amendment to the Electricity Management and Organisation
Act (“Elektrizitatswirtschafts- und -organisationsgesetz”, EIWOG)
that was published on 6 August 2013 requires the labelling of the
electricity delivered to end customers (see § 79a EIWOG). Beginning

on 1 April 2014, the operators of pump storage power plants are
also obliged to provide proof of origin for the use of pump elec-
tricity, in accordance with the amendment of the energy labelling
by-law of 2013.

The legally mandated labelling of electricity on the invoices of EVN
Energievertrieb GmbH & Co KG was audited by KPMG Austria GmbH
Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Vienna. The
environmental impact of the supply mix used by EVN Energievertrieb
GmbH & Co KG in 2012/13 totalled 233.05 g/kWh of CO, emissions
and 0 mg/kWh of radioactive waste.

A GRI indicator: Legally prescribed information on products
and services (PR3)

Market model

The high feed-in volumes of electricity from renewable resources
and related economic factors have created increasingly shorter win-
dows for the use of thermal generation capacity. Since the cost of
the required primary energy carriers (natural gas, coal, oil) is fre-
quently not covered by the low wholesale price for electricity, the
market is now witnessing the decommissioning of thermal power
plants. Older plants as well as newly constructed, highly efficient
facilities have been affected by this development. The high volatility
of renewable energy supplies has also reduced the scope of plan-
ning and created significant challenges for the energy industry. The
resulting impact on supply security in Europe and Austria is difficult
to estimate at the present time. The availability of sufficient produc-
tion capacity therefore represents an important factor for protecting
electricity supplies. Against this backdrop, adequate steps need to
be taken in order to allow producers to provide capacity on a sound
economic footing.

Regulatory environment

Austria

The new regulatory period in Austria started on 1 January 2013 for
natural gas and on 1 January 2014 for electricity; both periods cover
five years. A key factor in the regulatory model is the individual pro-
ductivity factor, in other words: the individual cost cutting target of
the company. The regulatory commission assesses EVN as an effi-
cient company.

Bulgaria

Household and commercial customers in the low-voltage network
are supplied at regulated prices, while customers in the medi-
um-voltage network have been able to select their own supplier
since 1 July 2013. Based on 2013/14 energy sales, more than 20%
of the market in EVN's supply area is already liberalised. EVN is active
in this customer segment through its trading subsidiary EVN Trad-
ing South East Europe EAD. EVN Bulgaria Electrosnabdjavane EAD,
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Regulatory model for network usage tariffs
for electricity and natural gas in Austria

Electricity (previous)

Electricity (new)  Natural gas (current)

Regulatory authority E-Control GmbH E-Control GmbH E-Control GmbH
Start of the regulatory period 01.01.2010 01.01.2014 01.01.2013
Next regulatory adjustment” 01.01.2014 01.01.2019 01.01.2018
Duration of the regulatory period 4 years 5 years 5 years

Regulatory method

Revenue caps Revenue caps Revenue caps

Weighted average cost of capital (WACC) before taxes, nominal? 7.0% 6.42% 6.42%
General productivity factor? 1.95% 1.25% 1.95%
Individual productivity factor 0.25% 0.36% 0.00%

Inflation®

Annual adjustment

Annual adjustment Annual adjustment

1) Adjustment of WACC and productivity factors

2) The interest-bearing asset base is defined by the regulated asset base (RAB). The annual investments are added to the RAB in the following year.

3) Electricity: 50% of the achieved productivity increases are passed on to end customers during the regulatory period.

Natural Gas: Gains from cost reductions remain with the company during the regulatory period.

4) The network operator price index consists of consumer (30%) and building price (40%) indices as well as wage increase index.

which previously supplied these customers in the regulated market,
now also acts as a “supplier of last resort” and services customers in
the liberalised market segment who do not select another supplier
or cannot receive electricity from their chosen supplier through no
fault of their own.

The Bulgarian regulatory authority reduced the day and night
tariffs for household customers by roughly 1.0% and 10.0%,
respectively, as of 1 January 2014. Average end customer prices
were raised slightly by 0.6% as of 1 July 2014, but electricity pro-
curement costs for the electricity provider EVN Bulgaria Elektro-
snabdjavane EAD increased substantially. At the same time, the
granted margin of EVN Bulgaria Electrosnabdjavane EAD was
reduced from 3% to 2%. Network tariffs were also reduced at the
same time. The regulatory authority justified this intervention in
the network tariffs with the economic advantage created by the
reduction of network losses, a development that led to the offset
of revenues from previous periods. In total, these price and tariff
adjustments had a generally negative effect on EVN. The previous
price reductions were only partly offset by a 9.7% increase in end
customer prices on 1 October 2014. Rule violations of the latest
tariff decision have not been annulled.

In 2013/14 EVN was confronted with administrative proceedings
that were initiated by the local regulatory authority and are aimed
at withdrawing the license for the Bulgarian electricity sales subsidi-
ary EVN Bulgaria Elektrosnabdjavane EAD. EVN is using all available
means to enforce its claims in this — in its view unjustified — pro-
ceeding.
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Arbitration proceedings initiated in June 2013 at the International
Center for the Settlement of Investment Disputes (ICSID), an insti-
tution established by the World Bank, are being actively pursued.

Macedonia

Legal requlations applicable as of 1 January 2014 require the unbun-
dling (i.e. break-up) of the individual areas of business areas in utility
companies in Macedonia. EVN met these requirements by establish-
ing a sales company (EVN Macedonia Elektrosnabduvanje DOOEL)
and a production company (EVN Macedonia Elektrani DOOEL) in
2012 in addition to the previously founded EVN Macedonia AD,
which continues to operate as a network company.

The next liberalisation step in Macedonia started on 1 April 2014.
This gives all large companies in the country free choice of their
energy supplier. Based on 2013/14 energy sales, more than 40% of
the Macedonian market is already liberalised. This liberalisation will
be continued gradually over the coming years.

Atariff decision on 1 July 2014 raised average end customer prices in
Macedonia by 3.5%. The network tariff included in this price, which
is the relevant component for EVN in Macedonia, was increased by
only a slight amount and remained below the expected level. Other
cost elements related to the planned liberalisation steps were also
not included.

Croatia

In preparation for its accession to the EU on 1 July 2013, Croatia
adapted its energy law and transferred regulatory and market moni-
toring responsibilities to a regulatory authority. Natural gas prices for
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Regulatory model for network usage tariffs Bulgaria Bulgaria Macedonia
in Bulgaria and Macedonia electricity heat electricity

State Energy and Water State Energy and Water Energy Regulatory

Regulatory Commission Regulatory Commission Commission
Regulatory authority (SEWRCQ) (SEWRC) (ERO)
Start of the regulatory period 01.08.2013 01.07.2014 01.01.2012
Next regulatory adjustment 01.08.2015 01.07.2015 01.01.2015
Duration of the regulatory period 2 years 1 year 3 years

Regulatory method”

Revenue caps

Rate of return on capital

Revenue caps

Weighted average cost of capital (WACC)

before taxes, nominal 7.0% 7.6% 6.7%
Recognised network losses 8.0% 20.0% 14.0%
Productivity factor yes yes no
Investment factor? no no yes

1) The revenue caps comprise the recognised operating expenses, the amortisation and depreciation as well as the recognised return on the regulatory asset base (RAB).

2) Annual review and approval of company'’s investment plans by the regulatory authority

business customers have been liberalised since 2012, whereas the
liberalisation of the natural gas market for household customers was
postponed by lawmakers to 31 March 2017. Household customers
therefore continue to purchase natural gas at regulated prices.

A new method to determine the price of new customer connections
took effect on 1 August 2014. The customer’s contribution to the
cost of a natural gas network connection is now dependent on the
connection capacity. This change allows for more precise planning
and provides greater transparency for customers as well as natural
gas distribution companies.

General business environment

The recent slowdown in global trade has hindered an export-driven
upturn in the Eurozone. Many of the countries have still not over-
come the effects of the financial market crisis and — in contrast to
the USA —continue to suffer from weak domestic demand. There are
clear signs of economic stabilisation in those countries which were
noticeably hit by the debt crisis and that introduced early and deep-
seated reforms. However, growth has recently stagnated in France,
and Italy has fallen into recession. The latest forecasts point to an
increase of 1.2% to 1.6% for the European Union economy in 2014,
while the estimates for 2015 range from 1.6% to 2.0%.

Economic momentum in Austria has declined in recent months and
remained below expectations throughout the entire year. The pros-
pects for a notable improvement during 2015 are also low, as the

uncertainty over the future development of the economy has under-
mined the investment climate and private consumption is also only
increasing at a slow pace. In addition, the Austrian export sector has
been negatively influenced by the weak international environment.
These developments have been reflected in a recent downward revi-
sion to forecasts: GDP growth in 2014 is now estimated at 0.8%,
and the projections for 2015 range from 1.2% to 1.6%.

Bulgaria has recently benefited from an improvement in domestic
demand. However, the faltering global economy and the escalation
of the Ukraine conflict, including the sanctions between Russia and
the EU, have led to a reduction in the original forecasts. Growth is
expected to range from 1.4% to 1.7% in 2014, but a more substan-
tial increase of up to 3.0% is projected for 2015.

In Croatia, the economy has developed negatively again in 2014;
nevertheless, first signs of a recovery can be detected. There is some
encouragement from the growth in exports and the increase in
industrial production. Overall, the Croatian economy is forecasted
to decline by 0.5% to 0.8% in 2014, and growth of up to 0.7% is
predicted for 2015.

The economy in Macedonia has profited from an increase in exports
to the EU countries, above all Germany, in recent months. But the
slowdown in the EU also poses a risk for the Macedonian economy.
According to the latest forecasts, the GDP is expected to increase by
up to 3.2% in 2014 and by up to 3.5% in 2015.
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GDP growth % 2015f 2014e 2013 2012 2011
EU-28"2 1.6-2.0 1.2-1.6 0.1 -0.4 1.6
Austria?? 1.2-1.6 0.8 0.3 0.9 2.8
Bulgaria”?4 2.0-3.0 1.4-1.7 0.9 0.6 1.8
Croatia" 249 0.0-0.7 -0.5-(-0.8) -1.0 -1.9 0.0
Macedonia®® 3.4-35 3.0-3.2 3.1 -0.4 2.8

Source: “European Economic Forecast, Spring 2013", EU Commission, May 2014

Prognose der Osterreichischen Wirtschaft 2013-14", IHS, September 2014
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Energy sector environment

The development of business at EVN is influenced to a significant
degree by external factors. Energy consumption by end custom-
ers — in the form of electricity, natural gas and heat — is influenced
primarily by the weather. In contrast, the demand for energy by
industrial customers is dependent mainly on the general business
environment.

The reporting year was characterised by an unusually mild winter
in 2013/14 throughout EVN's entire supply region with tempera-
tures that were substantially higher than in the previously warm
winter season. Consequently, the heating degree total, which is
used to determine energy requirements for comparative purposes,
was lower than the prior year in all of EVN's supply markets: the
year-on-year decline equalled 20.6 percentage points in Austria,
7.6 percentage points in Bulgaria and 5.7 percentage points in
Macedonia.

The prices for primary energy carriers such as crude oil, natural gas
and coal continued to decline in 2013/14. Higher stocks due to the
mild winter in 2013/14, the fracking boom in the USA and a weaker
economic outlook were the decisive factors for this development. A
reduction in the auction volume for CO, emission certificates by the
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European Union stabilised prices in year-on-year comparison, but
the prices for these certificates remain at a very low level. This com-
bination of low-priced CO, emission certificates and the continuing
decline in coal prices is making electricity generation from coal-fired
plants more economical, while state-of-the-art natural gas plants in
many EU countries are being decommissioned because they have
become unprofitable.

The reporting year also brought a further decline in forward and
spot market prices on the European electricity exchanges. This trend
is not expected to reverse over the short or medium term because
of the current supply overhang, which is a direct result of the global
economic stagnation and the continued expansion of electricity
generation from renewable sources. Under these market conditions,
the operation of conventional production facilities is frequently not
profitable. The consequences include the shutdown of power plants,
a trend that can already be observed on the market. A reduction in
the overall supply, and a resulting possible risk to supply security, can
therefore be expected over the medium term. Despite the increased
use of renewable energy, the future availability of reserve capacity
that can be quickly activated will be important to offset the volatility
of energy generation from renewable sources, above all from solar
and windpower plants. The solution of this dilemma represents the
key challenge for the European energy policy in the coming years.
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Energy sector environment — indicators 2013/14 2012/13 Charilg;: 2011/12
Temperature-related energy demand™ %

Austria 86.9 107.5 -20.6 99.0
Bulgaria 80.4 88.0 -7.6 108.2
Macedonia 89.4 95.1 -5.7 120.4
Primary energy and CO, emission certificates

Crude oil - Brent EUR/bbII 79.7 82.9 -3.9 86.0
Natural gas — GIMP? EUR/MWh 221 26.9 -17.8 243
Coal — API#2% EUR/t 59.5 63.1 -5.8 76.3
CO, emission certificates (2"/3 period) EUR/t 5.2 5.3 -1.5 7.9
Electricity — EEX forward market?

Base load EUR/MWh 38.6 47.5 -18.7 54.8
Peak load EUR/MWh 49.2 58.8 -16.3 67.0
Electricity - EPEX spot market®

Base load EUR/MWh 335 38.8 -13.6 44.8
Peak load EUR/MWh 42.2 49.9 -15.4 55.1

1

Calculated based on the heating degree total; in Austria the basis (100%) corresponds to the long-term average value from 1996 to 2010,
in Bulgaria from 2004 to 2012 and in Macedonia from 2001 to 2010; changes reported in percentage points.

Net Connect Germany (NCG) — EEX (European Energy Exchange) stock exchange price for natural gas

ARA notation (Amsterdam, Rotterdam, Antwerp)

Average prices for the respective EEX quarterly forward market prices, beginning one year before the respective reporting period

EPEX spot — European Power Exchange

2
3
4
5
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Business development

The application of the new consolidation standards (see note
2. Reporting in accordance with IFRS, page 148ff) led to retrospective
changes in the scope of consolidation as of October 2012. EVN KG,
which was previously included through proportional consolidation,
and the EnergieAllianz Group were consolidated at equity retrospec-
tively as of 1 October 2012.

In comparison with the previous year, the scope of consolidation
(see note 4. Scope of consolidation, page 157ff) was increased to
include one additional fully consolidated company; the total num-
ber of at equity consolidated companies did not change. Including
EVN AG as the parent company, the consolidated financial state-
ments for the 2013/14 financial year include 64 fully consolidated
companies (previous year: 63), one joint operation included through
proportionate consolidation (previous year: 1) and 19 companies
consolidated at equity (previous year: 19). EVN Macedonia Elektros-

In 2013/14, Degremont WTE Wassertechnik Praha v.0.s. was ini-
tially consolidated at equity. The sale of the 50% stake in ALLPLAN
Gesellschaft m.b.H led to the deconsolidation of this company
previously included at equity.

Highlights 2013/14

- Earnings influenced by negative effects
- Tariff decisions in Bulgaria and Macedonia led to
impairment losses and lower revenue
- Significant doubts over the realisation of the thermal waste
utilisation plant in Moscow led to a valuation allowance
- Reduced estimates for the long-term development of
electricity prices led to impairment losses in generation
segment
- Energy sales reduced by mild winter
- Weather-related decline in generation from windpower and

nabduvanje DOOEL was added to the scope of fully consolidated hydropower
companies during the reporting year.
2013714 2012/13" Change

Condensed consolidated statement of operations EURm EURm nominal in %
Revenue 1,974.8 2,105.9 -131.0 —-6.2
Other operating income 711 95.2 -24.0 -25.2
Electricity purchases and primary energy expenses -1,032.2 -979.0 -53.2 5.4
Cost of materials and services -251.9 -301.3 49.4 16.4
Personnel expenses -313.0 -305.3 -7.6 -2.5
Other operating expenses -359.0 -170.4 -188.5 =
Share of results from equity accounted
investees with operational nature 94.0 95.0 -1.0 -1.0
EBITDA 184.1 540.0 -356.0 -65.9
Depreciation and amortisation -256.0 -237.9 -18.0 -7.6
Effects from impairment tests —269.5 -59.9 —-209.6 -
Results from operating activities (EBIT) -341.4 242.2 -583.6 -
Financial results -31.9 -71.5 39.6 55.3
Result before income tax -373.3 170.7 -544.0 -
Income tax 102.8 -17.9 120.7 -
Result for the period -270.5 152.8 -423.3 -

thereof result attributable to EVN AG shareholders (Group net result) -299.0 109.3 -408.3 -

thereof result attributable to non-controlling interests 28.5 43.5 -15.0 -34.6
Earnings per share in EUR? -1.68 0.61 -2.29 -

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).

2) There is no difference between basic and diluted earnings per share.

EVN Full Report 2013/14 113

Management report



Statement of operations

All key figures and comparative amounts for the current and pre-
vious financial years are presented and described in accordance
with the adjustments to the scope of consolidation based on
IFRS 10 and 11. The results from equity accounted investees with
operational nature are reported under results from operating
activities (EBIT).

Results of operations

IRevenue recorded by the EVN Group fell by EUR 131.0m, or 6.2%,
to EUR 1,974.8m in 2013/14. The development of revenue was
negatively influenced by the mild winter weather as well as earlier
tariff decisions in Bulgaria and Macedonia. A further negative effect
resulted from a communication by the Bulgarian regulatory author-
ity concerning the repayment of revenue from previous periods. In
addition, a decline was recorded in orders processed in the interna-
tional project business.

The revenue generated outside Austria fell by EUR 172.4m, or
15.0%, to EUR 979.8m. This represents a decline in the share of
Group revenue from 54.7% in the previous year to 49.6%.

Other operating income declined by EUR 24.0m, or 25.2%, to
EUR 71.1m, above all due to a decrease in work in process.

The cost of electricity purchases from third parties and primary energy
expenses were EUR 53.2m, or 5.4%, higher at EUR 1,032.2m. This

increase resulted from the commissioning of the Duisburg-Walsum
power plant in December 2013, an increase in provisions for
onerous contracts related to the marketing of EVN's own electricity
production and higher procurement costs for the EVN companies in
Bulgaria and Macedonia due to local tariff decisions.

The revenue decline in the international environmental services busi-
ness was accompanied by a reduction in the cost of materials and
services, which fell by EUR 49.4m, or 16.4%, to EUR 251.9m.

Personnel expenses rose by EUR 7.6m, or 2.5%, to EUR 313.0m,
above all due the wage and salary adjustments required by collective
bargaining agreements. The average number of employees declined
by 131, or 1.8%, to 7,314, whereby the reduction was related to the
foreign investments and was achieved through process and organi-
sational optimisation measures.

Other operating expenses rose by EUR 188.5m to EUR 359.0m. This
development resulted, above all, from an valuation allowance of
EUR 191.4m recognised on a leasing receivable in the fourth quarter
of 2013/14 in connection with the thermal waste utilisation plant
no. 1 in Moscow. Significant doubts over the realisation of the pro-
ject made this step necessary. Positive effects included a decline in
legal and consulting fees and in valuation allowances on receivables
from energy sales, especially in South Eastern Europe.

: Revenue by region

~ EBITDA by region

in EURm
2,105.9
1,006.8 1,974.8
902.3 ___ South Eastern Europe
953.8 994.9 ___ Austria
[ 1454 mmmm /7.5 Central and Eastern Europe
2012/13" 2013/14

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively
according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS,
page 148).
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in EURm
540.0
128.4
409.1 184.1
BN 26.6 ___ South Eastern Europe
342.7 ___ Austria
25
2012/13"

—-185.2 ___ Central and Eastern Europe
2013/14

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively
according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS,
page 148).



The share of results from equity accounted investees with opera-
tional nature totalled EUR 94.0m and, with a decline of 1.0%, nearly
matched the previous year. EBITDA amounted to EUR 184.1m, which
is EUR 356.0m, or 65.9%, lower than the previous year.

Depreciation and amortisation rose by EUR 18.0m, or 7.6%, to
EUR 256.0m due to the high level of investments in the Lower
Austrian network, the expansion of windpower and the commis-
sioning of the Duisburg-Walsum power plant. Impairment testing
led to the recognition of impairment losses totalling EUR 269.5m,
which represent an increase of EUR 209.6m over the comparable
prior year value. The impairment losses recognised during the pre-
vious year were related primarily to goodwill and customer bases in
Bulgaria und Macedonia, to the sludge treatment plant and other
components of the co-generation plant in Ljuberzy, Moscow, and
to generation capacity in Austria and Bulgaria. As a result of these
impairment losses, EBIT fell to EUR —341.4m.

Financial results amounted to EUR -31.9m and were therefore
EUR 39.6m higher than the previous year. This improvement resulted
primarily from an increase of EUR 48.0m in income from investments
to EUR 45.2m, which was influenced by the absence of the negative
prior year effect from the fair value measurement of the Verbund AG
shares held by WEEV Beteiligungs GmbH, as well as an increased
dividend from Verbund AG in 2013/14. The commissioning of the
Duisburg-Walsum power plant led to higher interest expense, as
a result of which interest result fell by EUR 7.8m, or 11.9%, to
EUR —73.2m despite the current low level of interest rates and a
decline in contributions from the international project business.

Profit before income tax for the 2013/14 financial year equalled
EUR —373.3m (previous year: EUR 170.7m). Income taxes were posi-
tive at EUR 102.8m due to the tax effectiveness of the larger part of
earnings. Profit after tax amounted to EUR —270.5m, compared with
EUR 152.8m in the previous year.

Group net profit fell to EUR —299.0m (previous year: EUR 109.3m).
Earnings per share declined to EUR —1.68 (previous year: EUR 0.61).
Since the effects that led to the negative Group net profit were
mainly not cash effective, the Executive Board will recommend
the distribution of a stable dividend of EUR 0.42 per share for the
2013/14 financial year to the 86" Annual General Meeting (previ-
ous year: EUR 0.42). This corresponds to a dividend yield of 4.1%,
(previous year: 3.7%) based on the share price of the EVN AG on
30 September 2014 (EUR 10.13).
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Statement of financial position

Asset and financial position

EVN's balance sheet total fell by EUR 441.9m, or 6.1%, year-on-year
to EUR 6,841.8m as of 30 September 2014.

Balance sheet structure

l 16.9

30.09.2013"

in %

— Current
liabilities

Current assets ___12. O

Non-current ___88.0
assets

30.09.2014

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to
IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).

Non-current assets declined by EUR 629.5m, or 9.8%, to
EUR 5,777.7m and represent 84.4%, (previous year: 88.0%) of total
assets. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment were
EUR 129.1m, or 3.3%, lower at EUR 3,738.7m, chiefly due to the
above-mentioned impairment losses and in spite of an increase
in property, plant and equipment. The carrying amount of equity
accounted investees and other investments was EUR 85.0m, or
5.2%, lower than the previous year and amounted to EUR 1,553.8m.
This development is attributable, above all, to a decline in the
market value of the Verbund shares held directly by EVN AG as of
30 September 2014 and an impairment loss on the participation
interest in Verbund Innkraftwerke GmbH.

Other non-current assets declined by EUR 415.4m, or 46.1%, to
EUR 485.2m. This reduction resulted primarily from the impair-
ment loss recognised on the leasing receivable from the thermal
waste utilisation plant no. 1 in Moscow and the reclassification of
EUR 223.7m in leasing receivables from the sodium hypochlorite
plant in Moscow to non-current assets held for sale as of 30 Sep-
tember 2014 (previous year: EUR 0). The sodium hypochlorite plant
was sold to the city of Moscow at the end of October after the
balance sheet date.

EVN Full Report 2013/14 115

— Non-current
liabilities
I 38.5___ Equity

Management report



30.09.2014 30.09.2013" Change
Condensed consolidated statement of financial position EURm EURm EURm in %
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 3,738.7 3,867.8 -129.1 -3.3
Investments in equity accounted investees and other investments 1,553.8 1,638.8 -85.0 -5.2
Other non-current assets 485.2 900.6 -415.4 -46.1
5,777.7 6,407.2 -629.5 -9.8
Current assets 840.4 876.5 -36.0 -4.1
Non current assets held for sale 223.7 0.0 223.7 -
Total assets 6,841.8 7,283.7 -441.9 -6.1
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Issued capital and reserves attributable to shareholders of EVN AG" 2,395.2 2,837.5 -442.3 -15.6
Non-controlling interests 237.5 241.7 -4.2 -1.7
2,632.7 3,079.2 -446.5 -14.5
Non-current liabilities "
Non-current loans and borrowings 1,747.7 1,805.7 -58.1 -3.2
Deferred tax liabilities and non-current provisions" 545.5 582.8 -37.3 -6.4
Deferred income from network subsidies and other non-current liabilities 609.4 583.0 26.4 4.5
2,902.6 2,971.5 -68.9 -2.3
Current liabilities
Current loans and borrowings 194.2 394.6 -200.4 -50.8
Other current liabilities 1,112.3 838.3 273.9 32.7
1,306.5 1,232.9 73.5 6.0
Total equity and liabilities 6,841.8 7,283.7 -441.9 -6.1

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).

Current assets declined by EUR 36.0m, or 4.1%, to EUR 840.4m. The
increase in inventories was more than offset by a decline in securities
as well as cash and cash equivalents.

Equity totalled EUR 2,632.7m as of 30 September 2014, which is
EUR 446.5m, or 14.5%, lower than the previous year. The equity
ratio fell from 42.3% in 2012/13 t0 38.5% in 2013/14. The develop-
ment of equity was influenced mainly by the negative Group profit
recorded for 2013/14, the distribution of the dividend for the pre-
vious financial year in January 2014 and the change in the valua-
tion reserve recorded directly in equity without recognition through
profit or loss.

Non-current liabilities declined by a total of EUR 68.9m, or 2.3%,
to EUR 2,902.6m, mainly due to the reclassification of non-current
loans and borrowings as short-term. The reduction in deferred tax
liabilities and non-current provisions was contrasted by an increase
in deferred income from network subsidies and other non-current
liabilities.
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Current liabilities rose by EUR 73.5m, or 6.0%, to EUR 1,306.5m,
whereby the major effects were offsetting. The scheduled redemp-
tion of two bonds led to a decline in current loans and borrowings.
In contrast, current liabilities were increased by the EUR 60.9m con-
tract performance guarantee for the Duisburg-Walsum project that
was drawn in November 2013 and a EUR 72.4m liability recognised
for the repayment of revenue from previous periods based on a tariff
decision in Bulgaria on 1 July 2014.

Value analysis

The weighted average cost of capital (WACQ) after tax, taking into
consideration EVN's specific company and country risks, was set at
6.5%.

The return on equity (ROE) equalled —9.5% because of the neg-
ative Group net profit recorded for 2013/14. Economic Value
Added (EVA®) was also negative at EUR —=174.1m (previous year:
EUR —20.7m). The operating return on capital employed (OpROCE)
amounted to 2.9% in 2013/14 (previous year: 6.1%).
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Change
Value analysis 2013/14 2012/13" in %
ROE % 95 5.0 -14.5
Average equity EURmM 2,856.0 3,122.5 -8.5
WACC after income tax? % 6.5 6.5 0.0
Operating ROCE (OpROCE)? % 2.9 6.1 -3.1
Average capital employed? EURm 4,900.5 5,046.6 -2.9
Net operating profit after tax (NOPAT)? EURM 144.5 307.3 -53.0
EVA® EURm -174.1 -20.7 -

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).
2) The weighted cost of capital is calculated on the basis of a 9.5% cost of equity and an after tax cost of 3.1% for debt as well as an equity ratio of 50%.
3) Adjusted for impairment losses and one-off effects. The market value of the investment in Verbund AG is not included in capital employed in order to

consistently determine the value contribution.

Liquidity position

Due to the strong cash flow from operating activities EVN reduced
net debt by EUR 187.2m, or 10.3%, to EUR 1,622.4m in 2013/14.
Combined with the decline in equity, this led to an increase in the
gearing ratio from 58.8% to EUR 61.6%. In order to safeguard its
financial flexibility, EVN AG has a syndicated credit line as well as
bilateral credit commitments that were not drawn as of 30 Sep-
tember 2014 and are therefore available in full. The syndicated
credit line was renewed prematurely in July 2014, whereby the
volume was adjusted at EVN's request to meet its financial needs
and reduced from EUR 500m to EUR 400m. The term of the credit
line was also extended to five years with two one-year extension
options. In addition, two of the existing bilateral credit lines were
extended prematurely during 2013/14. The remaining terms of the
bilateral credit lines totalling EUR 175m, which were concluded with
six banks, range from two to five years. Based on these reserves,
EVN's liquidity position can be regarded as stable.

: Net debt in Eurm, gearing in %

1,809.6
1,622.4 ___ Net debt

61.6% Gearing

58.8%

2012/13" 2013/14

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8
(see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).

L1 Additional information on the composition and terms of
non-current financial liabilities is provided in the notes
beginning on page 193.

Statement of cash flows

The impairment losses recognised during the third and fourth quar-
ters 2013/14 in South Eastern Europe, in the environmental services
business in Moscow, on the participation interest in Verbund Inn-
kraftwerke GmbH, and on generation capacity in Austria led to a
decline in profit before tax, which represents the starting point for
the statement of cash flows. Most of these measures represent non-
cash items, meaning the respective adjustments were made under
gross cash flow or cash flow from operating activities, depending
on the balance sheet classification. These measures led to a decline
of EUR 199.7m, or 37.2%, in gross cash flow to EUR 337.4m;
cash flow from operating activities fell by EUR 24.0m, or 4.2%, to
EUR 546.0m. Working capital included an increase in trade payables,
provisions and other current liabilities as of 30 September 2014.

Cash flow from investing activities totalled EUR —243.3m and was
EUR 115.8m, or 32.2%, lower than the previous year. The year-on-
year decline resulted, above all, from the sale of cash funds and
the shift of investments from non-current to current in the pension
reinsurance depository.

Cash flow from financing activities equalled EUR —-335.0m in
2013/14 (previous year: EUR —113.8m) and was influenced primarily
by the scheduled redemption of bonds.

The afore-mentioned developments resulted in total cash flow
of EUR —-32.3m for the 2013/14 financial year (previous year:
EUR 97.2m). Cash and cash equivalents therefore declined to
EUR 197.2m as of 30 September 2014.
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30.09.2014 30.09.2013" Change
Net debt EURm EURm EURm in %
Non-current loans and borrowings 1,747.7 1,805.7 -58.1 -3.2
Current loans and borrowings? 173.8 373.7 -199.9 -53.5
Cash and cash equivalents -197.2 -229.5 32.3 141
Current securities -0.8 -43.9 43.1 98.2
Non-current securities —62.1 -57.1 -5.0 -8.7
Loans receivable -38.9 -39.2 0.3 0.7
Net debt 1,622.4 1,809.6 -187.2 -10.3
Equity 2,632.7 3,079.2 -446.5 -14.5
Gearing (%) 61.6 58.8 - 29

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).

2) Excl. bank overdrafts contained in cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Capital expenditure rose by EUR 23.5m, or 6.3%, to EUR 396.3m in
2013/14. Supply security represented the focal point of investments,
whereby EUR 135.4 and EUR 38.6m, respectively, were invested
in the electricity and natural gas networks in Lower Austria.In the
electricity network the expansion of the 110 kV power lines can be
highlighted, while in the natural gas network the main investments
focused on the completion of the Westschiene natural gas transport
pipeline.

In the Generation Segment, the focal point of investments was on
the expansion of windpower capacity in Lower Austria. Most of the

investments in the thermal power plants were attributable to the
completion of the Duisburg-Walsum coal-fired power plant.

The volume of investments in the Energy Trade and Supply Segment
was slightly higher than the previous year, chiefly due to the further
expansion of the district heating network and the construction of
biomass heating plants.

Investments in South Eastern Europe declined year-on-year, above
all in Bulgaria. In Croatia, work continued to expand natural gas
supplies along the Dalmatian coast.

2013/14 2012/13" Change
Condensed consolidated statement of cash flows EURm EURm EURm in %
Profit before income tax -373.3 170.7 -544.0 -
Non-cash items 710.8 366.5 3443 48.4
Gross cash flow 337.4 537.1 -199.7 -37.2
Changes in current and non-current balance sheet items 228.2 61.1 167.1 -
Income tax paid -19.6 -28.3 8.7 30.7
Net cash flow from operating activities 546.0 570.0 -24.0 -4.2
Changes in intangible assets and property, plant and equipment incl. deferred
income from network subsidies -300.5 -289.5 -11.0 -3.8
Changes in financial assets and other non-current assets 14.1 -29.2 43.2 -
Changes in current securities 431 -40.3 83.4 -
Net cash flow from investing activities -243.3 -359.1 115.8 32.2
Net cash flow from financing activities -335.0 -113.8 -221.2 -
Net change in cash and cash equivalents -32.3 97.2 -129.5 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 2295 132.3 97.2 73.4
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 197.2 229.5 -32.3 -14.1

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).
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2013/14 2012/13" Change

Investment priorities at EVN? EURm EURm EURm in %
Generation 84.1 68.7 15.4 22.4
thereof thermal power stations 36.1 22.8 13.4 58.6
thereof renewable energy Lower Austria 47.6 45.0 2.5 5.6
thereof renewable energy South Eastern Europe 0.0 0.1 -0.1 -80.5
Energy Trade and Supply 323 30.0 2.3 7.6
thereof district heating plants 30.7 29.1 1.6 5.4
Network Infrastructure Austria 186.8 176.4 10.4 5.9
thereof electricity networks 1354 99.5 35.9 36.1
thereof natural gas networks 38.6 65.1 -26.5 -40.7
thereof cable TV and telecommunications networks 11.8 9.9 1.9 19.1
Energy Supply South East Europe 77.5 82.4 -5.0 -6.0
Environmental Services 13.3 11.9 1.4 115
thereof combined cycle heat and power plants in Moscow 1.9 5.2 -3.3 -63.1
thereof supra-regional power lines, local networks and wastewater 9.4 5.3 4.2 78.6
Strategic Investments and Other Business 2.5 3.5 -1.0 -29.8
Total 396.3 3729 23.5 6.3

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8 (see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).
2) After consolidation

In the Environmental Services Segment, investments focused, above
all, on water supplies in Lower Austria and on wastewater disposal.

The following chart provides an overview of the most important
investments.

o Structure of investments

in %, Total in EURm
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0.6 __ Strategic Investments and Other Business
3.4 _ Environmental Services
19.5 __ Energy Supply South East Europe

8.1 _ Energy Trade and Supply

47.1 — Network Infrastructure Austria

21.2 __ Generation

IN
¢ N MW
W

2012/13" 2013/14

1) The figures for the prior year were adjusted retrospectively according to IAS 8
(see note 2. Reporting accoding to IFRS, page 148).
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Non-financial indicators

As a responsible energy and environmental services provider, EVN

considers the dimensions “People”,
as three interrelated parts of a whole and works to achieve a balance

Environment” and “Economy”

between the requirements of the different interest groups. Sustaina-
bility aspects and the related objectives represent an integral part of
the corporate strategy and play an important role in achieving and
maintaining steady growth in the company’s value.

EVN as responsible employer

The EVN Group had an average of 7,314 employees during the
2013/14 financial year. The share of women equalled 21.4% during
this period. The Frauen@EVN programme, which was launched in
2010/11, is designed, in particular, to improve the conditions that
traditionally have a greater negative effect on women than on men.
The goals are to guarantee equal opportunities for women and men
and to increase the share of women at EVN.

EVN is well aware of the high strategic importance of its qualified
workforce. Consequently, the protection and expansion of this
high level of expertise represent a focal point for human resources
management. The training and professional development offering
for employees in Austria, Bulgaria and Macedonia is coordinated
by the EVN Academy. Training and educational expenses totalled
EUR 2.3m in 2013/14 (previous year: EUR 2.3m), or EUR 310.4 per
employee (previous year: EUR 314.8). The average time dedicated to
training rose from 31.3 hours per employee in the previous year to
34.9 hours in 2013/14.

Supply security, environmental protection and resource
conservation, sustainable energy generation and climate
protection

A flexible generation mix is of decisive importance to ensure supply
security and protect EVN's future viability. The further expansion
of energy generation from renewable sources — in particular wind-
power and hydropower as well as biomass and photovoltaics —
therefore represents a focal point of the company’s strategy. In
2013/14, renewable energy sources were responsible for 42.5%
of EVN’s total electricity production. EVN's objective is to raise the
share of renewable energies in the electricity generation mix to
50%. In the home market of Lower Austria, activities are directed,
above all, to expanding windpower production to raise this genera-
tion capacity from the current level of 213 MW to approx. 300 MW
over the medium term. In addition to ecological responsibility, EVN
also carries an economic responsibility that is reflected in a goal to
generate 30% of its electricity sales volumes from its own produc-
tion or procurement rights.
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EVN is involved in numerous innovation, development and research
projects for an efficient, intelligent and environmentally friendly
energy future. The projects in this portfolio reflect current and
future demands on the core energy and environmental services
businesses across all levels of the value chain. The goals of the
Group’s innovation, development and research activities are derived
from the corporate strategy and are measured by the benefits they
provide for the protection of the environment and resources, sup-
ply security and, last but not least, for EVN's competitiveness. EVN
organises its research activities by combining expertise from various
areas. Research projects involve — wherever feasible — coopera-
tion between different areas of the company and numerous part-
ners from science and industry. Since EVN concentrates on applied
research and development, its know-how is complemented by the
expertise of its scientific cooperation partners who focus on basic
research. The exchange of experience in national and international
projects not only adds to the success of EVN's projects, but also
supports universities and public research institutions with up-to-date
research topics and makes an important contribution to the quali-
fied and practically oriented education of students.

In 2013/14, EVN spent EUR 1.24m (thereof 13.4% financed through
public subsidies) on innovation, research and development projects.
Most of this work was focused on the network integration of renew-
able energy sources. Examples include the initiation and realisation
of projects for innovative energy storage (power-to-gas, battery
storage) as well as decentralised generation (photovoltaics and
small-scale windpower) and smart grids. In addition, the e-mobility
model region Lower Austria with numerous offers for end customers
continued under EVN's direction during the reporting year. Conven-
tional generation projects centred on the continuous optimisation
of existing power plants to increase flexibility and reduce CO, emis-
sions. Biotechnological methods will be used to convert the pure
CO, resulting from the generation process into biologically degra-
dable plastic. The Environmental Services Segment is working on
energy efficiency improvements for existing waste water treatment
plants, the further optimisation of energy requirements for new
waste water treatment plants and the continued development of a
small sewage sludge incineration plant as well as the evaluation of
the resulting residue for its possible use in further processing steps.
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Risk management

Definition of risk

EVN defines risk as a danger of negative deviations from corpo-
rate goals. The evaluation and management of risk also covers the
related opportunities.

Risk management process

The primary goal of risk management is to protect current and future
earnings and cash flows. As part of the risk management process, a
centrally organised corporate risk management department provides
the decentralised risk managers with suitable methods and tools for
identifying and assessing risks. The business units communicate their
risk exposures to this department, which helps to identify suitable
actions to minimise these risks. The actions are then implemented
by the decentralized business units. The corporate risk management
department is responsible for analysing and measuring EVN's overall
risk exposure. Risks related to sustainability and compliance issues
are identified and managed by specialised organisational units and/
or processes in agreement with central risk management.

The risk management process includes the following steps:

- Identification: A survey and/or revision of risks based on
the latest risk inventory (review of risk inventory) and the
identification of new risk positions

- Assessment and analysis: A qualitative and quantitative
evaluation of the identified risks; the aggregation of risks from
different points of view; and the modelling of earnings and
cash flow distributions

- Reporting: The distribution of risk reports to EVN'’s risk mana-
ers and the Executive Board; discussion and evaluation of the
risk exposure by the Risk Management Working Committee
and the Group Risk Committee; the implementation of risk
management activities where necessary

- Process review: Methodical identification of the organi-
tional units that must carry out an explicit risk assessment as
well as regular reviews to determine whether the methods
of identifying and assessing risks should be modified to
reflect changed conditions

Responsibilities of the Risk Management Working
Committee

The Risk Management Working Committee is responsible for moni-
toring the correct implementation of the risk management process.
It approves changes in risk measurement methods and defines the
type and the scope of official risk reporting. This committee includes
the heads of internal audit, the general secretariat and corporate
affairs and controlling as well as central risk management. Internal
audit also reviews the risk management processes and the imple-
mentation of measures to minimise risk.

Group Risk Committee and Controlling

The results of the risk inventory and the reports are presented to
and discussed by the Group Risk Committee, which consists of the
Executive Board, the heads of the strategic business units and the
Risk Management Working Committee. It decides on any need for
action and may also organise working groups and assign specified
tasks. The Group Risk Committee is authorised to define risk man-
agement measures aimed at changing EVN's risk exposure and, in
this way, influences the company’s strategic orientation.

A GRI indicator: The highest governance body’s role in
reviewing the effectiveness of the organisation’s risk man-
agement processes for economic, environmental and social
topics (G4-46)

Risk profile

In addition to the normal industry risks and uncertainties, EVN's risk
profile is influenced primarily by political, legal and regulatory chal-
lenges and changes in the competitive environment. EVN carries out
an annual risk inventory that is updated as needed to reflect ad-hoc
risk reports. This inventory includes the following categories, which
are described in detail below: market and competitive risks, financial
risks, operating risks, external risks, strategic and planning risks and
other risks.

Market and competitive risks

Energy trading and sales

EVN's revenues can be negatively affected by a decline in demand
due to weather conditions or climate change, economic, political
and technological factors or the loss of customers and sales volumes
for image-related or competitive reasons. In addition, rising or more
volatile market prices and declining margins can lead to lower profit
margins in the energy business. There is also a risk that revenue
declines may not be temporary, especially if they are the result of
weather effects, energy efficiency measures or changes in customer
behaviour and the churn rate.

A GRI indicator: Financial implications and other risks and
opportunities for the organisation’s activities due to cli-
mate change (EC2)

Generation / supply

Production that is increasingly decentralised and cannot be precisely
planned as well as fluctuations in wind levels, water flows, sunshine
hours and weather conditions can have a negative influence on
earnings from the generation business (price and volume effects).
The economic viability and intrinsic value of generation equipment
is dependent to a significant degree on electricity and primary
energy prices as well as the respective efficiencies, and adverse
developments can therefore lead to the recognition of an impair-
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ment loss. In addition, the creation of or addition to provisions for
long-term (procurement) contracts may also be necessary. In spite
of the impairment losses recognised during 2013/14, these types of
risks still exist due to the on-going difficult market environment for
energy generation plants.

Environment

EVN is exposed to risks in the environmental services business from
possible fluctuations in the demand, volume and/or costs of drinking
water supplies, wastewater treatment systems and thermal waste
utilisation facilities. Moreover, market saturation or non-inclusion in
tenders can lead to a decline in the volume of projects in the envi-
ronmental services business.

EVN is also exposed to various risks in connection with suppliers and
the realisation of projects, which include the defective fulfilment or
non-fulfilment of contractually agreed performance.

Financial risks

In managing credit and default risk, EVN distinguishes between
receivables due from end customers on the one hand, and receiva-
bles from financial and energy trading transactions and major pro-
jects/plants, on the other hand.

The default risk associated with end customer receivables is limited
primarily by efficient receivables management, the evaluation of
credit standings based on ratings and experience and the regular
monitoring of payment behaviour. However, a lack of purchasing
power or deteriorating payment behaviour can have a negative
effect on revenue in the energy segment.

Credits risks, above all in the treasury and energy trading areas and
in project and procurement management, are countered with credit
monitoring and credit limit systems, hedging instruments (e.g. bank
guarantees) and a targeted strategy to diversify business partners.

Write-downs on receivables can have a significant negative effect on
EVN's earnings. This also applies to the (extraordinary) depreciation
as well as the recognition of impairments of assets such as invest-
ments and goodwill.

EVN holds investments in areas related to the core business, among
others in Verbund AG, Rohél-Aufsuchungs AG, Energie Burgenland
AG and EconGas GmbH. The energy policy environment creates an
increased risk that the unfavourable development of earnings and
equity in these companies can also have a substantial impact on
EVN. Furthermore, contingent liabilities could be called and result in
actual payment obligations.
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The measures taken to counter liquidity and (re-)financing risk
include regular liquidity analyses, long-term and centrally managed
financial planning, the diversification of financing sources and the
protection of required financial resources. EVN is also exposed to
financing risks through a possible change in its rating and to con-
tract risks through its financing contracts.

Interest rate, foreign exchange and market price risks are man-
aged with a comprehensive treasury strategy which, among others,
includes daily risk analyses and the use of derivative hedging instru-
ments.

Operating risks

The energy business is particularly vulnerable to operating risks like
operating disruptions and stoppages as well as IT and safety-related
problems that can cause supply interruptions. The environmental
services business is also exposed to the risk of operating disruptions
or interruptions in drinking water supplies, wastewater systems and
thermal waste utilisation facilities.

Key processes in the energy and environmental services businesses
are associated with specific dangers that expose EVN to a liability
and reputation risk.

External risks

Changes in the regulatory environment, political pressure on major
projects and changing requirements under energy and environmen-
tal protection laws are the primary drivers for political and legal risks.
For example, changes in subsidy systems or the failure to receive
committed or expected subsidies can have a negative effect on the
company’s future asset, financial and earnings position.

The current political and economic instability in a number of the
markets in which EVN operates, potentially illegal or faulty legis-
lation and regulatory measures as well as a changing legal frame-
work represent risks that are addressed in cooperation with local,
regional, national and international government agencies and inter-
est groups. These institutions include the World Bank in Washington,
where investment protection proceedings are currently in process
against the Republic of Bulgaria.

EVN is exposed to the risk that necessary permits and licenses are
not granted, may be withdrawn or not extended. Specific mention
should be made of the license withdrawal proceedings initiated by
the Bulgarian regulatory authority against EVN's electricity distribu-
tion company in Bulgaria (EVN Bulgaria Electrosnabdjavane EAD).

Legal and litigation risks can arise, above all, in connection with
pending or potential regulatory, court, arbitration and investment
protection proceedings as well as audits by supervisory authorities



(in particular related to power plant projects like Duisburg-Walsum
and to foreign investments and business operations).

Contractual risks can arise, among others, from the failure to iden-
tify legal, economic or technical problems.

Overall risk profile

In addition to the uncertainties connected with business areas and
operations outside Austria, EVN is still confronted with a challenging
environment in its home market of Lower Austria. The previously
implemented consolidation measures will therefore be continued.

The annual risk inventory did not identify any future risks that could
endanger EVN's continued existence.

A GRI Indicator: Description of key impacts, risks and oppor-
tunities (G4-2)

EVN'’s major risks and related countermeasures

Market and competitive risks

Price risk

Procurement and selling prices (especially for energy carriers) that

are volatile and/or deviate from forecasts

—> Fixed price agreements, procurement strategy tailored to the
market environment, hedging transactions

Profit margin risk

Energy sales and production: failure to meet profit margin targets

- Hedging strategies: diversification of customer segments and
business areas, long-term sale of power plant capacity, develop-
ment of a product portfolio that reflects customer demands
(incl. various floating and guarantee tariffs)

Network operations: non-inclusion of actual operating costs in the

network tariffs established by the regulatory authority

= Interest groups, appropriate documentation and service charges

Volume risk

Declining demand for EVN's products or services, decrease in own

production volumes

Supplier risk

Cost overruns on projects; delays in the completion of contracted

services

—> Partnerships, contractual controls wherever possible, third party
expert opinions

Financial risks"

Foreign currency risks

Transaction risk (foreign currency exchange loss) and translation
risk in connection with the conversion of foreign currency amounts
in the consolidated financial statements; financing for Group
companies that does not reflect the respective foreign exchange
situation
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- Monitoring, limits and hedging instruments

Liquidity and financing risks

Failure to repay liabilities on schedule or to obtain the required

liquidity/funds at the expected conditions

- Long-term, centrally managed financial planning, safeguarding
of financing requirements (e.g. through credit lines)

Market price risks

Decline in the listed value of investments (e.g. funds) and listed

strategic investments (e.g. Verbund AG, Burgenland Holding)

- Monitoring of loss potential via daily value-at-risk calculations

Counterparty/credit risks

Complete or partial failure by a business partner to provide the

agreed performance

- Contracts, credit monitoring and credit limit systems, insurances
and diversification of business partners

Investment risks

Failure of a subsidiary or holding to meet profit targets

- Representation on the supervisory board and/or shareholder/risk
committees of the respective company

Rating changes

Higher refinancing costs due to rating downgrades

- Ensuring compliance with key financial indicators

Interest rate risks

Changes in market rates, increase in interest expense

- Use of hedging instruments

Impairment risks

Recognition of impairment losses to receivables, goodwill,

investments and/or assets

Inflation/deflation risk

Risk that contingent liabilities (quarantees) will be called

Operating risks

Infrastructure risks

Incorrect design and use of technical facilities

- Elimination of technical weaknesses, regular inspections and
reviews of current and planned infrastructure

Service disruptions/network breakdowns

(own and third party), accidents

Supply interruptions, physical danger to persons or infrastructure

through explosions/accidents

- Technical upgrading at network interfaces, expansion and
maintenance of network capacity

IT/security risks (incl. cybersecurity)

—> Strict system and risk monitoring (internal control system),
e.g. through backup systems, technical maintenance, external
audits, occupational safety and health measures, crisis exercises

1) On the use of financial instruments, see consolidated notes,
note 62. Risk management, page 204 and 64. Financial instruments, page 208.
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Workforce risks

Loss of highly qualified employees, absence due to work accidents,

surplus or shortfall of personnel, communication problems, cultural

barriers, fraud, intentional or unintentional misrepresentations of

transactions or items in the annual financial statements

- Attractive work environment, occupational health care and
safety measures, flexible working time models, training, group
events, internal control system (ICS)

External risks

Legislative, regulatory and political risks

Changes in political and legal parameters and/or the regulatory

environment (e.g. environmental laws, changing legal framework,

regulations and market liberalisation in South Eastern Europe)

- Cooperation with interest groups, associations and government
agencies on a regional, national and international level

Legal and litigation risks

Non-compliance with contractual obligations by several parties, or

litigation risk from various lawsuits

- Representation in local, regional, national and EU-wide interest
groups, legal consulting

Social and general economic environment

Economic developments, debt/financial crisis, stagnating or declin-

ing purchasing power, rising unemployment

Contract risks

Failure to identify legal, economic or technical problems; contract

risks under financing contracts

- Extensive legal due diligence, involvement of external experts/
legal advisors, contract database and on-going monitoring

Strategic and planning risks

Technology risk

Late identification and implementation of new technologies;

investments in “wrong” technologies

—> Active participation in external research projects, own demon-
stration facilities and pilot projects, on-going adjustments to
keep technologies at the latest level

Planning risk

Model risks, incorrect or incomplete assumption, lost opportunities

—> Feasibility studies by experienced, highly qualified employees,
monitoring of parameters and regular updates, four-eyes
principle

Organisational risks

Inefficient or ineffective processes, interfaces; duplication

—> Process management, documentation, internal control system
(ICS)

Different owner strategies in non-controlled companies
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Other risks

Granting of undue advantages, non-compliance

Distribution of confidential internal information to third parties and

the granting of undue advantages/corruption

= Internal control systems, uniform guidelines and standards;
reorganisation of the subsidiaries in South Eastern Europe;
Code of Conduct, compliance organisation

Project risk

e.g. cost overruns on the construction of new capacity

- Contractual agreement on economic parameters

Co-investment risk

Risks related to the implementation of major projects jointly with a

partner

- Contractual safeguards, efficient project management

Sabotage

Sabotage, e.g. to natural gas lines, waste water treatment plants

or waste incinceration plants

—> Suitable security measures, regular measurement of water
quality and emissions

Image risk

- Transparent and proactive communications, high ethical
standards in all areas of the business



Key features of the internal control and risk management
system related to accounting processes

Introduction

In accordance with § 267 (3b) in connection with § 243a (2) of the
Austrian Commercial Code (“Unternehmensgesetzbuch”, UGB) as
amended by the 2008 Corporate Law Amendment Act (“Unterneh-
mensrechts-Anderungsgesetz”, URAG), companies whose shares are
admitted for trading on a regulated market are required to disclose
the key features of their internal control and risk management sys-
tem for corporate accounting processes.

As defined in §82 of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act (“Aktien-
gesetz”, AktG), the Executive Board is responsible for establishing a
suitable internal control and risk management system for account-
ing processes.

EVN developed and implemented an internal control system (ICS)
that meets the requirements of the 2008 Corporate Law Amendment
Act. The ICS is monitored at regular intervals by auditing the pro-
cesses that are considered to be exposed to risk. The results of these
monitoring activities are reported to the Executive Board and the
Supervisory Board. The ICS ensures clear lines of responsibility and
eliminates unnecessary process steps, and thereby further improves
the security of processes for the preparation of financial data.

The description of the major features of the ICS covers five inter-
related components: control environment, risk assessment, control
activities, information and communication, and monitoring.

Control environment

The Code of Conduct issued by EVN and the underlying values
apply to all Group employees. EVN’s Code of Conduct is available
in German under www.evn.at/verhaltenskodex and in English
under www.evn.at/code-of-conduct.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by Group
accounting. The related processes are based on an accounting
guideline that defines the accounting policies to be applied as
well as key processes and schedules for the entire Group. Binding
instructions apply to the reconciliation of intragroup accounts and
other work required for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

All employees involved in the accounting process have the neces-
sary qualifications and undergo regular training. Complex actuarial
opinions and valuations are prepared by external experts or specially
qualified employees.
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The implementation of the ICS also included the designation of pro-
cesses that are considered to be relevant for the accounting area.
These processes include the documentation of all steps involving risk
and the creation of special control measures for their monitoring.

The managers responsible for the specific processes — in general,
the heads of the strategic business units and corporate services —
are responsible for compliance with these processes and the related
control measures.

Risk assessment and control activities

Multi-stage control measures have been established to prevent
material misstatements in the presentation of transactions in order
to ensure that the individual IFRS financial statements of all subsidi-
aries are recorded correctly. These steps include automated controls
that are executed by the consolidation software as well as manual
controls by the involved corporate services.

The corporate service departments carry out extensive plausibility
checks of the individual subsidiaries’ financial statements to ensure
correct transfer to the consolidated financial statements.

The review of the financial statement data includes analyses at the
position, segment and Group levels, both before and after consoli-
dation. The consolidated financial statements are not released until
these quality controls are complete at all levels.

EVN AG and the major domestic and foreign subsidiaries use SAP
software (FI module, finance and accounting) for their accounting.
The IFRS consolidated financial statements are prepared 